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Dear Stakeholders,

| am happy to share that we are performing with
passion, commitment, and resilience in one of India’s
most crucial segment, agriculture. Samunnati thrives
year-on-year with a vision to make markets work for
smallholder farmers. The external situation has tested
the resilience of Samunnati and has further sharpened
its mission and delivery mechanism. We were able to
enhance the value of the agri players across the value
chain we operate in, by providing, aggregation, market
linkages, and advisory services with finance being

an enabler — “a means than an end”; this ultimately
benefits our end beneficiaries - the smallholder
farmers.

It gives me immense pleasure to share with you

the Annual Report for FY 2021. The year started with
challenges of covid19, the crisis continues to have ripple
effects on the entire global economy, including India.

At Samunnati, we believe that the most important silver
lining of this crisis has been the resilience showcased
by agri-sector amid these difficult times despite
reported disruptions in many pockets.

To enable the company, expand financing and technical
assistance to low-income farmers and enterprises
throughout the agricultural value chain in India, we
have got a sanction of 148.5 crores as ECB from U.S.
International Development Finance Corporation and
raised 89.6 crores in debt from FMO - Entrepreneurial

Bank and Triodos Fair Share Fund and Triodos
Microfinance Funds, two financial inclusion funds
managed by Triodos Investment Management
(Triodos IM).

Samunnati Finance witnessed 25.1% in the
disbursements while Samunnati Agro witnessed
29.1% growth in its turnover. Samunnati, as a group,
has expanded its outreach to over 800 Farmer
Collectives and 393 AEs in FY 2021.

Samunnati has been working with Farmer Collectives
and Agri-Enterprises (AEs) across the country to
understand and resolve the issues at ground level
and we have strived towards providing market
access to producers and timely supply to various
value chain players to bridge the gap.

The year 2020-21 started with COVID-19 cases
leading to disruption in overall markets. It was

the need of the hour to educate our FPOs about
the alternative platforms to trade. We conducted
webinars for FPOs of Maharashtra, MP, Rajasthan,
Guijarat, and Karnataka to educate them about the
importance and benefits of trade in derivatives
market. In FY 2021, 200 FPOs and 282 institutional
buyers were onboarded for market linkages across
7 States (Gujarat, Maharashtra, Telangana, Andhra
Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh and Tamil Nadu) and have
successfully facilitated market linkages for over
180 commaodities via Samunnati’s Agri Commerce
solutions.



We are on a mission to create an open agri-network
to unlock the trillion-dollar plus potential of Indian
agriculture with smallholder farmers at the center of

it. Samunnati stands for collective growth & collective

prosperity for the agri ecosystem. Staying true to its
name, Samunnati ensures this collective growth by
connecting players across the agriculture value chain
and enabling affiliated Farmer Collectives and the
larger ecosystem to be more efficient and productive
through multiple technology enabled interventions
and collaborative partnerships.

In FY 2021, we focussed on deployment of our
technology and digital solutions that create
transparent and economically viable value chains
for the agri ecosystem players. We have launched
two new platforms Samaarambh and Agri Elevate.
Agri Elevate being a first-of-its-kind ecosystem
platform for all agri ecosystem players, including but
not limited to incubators, lenders, new age start-
ups. agri ecosystem solution providers. This unified
platform aims to serve FPOs and fulfil all their
service needs and in turn, actively spearheading
digital transformation in the agriculture industry.
Samaarambh — an Agri Start-up Engagement
Platform, aims at providing solutions to prime
challenges faced by the start-ups, directly or
indirectly benefitting the true stakeholder of the Agri
ecosystem, the small holder farmers.

Amidst COVID 19, we have focused on continuing
and enabling FPOs with capacity building programs.
Webinars and virtual engagement sessions were
organized for FPCs with content-based modules

like legal, compliance, bookkeeping, and other
aspects of FPC Management including applying
input license. A total of 64 online trainings were
conducted along with over 70 in person sessions this
year. Exposure visits were offered for the FPCs to
complement these sessions.

In FY 2021, Samunnati received several recognitions
from reputed institutions not just in India but from
across the globe. | am happy to share with you
that Samunnati secured a place among the Top

100 Companies globally, under the Visa Initiative
and we have been awarded ET start-up award in
Social Enterprise category. Samunnati has also been
recognised by Great Place to work in FY2021.

In the coming years, we will further expand our AMLA
offerings with focus on market linkages, capacity
building and institutional development of the Farmer
Collectives using a combination of innovative,
financial and technology solutions. With the launch
of Samunnati Foundation, we will continue to work
on making a sustainable, positive social, economic,
and environmental impact in the lives of the
agricultural and rural communities.

In conclusion, | would like to place on record the
management’s appreciation of the contributions
made by our highly skilled and talented team
members at all levels. We certainly thank our
customers and partners for their support during
the year and especially during these extraordinary
circumstances. | would like to thank the Board

of Directors and our advisors for their continued
guidance and trustin us.

Mr. Anilkumar SG
Founder and CEO
Samunnati
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Anil Kumar S G
Founder and CEO

Mr. Anil Kumar S G is a banker with over 27 years of experience.
He has worked in entities like Canara Bank and ICICI Bank. He
embarked on a journey in Rural & Agri finance from 2007 onwards
as Founder Trustee of IFMR Trust, wherein he was involved in
designing and deploying a local financial institution model called
KGFS - Khetriya Gramin Financial Services.

Mr. Gurunath N
Whole Time Director

Mr. Gurunath N has over 30 years of experience in the banking
and financial services space and started his career with TMB and
moved to ICICI where he served in various roles for 15 years. Guru
has also played key roles across Business and Operations in IFMR
group of companies where has also served as CEO of a NBFC
(Pudhuaaru Financial Services Private Limited) while at IFMR.

Mr. Akshay Dua
Nominee Director, responsibility Investments AG

Mr. Akshay Dua has over 12 years of experience in private
equity and investment banking. He joined responsibility in
2012 and leads the fund’s efforts in Asia Pacific for private
equity investments in food and agriculture in the mid-

market range.




Mr. N. Srinivasan
Independent Director

Mr. N Srinivasan had been a central banker and development
banker for 30 years in the Reserve Bank of India and NABARD.
Over the last thirteen years, he has been involved in design,
supervision and evaluation of policy, strategy and implementation
of several development finance and rural development projects.

Mr. Sunil Gulati
Independent Director

Mr. Sunil Gulati has three decades of global experience in
the banking industry across investment banking, corporate
finance, relationship management, risk management and
corporate strategy. In the last 15 years, Sunil was a key
member (Chief Risk Officer) of the management teams at
RBL Bank Ltd, Yes Bank and ING Baring Business, India.

Dr. Venkatesh Tagat
Independent Director

Dr. Venkatesh Tagat has recently retired as Chief General
Manager, Business Initiatives Department of National Bank
for Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD). He had a
stint as CGM, Bengaluru Regional Office. He was also Director
on the Board of National Commodity & Derivatives Exchange
Ltd Mumbai and a member on the Inter-Ministerial Group on
Agricultural Marketing, New Delhi.
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M/s. Jyotsna Krishnan
Nominee Director, Elevar

M/s. Jyotsna Krishnan has over 12 years of experience in
the investment sector, precisely investments in early-stage
ventures. Jyotsna has spent considerable time with low-
income communities and has translated her admiration for
these communities into concrete observations.

Mr. Mahendran Balachandran
Nominee Director, Accel

Mr. Mahendran Balachandran has vast experience in the
investment sector and brings with him two decades of
experiences in technology companies, including Apple.
He is the lead investor and serves on the board of various
companies engaged in healthcare and technology sector.

M/s. Rekha Unnithan
Nominee Director, Nuveen

M/s. Rekha Unnithan is responsible for determining Nuveen’s
(@ TIAA company) Impact Investment strategy across sectors,
asset classes, and regions. She originates and underwrites new
deals and manages impact investments to execute Nuveen’s
commitment across areas like Affordable Housing, Inclusive
Growth and Resource Efficiency. She oversees a multi- asset
class impact investing portfolio which includes private equity,
private real estate, mortgages and fund investments.
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Mr. Anil Kumar S G
Founder & CEO

A banker with over 27 years of experience, Anil has worked with the likes of Canara
Bank, ICICI Bank and IFMR. At IFMR, he was involved in designing and deploying a
local financial institution model called Kshetriya Gramin Financial Services (KGFS).
After the success of this model, Anil promoted Samunnati, an Agri finance company
with special focus on smallholder farmers, in 2014. He was bestowed the Social
Entrepreneur of the Year 2013 by TiE Chennai and Best Social Entrepreneur Award by
Hand in Hand at the Global Social Entrepreneurship Programme in 2018.

Mr. Sridhar Easwaran
Senior Vice President, Institution Development

Mr. Nitin Chaudhary
Chief Technology Officer

) i ) With 35 years of experience across operations, project
With over 10 years of experience in

i . ) management and risk management in the banking
financial services for low-income
households, Nitin has worked with VISA,

Micro Pension Foundation and IFMR.

industry, Sridhar has worked at PriceWaterhouseCoopers
and HDFC Bank. As the Senior Vice President of FPOs

at Samunnati, he leads capacity development building

At Samunnati, he manages internal . .
S i ) for FPOs aligned to Samunnati’s AMLA approach. The
strategic initiatives and pilot projects . :

) . ) capacity development team focuses on market linkages,
related to scaling the business. He is

. . ) . access to finance, technology, and advisory aspects.
also involved in overseeing the Capital
Markets team and the business of

Samunnati Agro Solutions.




Mr. Ashok Dhamankar
Group Chief Financial Officer

With 23 years of experience across various fields, Ashok has expertise in
Commodity Financing, Private Equity, Finance Modelling, Tax Planning and
Investor Relations. Prior to Samunnati, he worked with National Collateral
Management as the CFO. As Samunnati’s Group Chief Financial Officer, he
is an expert at deploying and managing processes, implementing financial
governance and international financial management.

Mr. Gurunath N Mr. Anuj Narang

Executive Director Group Business Head

With over 30 years of experience in the banking and With around 25 years’ experience in P&L management,
financial services space, Gurunath has also worked Business Development, Sales & Marketing,

at Tamil Nadu Mercantile Bank and ICICI Bank. He is Budgeting and Strategic Planning in the Commodity
responsible for all operational aspects of Samunnati and Consumer space, Anuj was managing an

as well as some of the key support functions like entrepreneurial venture as a Consultant & Investor
Business Performance of Samunnati Financial and was based in Singapore. He was focussed
(Lending). He is also an Executive Director on the on consulting with leading FMCG companies and
Board of Samunnati. As the Executive Director, he offering risk management services for Supply Chain
engages and builds long-term relationships while & Procurement. In the past, Anuj was associated
ensuring the culture and values of Samunnati are in with Engelhart Commodities Singapore, Czarnikow
place. Group and ITC Foods. His expertise lies in managing

businesses in both Indian as well as international
markets. At Samunnati, he would lead business
verticals of FPO & AE/Trade.
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KEY
TRENDS

of FY 2021




Still, there have been numerous components of the
agricultural value chain which have been disrupted and
are undermining the sustainability of organizations and
farm workers across the country. Impact of country-wide
lockdown on the Indian agriculture sector has been
quite complex across different parts of the agricultural
value chain. Temporary but acute shortage of labour,
reverse migration, disruptions in harvest, logistics

and transportation and exports were a portion of the
un-anticipated challenges that agricultural ecosystem
stakeholders witnessed. Liquidity crunch in rural
regions further aggravated the issue.

During the Covid crisis too, Samunnati has
continued to follow a non-traditional approach
to design custom financial solutions, based
on cashflow rather than collateral, focused on
utilizing buyer-sellers relationship and their social
and trade capital, thus creating an excellent
example of how Agri value chains can be
made to work at higher equilibrium despite the
challenges posed by pandemic for small and
marginal farmers. Samunnati also believes
that technological innovations and the new
agri-market related reforms would enable the
evolution of approaches and products that
can help agricultural finance. An integrated
value chain approach has the capabilities to
highlight the untapped opportunities and
present operational nuances in the value
chains. Such opportunities can help us
understand the financing within the value
chain tailored to fit the requirements in most
efficient manner.
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GOVERNMENT
INITIATIVES .

To address the Covid impact on agriculture, Government of With significant uncertainty in the yield and

India has taken number of proactive measures to protect harvest due the unpredictable rainfall and ongoing
the interest of the stakeholders especially the farming crisis, the agriculture sector has continued to
community. The Indian government has addressed the operate at a higher risk. The industry has been
sethback faced by the agricultural community, among acknowledging insurance as a viable product to
others, and introduced a stimulus of INR 1.7 lakh crore, for mitigate the production related risks. Insurance
shielding the vulnerable sections from any adverse effects is likely to continue as a focal point for public and
of the pandemic. The benefit incorporates advance release private companies considering the risk profile of
of INR 2,000 directly to the bank accounts of farmers under the Agri sector and we believe the mitigation of the
PM-KISAN scheme. The government’s stimulus package production related risk in agriculture will continue
for agriculture under “Atmanirbhar Bharat” have produced to become an important dimension in the next
positive sentiments and will offer extended support to the year as well. With the nationwide introduction of
sector to grow and develop adapting to the constantly two indemnity and parametric-based programs,
evolving COVID-19 conditions. The Reserve Bank of India Pradhan Mantri Fasal Bima Yojana (PMFBY), and
(RBI) had granted a moratorium on agricultural term the Restructured Weather-Based Crop Insurance
and crop loans for a period of 3 months in first quarter Scheme (RWBCIS), the crop insurance in India will
of FY2021, with a 3% concession on the interest rate of be undergoing significant changes.

crop loans, up to INR 3,00,000, for borrowers with a good
repayment record. Increased liquidity for companies
working in Agri space has been a focus for the government.

ENHANCEMENT OF TECHNOLOGY ...
IN THE SECTOR

COVID-19 has enhanced the use of technology in a variety of industries.
Digitization is emerging as a key trend in Indian agriculture, and it

will be crucially significant in the post-covid period as well. Currently,
over 1.25 lakh panchayats in India have reported to have internet

8 — ;‘ : s — @ connections. Online connectivity and work-from-home would continue
AR
/"?\ to be the vital linkage between people working in organizations to keep
o things rolling. At Samunnati being exclusively in the agri-space, we
— ] would nonetheless require keeping a touch and feel with the clients on

the ground as well. The pandemic has impacted the capital infusion
and the capital streamlining of many companies. With the outbreak of

second wave of COVID-19, we should be expecting a very lean business
development in the first quarter of FY2021-22 depending on the severity
and duration of the second wave.



COVID-19
SECONDMWAVE & CHALLENGES

The rural India is not untouched by the second
wave of Covid and in many predominantly rural
districts, the number of active COVID-19 cases are
reported to be upto ten times higher than what it
was in the first wave of the pandemic in the month
of September 2020. The share of predominantly
rural districts in new cases in April 2021 was 30%,
up from 21% in March 2021, according to a report
released by CRISIL. India’s agriculture sector could
prove to be a collateral damage to this potentially
catastrophic wave Il of the pandemic. Farmers are
staying away from the markets, resulting in lower
prices of the agri-produce, meanwhile the agri-
prices continue to rise globally owing to dry weather
in major producing countries. Due to the fear factor
and lockdown restrictions, local markets in India
are mostly either shut down or have stipulated
operational timings.

In rural India, agriculture is only a portion of the
income generated while remaining comes from non-
agriculture, a very large part of which is services

of various kinds - which would get impacted due

to the mandis not being operational. Operational
mandis are currently working at lower capacities
around 40% and due to the uncertainty regarding
the pandemic, there are frequent price variations.
Government has been taking steps to decongest
the markets and to ease the flow of produce,

and the Electronic National Agriculture Market
(e-NAM) app has been revised with modules on
procurement, logistics and farmer-friendly interface
for advance registration of the produce for sale.
Due to the lockdown, there is reportedly a shortage
of farm labour, which can impose significant
challenges for the upcoming Kharif season.

Our learnings and experiences from last year
would prove to play a key role in defining how India
can deal effectively with the second wave of Covid,
where emphasis should be given on infrastructure,
capacity building and efficiently managing supply
chains to connect to the smallest and most remote
parts of the country.
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SAMUNNATTI'S

APPROACH

IN COVID-19 SCENARIO

Samunnati has been working with FPOs on supply side and with
Agri-Enterprises (AEs) on demand side across the country to
understand and resolve the issues at ground level and we have
strived towards providing market access to producers and timely
supply to various value chain players to bridge the gap. We believe
that agri-sector will continue to offer significant support to India’s
economy in future as well.

Unique challenges during ongoing COVID-19
crisis have prompted Samunnati to find
innovative ways to connect our customers

to other value chain players and the end-
consumers. Samunnati has been striving to
develop alternative links between end-consumers
and households to producers in the current
extraordinary times. We have been witnessing
multiple examples and use cases where we were
able to work with our AE clients to support them
in reaching out to thousands of households

and residential complexes to supply essential
commodities including perishable fruits &
vegetables as well as staples directly. In addition
to this, Samunnati has been able to successfully
link farm producers to online aggregators and
grocery platforms in some cases, ensuring timely
offtake of perishable farm produce and better
profit realisation for small holder farmers. We
have supported many of our AE clients playing
critical roles in raw material supply to India’s top
institutional players in agri-processing space, and
this has been an encouraging tale of showcasing
adaptability and resilience of agri-sector to the
COVID-19 crisis that we discussed above.




SAMUNNATI’S
REGULATORY

PACKAGL

o FOR COVID-19

In accordance with the COVID-19 - Regulatory
Package notification dated March 27, 2020
issued by Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) and

Farmer Producer Organisations (FPO)-
FPO(AC), FPO (WCTL) and Retail

. . . All customers in these verticals were offered a
empathising with our customers and standing

by them during these troubled times, we are moratorium period of up to 3 months (in line with RBI

pleased to offer a moratorium on the repayment Covid-19 Regulatory Package). All term and working

of loans falling due between March 1, 2020 and capital loans with unpaid instalments/ interest

May 31, 2020 payments falling due during the period Ist March

2020 to 31st May 2020 was rescheduled with the new
While extending support to the customers as repayment dates as per the moratorium policy.

per the Covid-19 Regulatory package, Samunnati
In FY 2021, 80 FPOs have opted for moratorium. In

approached each customer segment distinctly
instances where a customer didn’t wish to avail the

and the details are given below.
moratorium benefit in this segment, the original

repayment schedule remained in force.

Agri Enterprises

For all customers in this segment and not

30 rpros

OPTED FOR
MORATORIUM
IN 2021

J
“n.-ﬂ;'

41 AGRI

ENTERPRISES

OPTED FOR MORATORIUM
IN 2020

covered in clause (1) above, whose loans

have instalments or interest payments during
the period 1st March 2020 till 31st May 2020,
Samunnati extended the moratorium benefit
based on customer request (anytime till 31st

May 2020 but not with retrospective effect) on a
case-to-case basis based on our assessment of
the impact of Covid-19 on the customer’s income
and cashflows. In FY 21, 41 Agri enterprises have
availed the moratorium.

SAMUNNATI ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 |
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446 rmpPIOYEES

In 2014, Samunnati Financial Intermediation

and Services Private Limited (“Samunnati” or

“Company”) was incorporated as a Private

Limited Company in Chennai. The Company was

registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company
(NBFC) with Reserve Bank of India (RBI) in
February 2016. In Financial Year (FY) 2018-2019,
Samunnati became a Systemically Important

NBFC (NBFC-NDSI).

expand in more states.

N7

Samunnati is a specialised Agri Value Chain enabler that
provides innovative and customised financial and non-financial
solutions. With an aim to offer holistic, suitable trade solutions
to the agriculture value chain players, Samunnati Agro

Solutions Private Limited (“Samunnati Agro”) was incorporated
on October 14, 2016 as a 100% subsidiary of Samunnati
Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited.

Samunnati and Samunnati Agro constitute the Samunnati
Group (or “Group”). Samunnati Group was present across
20 states with 446 employees in FY 2021 and will continue to

SRRORS

%

NZN\
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Samunnati had an overall strong growth in FY
2021, with the disbursements increasing at 7.38%
from INR 1624 Crin FY 2020 to INR 1744 Crin FY
2021 with an outreach to over 800 FPOs in FY 2021
compared to 647 FPOs in FY 2020.

FPO TRAINING & CAPACITY BUILDING =

Institution Development and Capacity Building of Farmer Producer
Organization connotes programmes of sustainable, constructive, change in
organizations which are designed to make farmers/producers better at doing
what they already do, and more efficient; or which are designed to change
the character of institutions by modifying their goals and strategies, cultures,
ways of functioning, management styles and so on.

CAPACITY BUILDING s

Inhouse Diagnostic assessment tool is standardized,

and assessment study is performed for the engaged 1 ] O CA P
FPCs. 20+ assessments were carried out using the

Institutional Development framework and detailed B U I L D l
diagnostics are prepared to understand the FPC
strengths and weakness. Samunnati has conducted a CONDUCTEE
total of 110 Capacity Building workshops for the FPO
in the year 2020-21 in the states of Bihar, Orissa, MP,
Maharashtra, Karnataka and Tamil Nadu.




— Strengthening Governance of the FPO

Need for FPO Formation, BOD Alignment,
Roles and Responsibilities of CEO and BOD,
Need for FIG formation, Activations of FIGs,
Efficient management of FPO activities -
Standard Operating Procedures setup.

-—Q Improving the Revenue Streams

: Training on new business ideas, Business
Online Training : planning, Financial Planning, Business

roposal for additional revenue streams,
Amid COVID-19 Zoom sessions were organized Prop

market quality specifications of commodit
for project FPCs with content-based modules like qualtty sp Y

legal compliance, bookkeeping and applying input trade.

license. Zoom link availability, video recording and —e Need Based Trainings
efficient participant feedback redressal system was : Crop cultivation practices to improve yield

ensured throughout the trainings organized during or quality, Technology initiatives that can

March — September where a total of 64 online be implemented at Farmer level, Legal

trainings were conducted. Compliance and timely filing, zero tillage,

Insect and pest management, Digitization

Field Training and Pay Card.

Field Training resumed since October with — @ Building Connects

holistic modules with FPO requirements and : Connecting FPOs enhances the business
deploying need-based trainings with internal knowledge and widens business opportunity.

expertise and external resources. 70+ Trainings
have been conducted along with frequent
handholding exercise. Following are the focus
domains and modules of trainings.
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Post Training

Post training hand holding session are planned by the
Relationship Managers of the team. Group discussion
with FPO board to address immediate challenges,
advisory service and market linkage facilitation is
ensuring continuous engagement process with the FPO.

Samunnati continues to have a plan for the year
of 2021-2022 where it includes having handbook
preparation, developing FIG reactivation module,
standardization of business plan templates,
planning POP Trainings, deployment of tech-based
pilots and trainings focusing on trade initiatives
and encouragement for options.

Another important aspect of the trainings is the gender
trainings where Samunnati has hired experts to prepare
the Gender Strategy for the FPOs. Samunnati project team
conducted a field visit for data collection in four states

for the following FPOs- Shanthi Sagar FPO, Satkosia/
Banarpal FPO, Devanadhi FPO and Dholisakra FPO. A total
of 8 gender trainings were conducted in the year. Based
on field experiences, the core components of gender
inclusion approach include selection of core group,
orientation and implementation of gender plan.

Some of the new initiatives and business
improvement that have been taken up by
Samunnati are FPOs planning approaches to
diversify streams, digitalization and robocalling,
market linkage and quality standards and policy
related discussions.

AGRI INPUT DIVISION ...

Agri input division was started in 2020-21 with the
objective of establishing a one stop shop for all farmer’s
needs (input, output and advisory) in line with the
organization’s goal of making markets work for small
holder farmers, more specifically to connect the input
manufacturers with the (farmer) collectives.




MAJOR
HIGHLIGHTS

OF 2020-21

Promotion of 65 Farmer Development Centres (pan
India) to facilitate input and output market linkages
and advisory services. Farmer Producer organizations
have promoted these FDCs in collaboration with
Samunnati and efresh.

Pertaining to output Samunnati has onboarded 14 input manufacturers

linkages, Samunnati has .
ges, who have pan India presence. To name a few

on boarded some of the companies with whom corporate Distributorship
top ranked corporate
buyers like ITC ABD Ltd,

Patanjali, Viterra, Sneha

agreement is executed are: Tata Rallis, Deepak

Fertilizer, Dhanuka Pesticides, DCM Sriram (Bioseed),

NACL, IFFCO online bazar, SWAL, Jain Irrigation etc.
Foods, Shalimar etc.

Samunnati availed Agri input licenses from multiple states to facilitate
input linkages for FPOs and aggregators. Samunnati Agro secured licences
for agri inputs in states of Tamil Nadu, Karnataka, Telangana, Madhya
Pradesh, Bihar and Rajasthan. License application is in its final stages in
states like Maharashtra, Andhra Pradesh and Chhattisgarh.
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Samunnati is in the process of building Centre of
Excellence (COE) in Pooriambakkam and Kanha
Santhivanam. These CoFEs shall showcase a range of the
latest technologies pertaining to new-age agricultural
technologies and advanced farm equipment.

- ) v ' O

.. . Steps were taken in standardising the branding (look
Sammunati in collabration d feel) and in digitalization. Significant
and feel) and in digitalization. Significant progress was
with eFresh are in the ] ) 9 ) g prog
o made in developing a Point-Of-Sale software product
process of bringing . . _
) . for the Farmer Development Centres aimed at improving
in unique and latest ) ) ) ]
ease of doing business, managing compliances and
technology products to i th aari inout advi . d
connecting with agri input advisory partners an

benefit the farmers. g _ g p Yp
manufacturing companies.

Input division has started a new initiative of developing Village Level
Entrepreneurs (VLES) who support in developing the input and output

linkage in a micro-geography of interest. This initiative is expected to

expand Samunnati’s footprint beyond FPOs and expand the avenues of

business through FDCs.



FDC is owned, operated, and managed by FPO.
eFresh will facilitate the procurement of quality

inputs from leading brands and manufacturers
based on the demand of the FDCs. Samunnati
strengthens the FDCs by providing financing,

FA R M E R market linkages, advisory services, and the
introduction of advanced technologies through its
D EV E LO P M E N T AMLA [Aggregation, Market Linkage and Advisory]
Approach. Overall, the benefits to FPOs through
C E N T R E FDCs are as follows.

Customized software for digitization of

data & records, Statutory compliances

Farmer Development Centre (FDC) is a physical store . _ _
that is set up at the Farmer Producer Organisation Spreading GOO(; Agricultural practices
(FPO) premises under the franchise business model through model farmers program

as a one-stop solution for all farmers’ needs. The + FPO Team can focus more on identification
model will leverage the power of aggregation to make and provision of value-added services.
available high-quality products at the right time and - Enhanced farm input market linkages

at economical prices. The technology infrastructure & through traceability and quality
digitization will drive efficiency, ease of doing business specifications

at the store level & will opportunity to leverage the
PP Y 9 Enhanced farm output market linkages

fits of lytics for th tem.
benefits of analytics for the system through traceability and quality

specifications

FDCs would enhance the learning ecosystem for Additional income generation through farm

the farmers through the ‘model farmer initiative’ machinery hiring, insurance and other

& advisory services through its partners. It would digital services linkages.
extend its coverage to subsume, farm output

. . , Aligned with our mission to make markets
market linkages, farm machinery, insurance &

other value-added services. work for smallholder farmers, Samunnati in
partnership with eFresh Agribusiness Solutions
has inaugurated 15 FDCs 10 in Maharashtra, 3
in Gujarat and 2 in Rajasthan in the month of

October 2021.

As on 31st March 2021, Samunnati promoted 72
Farmer Development Centres in partnership with
efresh.
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In FY 2021, Samunnati expanded its AE base to 393 clients with an
addition of 60 new AE clients as compared to 333 AEs in previous year.

Agri Enterprises represent the demand side of
the value chain, wherein Samunnati assists in
removing working capital constraints through

customised financial solutions. By building market
Y g In FY 2021, the total disbursements stood at INR

linkages, the Company connects enterprises such )
n%ag pany Pri ! 1,744 Cr, a 7.38% increase when compared to INR

as retailers, wholesalers, processors, traders, ) . .
P 1,624 Cr in previous financial year. The average

portfolio yield stood at 19.09%. To help FPOs
realise better price for the farm produce through

exporters, and so on, to producer organisations
who can meet their aggregation needs on time.

a transparent mechanism and immediate
payment to the farmer collectives, they were
directly connected to Institutional Buyers
through Samunnati Agro and thereby created
value for both the market participants.




........................ c PRODUCI &
INNOVATION

ii
In FY20-21, Samunnati focused on
multiple digital interventions.

KisanPay

Powered by Samunnati

The Kisan PayCard is an innovative credit delivery
mechanism to meet the production credit
requirements of the farmers in a timely and hassle-

free manner. The solution was launched in FY2020
with the scope of digital payments is huge and

can facilitate better access to financial services for
smallholder farmers by lowering transaction costs,
providing flexibility, and improving convenience. Once
smallholder farmers experience digital payments, it
will allow them to conduct fast, easy, safe, low-cost
transactions in small amounts on their Kisan PayCard
and mobile phones. This facilitates shifting from cash
to digital for all their crop cycle requirements.

In FY21, the Kisan PayCard was designed,
developed, and tested for card-based payment
solution for the deployment with the farmers.

Samunnati presented the Kisan PayCard in the
Visa Everywhere Initiative (VEI) India 2020 and
won the B2B Challenge from a total of 400+
applications.

A pilot was initiated for the introduction and

testing of acceptance of Kisan PayCard solution
by farmers through FPOs across 4 states (Bihar,
Maharashtra, Karnataka, and Madhya Pradesh).

Current extraordinary circumstances (COVID-19),

Samun"a“ \

anatt
2 S e

reemphasize on the importance of digital
transformation in agri ecosystem. Aligning to the
changes in agri ecosystem, deployment of Kisan
PayCard solution will be an important step towards
creating a transparent and economically viable value
chains for the ecosystem players.
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<9 Samunnati

A platform for Agri Startups & AgTech players

SAMUNNATI'S AGRI STARTUP
ENGAGEMENT PLATFORM

While working with Agri startups, Samunnati discovered

the prime intricacies that Agri startups and Agtech

players face and come across during Ideation, Launch

and Growth stage and launched the Agri Startup
Engagement Platform - “SAMAARAMBH’.

The platform aims at integrating and enhancing

SAMAARAMBH AIMS AT

@

1

Engaging with more agri startups and
deepen the reach to promote and enable
them to make markets work for small
holder farmers.

Initiating pilots for the deployment of
technologies provided by the startups for
better reach of technology.

Connecting to idea phase agri startups
to nurture and support the ecosystem
by connecting to incubators, and other
similar entities.

Developing new customized solutions for
startups based on the learning of the first
year of operations.

Innovating more services/solutions to be
offered to startups for better engagement
and nurturing.

capabilities of Agri startups and Aglech players

that are innovating solutions in the fields of fintech,
mechanization, lol, Value added services, Warehousing
and Storage, Inputs, Advisory and many other diverse
portfolios to benefit the agriculture ecosystem. The
platform aims to provide an array of support services
such as financial, advisory and market linkage solutions
to enable innovative Agri startup enterprises to grow.

During the pandemic, most
startups faced a gap in working
capital and market linkage and
hence Samaarambh witnessed a
good number of registrations and
engagements from the startups.
The team witnessed a wide range of
startups registering on the platform
pertaining to stage of the startup,
geography, mode of operation, sub-
sectors, value chains, etc.

Samaarambh was launched on
August 15th’2020 and over 250+ agri
startups have registered for more
than 450 engagement opportunities.
Through Samaarambh, Agri Startup
Funding Committee has sanctioned
INR 1500 Lakhs to the agri startups.



Agrielevate

An Initiative of Samunnati

The key challenges faced by FPOs, as well as the
ecosystem players trying to address their issues
include information asymmetry, lack of access to
network channels and financial intermediation.
As an ecosystem leader, Samunnati launched Agri
Elevate on national Farmer’s Day in FY 2021.

Agri Elevate, an online platform acts as a self-
functioning ecosystem, all the agri ecosystem
players, including but not limited to incubators,
lenders, new age start-ups, agri ecosystem
solution providers can interact with each other
to serve their needs. Further, Farmers & their
collectives as FPOs will be at the core for all
initiatives of this platform and will be the primary
beneficiaries of this initiative.

Agri Elevate operates as a ‘neutral platform’ with
linkage to Samunnati’s products and services
being kept separate from this platform. Therefore,
this Platform will be a not-for-profit initiative
spearheaded by Samunnati, with the sole aim

to facilitate connections in the agri-eco-system.
Since the launch 180+ FPOs and 73+ individuals
have registered on the platform and 235+ agri
enterprises registered across 6 main categories
and 10 Subcategories.

Serving as a neutral platform with linkage to
Samunnati’s products and services maintained
separately, Agri-Elevate is a not-for-profit
initiative, with the sole aim to facilitate
connections in the agri-eco-system.

Various digital solutions for the FPO were under
pilotin FY 2021 and was beta tested. Both the
platform was, officially launched in April 2021.

%@ AgFinMart

Powered by Samunnati

An initiative from Samunnati
seeking to build FPOs as an asset
class- facilitating the participation
of mainstream banks and financial
institutions. This portal enables
FPOs to explore financial solutions
for their business needs.

Samunnati

FPO®2+

Gateway

A single port of call for the Farmer
Producer Organizations (FPOs) to
interact with the Agri Eco System
and vice-versa. It is a technology
platform that delivers different
products and solutions to the FPO
from Samunnati as well as from
other eco system partners.

SAMUNNATI
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» SAMUNNATI
TRADE SOLUTIONS

Samunnati’s Agro clients are divided into two categories:

Fruits & Vegetables Non-F&V
(F&V)

52} 4

The services would include aggregation,

market linkages (bill-to ship-to model), imports Exchange registered members are big entities with their
and vendor bill discounting. clients having exposure in Agri domain. Onboarding

the Exchange members as Samunnati associates gives
Samunnati Agro witnessed 69.62% growth in them opportunity to serve short term funding/trade
the turnover at INR 592 Cr compared to INR requirement to their clients. We have onboarded SMC
346 Crin previous year and a trade receivable and FINDOC as Samunnati associates last year and did
of INR166 Cr IN FY 2021. The operations 15 Crores of trade business though clients introduced by
were expanded to new States such as Uttar these SAs. We have also onboarded India’s largest DSA
Pradesh, Punjab, Haryana and Delhi in FY 2021 ANDROMEDA with a very strong distribution presence.
and included new value chains such as fish We are working for a simplified small ticket size loan

meal, salt, malt, broken rice, and so on. product which can be easily marketed by these SAs.



£*NeML

Transforming Markets

TIE UP WITH NeML

NCDEX e Markets Limited (formerly
known as NCDEX Spot Exchange Ltd)

is the leading National Spot Exchange

in India. With a national presence, the
company has pioneered breakthrough
initiatives like Mandi Modernization
Program (MMP), e-Pledge, and
e-marketing. NeML works closely

with its ecosystem partners to create
efficient commodity markets services.
We facilitated financing for participants
of government auctions for various civil
supplies department settled through the
Exchange platform and over INR 12 Crores
funding was done using this route.

SEA FOOD INDUSTRY £

India is top shrimp exporter globally and industry
is expected to grow at CAGR of 4.5% for next

five years. We made inroads into Shrimp value
chain, where there is huge opportunity to work
with Shrimp suppliers from producing areas and
processors/exporters of value-added products.
Samunnati partnered with various value chain
participants on supply side and demand side and
could help them operate at higher equilibrium.
This year we onboarded shrimp processors
including Sreeragam Exports, Bone Exports,
Bhimraj Exports, Penver Products limited. On
supply side we engaged with suppliers like Shiva
Industries, Konark Sea Foods, SM Marines, APR
sea Foods etc. Disbursement of Rs. 12 crores
were done in the sea food value.

In sugar sector team worked on two new models
1) Advance Payment to Mills 2) E buy Sugar
Platform. Trader’s face working capital gap for
arranging same. We worked with JK Enterprises
on similar model under trade structure.
Disbursement to tune of Rs.17 Crore was done
under this model. Sugar Millers and traders
engage in buying and selling of commodities
through platform. For Samunnati it presents an
opportunity, where we are introduced to multiple
suppliers and buyers of commodity as this
platform acts as aggregator platform for the
industry participants. Disbursement of Rs. 8 Cr
was made through this model.

s

s
z
BROKER MODEL

Commodity brokers were engaged on
brokerage basis to introduce buyers and
sellers for market linkage of commodity.
This model provides quicker access to
market participants and experience of
brokers also helps in assessing social
capital and trade capital of participants.
Commaodityt Brokers BB Cotton and
McDonald Pelz were appointed as brokers
under this model. This year market Linage
trades was done with cotton millers like
Bannari Amman, East Man Spinning Mills,
Sunny Trexim Private Limited, Raghunath
Agrotech. On Supply side ginners from
Karnataka acted as suppliers. We
engaged with ginners like MAG Cotton,
Ganesh Industries, Tulsi Cotton Industries,
Anjali Cotton Traders, Karnataka Cotton
Industries, Sri Ghodalaxmi Industries,
Bhansali Ginning and Pressing factory.
Disbursement of Rs. 8 Cr was made under
broker model during the year 2020-21.

J
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AWARENESS CREATION s,

The year 2020-21 started with COVID-19 cases leading to disruption in overall markets. It was the

need of an hour to educate our FPOs about the alternative platforms to trade. Futures provide a

robust platform to hedge and sell the commodities, even the payments are guaranteed through.

We conducted webinars for FPOs of Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, Gujarat, and

Karnataka to educate them about the importance and benefits of trade in derivatives market.

Registration as Pledgee with NERL and pledge
transactions

Samunnati would focus to provide this solution to more
FPCs from other geographies producing the commodities
traded on Exchange platform.

Hedging of BMGF project FPCs on NCDEX
Samunnati would keep on building the capacity of BMGF
project linked FPCs for the price risk management and
output market linkage.

Farm gate linkages with buyers

FPCs generally sell the aggregated commodities in the
local market or to the local traders. In a quest to provide
the FPCs a stable market linkage for their commodities
we helped FPCs to connect with institutional buyers for
Soybean, Maize, Wheat and Mustard Seeds. Samunnati
is continuously scouting for FPCs to link with the nearest
available buyers and with the AMLA center approach we
are hopeful of connecting more FPCs for their output
market linkage.

Tie up with IFFCO Kisan Sanchar Ltd.

Samunnati is under process to have a tie up with Kisan
Finance (subsidiary of IFFCO) to work together on various
fronts like

1. Co-lending to FPOs for their input and output linkages
2. Tractor Financing

3. Value added Ag-tech services offering of IKSL

NAFED and FIFA

NAFED acts as central agency for procurement and sales
of commodity. Samunnati engaged with NAFED in Bihar for
sales of Maize procured by BISCOMAUN. BISCOMAUN act
as local procurement agency for NAFED. FIFA is taken over
by NAFED with an aim to support Cooperative societies
and FPCs by linking them to markets for their Agriculture
Produce as well as supply of agricultural inputs.

Following engagements are being explored
with FIFA

FPO institutional building and capacity
building

Collaborate with FIFA in increasing
Membership base

Facilitate setting up E-Kisan Mandi
Customised working capital offerings to
FIFA members

CCRL onboarding, Products and
geographies: We are in process to
register SamFin as a pledgee with them
to enable our linked FPOs to get pledge
financing in products like Cotton, Mentha
oil, Cardamom and Rubber. The potential
geographies will be Maharashtra, Gujarat,
Kerala, UP and Karnataka.

Work with Exchange members for their
financial requirements

Exchange registered members generally
trade on Exchange platform for the
registered clients and their proprietary
trades. Here, we can find opportunity to
fund the members for taking deliveries
from Exchange. We are willing to do one
such pilot in this year and on successful
completion of loan we will extend the
services to other Exchange members.



i
4

The main demand from FPOs is both input and output (direct
market) linkages to reduce cost of cultivation and increase returns.
Samunnati Agro facilitates the trade by filling in the financial gaps
and working capital crunch through Samunnati by becoming an
internal player in the process and billing it to seller and shipping

to buyer. It provides market access to its FPO clients by matching
the demand created by its network of institutional buyers with

the supply from the FPOs. Market linkages to FPOs through
trading enables Samunnati to better understand FPOs and provide
customised financial solutions to players across the value chain.

In FY 2021, 200 FPOs and 282 institutional buyers
were onboarded for market linkages across 7 States
(Gujarat, Maharashtra, Telangana, Andhra Pradesh,
Madhya Pradesh and Tamil Nadu) and have
successfully traded 181 commodities via bill-to-ship
to model with the gross margin of INR 0.37 Cr.
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Samunnati is an equal opportunity employer.
Samunnati Group focuses on continuous learning Samunnati took adequate steps to ensure
and development of its employees. As on March health and safety of employees. As
31, 2021, Samunnati Group has a total of 446

employees on its payroll. The Group strengthened

an employer, it was our responsibility
to ensure the safety of our employees.
Crisis management teams were formed

the needs of the growing business and has to analyse the crisis and to take timely
onboarded ~130 employees from the sources like actions. Samunnati’s commitment to
Campus, employee reference, Linkedin, Naukri etc. growing despite challenges has certified us

a Great Place to Work®
MEASURES s¥voris emeloves

Samunnati restricted Samunnati instituted Sanitisation of key All critical teams who

all non-essential travel mandatory work-from- office locations work from home

and started focusing home for large locations and reduced checked in with

on virtual meetings. ensuring lean staffing. office presence to business continuity
business-critical plans and highlighted

teams. issues, if any, daily.



TRAINING

PROGRAMS sttt

In the amid of Covid-19, trainings were conducted
online over zoom. Few of the crucial trainings

conducted are as below. -
Training

A total of 26 batches of trainings were conducted

Induction Programme Samunnati Swaagat which included AVCF Training, Prevention of Sexual

Samunnati Swaagat was revamped to welcome Harassment at Workplace, Policies on travel/

our new joiners into the organisation. This was reimbursements, employment of relatives’ policy,
launched on 11January 2021. A HR Buddy was also etc., £&S Policy and IT Security Policy with a total of
allocated to each employee for them to feel more 1080+ participants.

welcomed on their first day:.

~10 batches of Induction programs were Various initiatives were initiated such as Sam-
conducted covering total onboarded employees, Mitra - to nudge a connect with our colleagues
with average batch size of 8 participants. and get to know them better, Sam Milan - an

~ 18, covering organisational policies, genetic engagement to feel connected at a more

code, core values, systems walkthrough, our personal level within their regions and Samvaad
solutions, org structure, introduction to teams etc. — an initiative to increase awareness on various

topics ranging from Covid safety, employee well-
being, OKRs, Linkedin learning, etc.

As an organisation, Samunnati has contributed
10 EL's of each employee towards Covid Relief as
part of CSR, Covid Policy including contract staff
like security, & housekeeping.

Samunnati ensured Engaged with mental well- Regular communication with employees and
adequate medical being partner IWill, to provide other senior management team members
coverage under our individual support to employees led by CEO, Executive Director and Human
Group Insurance in cases of anxiety, stress or Resources on measures being taken by
plans. mental health related concerns the company which includes COVID-19
and held meditation sessions in protocols with regular updates, advisory from
collaboration with Heartfulness. authorised agencies, revised policies.
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Having envisioned the
significance of cutting-
edge technology and data
driven decision making,
we have implemented
three major systems in FY
2021 to support the core
business and enabling
functions:

LMS LOS SUN
INFOR

Current LMS lacks certain key Last year we have submitted the
features like audit trail & other need to implement the LOS and
regulatory requir ts and the following is the status. LOS
9 yrequirements an ) g Sun Infor ERP was
subsequent internal review it was implemented as the Loan .
o implemented to meet
was decided a more robust, Origination System in Samunnati
) ) all aspects of finances,
sophisticated application to for the AE vertical. This system . . .
i including accounting
meet our growing business will be further extended to all
measures, revenue and
requirement and to meet the other products gradually. LOS
) ) expense schedules,
compliance requirements. Oracle helps to perform real time
T wages, and balance sheet
Loans from Oracle Corporation validation of PAN No, GST, TIN, ) .
has b | dand b b . Bank verification. Sun Infor ERP
as been implemented an assport, Driving License, Ban L
P P 9 ) system is live for NBFC
currently in parallel run. This Account, CIBIL and High Mark . .
business and parallel run is
system meets RBI and other bureau scores and enables better .
) - in progress for Sam Agro.
regulatory requirements such as TAT for credit underwriting and
limit management, audit trails helps sustain portfolio quality.

and so on.



TECHNOLOGY
INITIATIVES

Samunnati has taken

up the following
initiatives towards
energy conservation and
technology absorption:

f
Linking buyers and sellers using online
market linkage platforms like NCDEX and
reducing the multiple movements of the
produce thereby reducing transportation
costs and carbon emissions.
\.
(

Virtual meetings, reviews, planning and
mobile based learning sessions help

reduce carbon footprints.
Usage of solar power

STARMBEERN NAT ANNUAL REPORT 20
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Registered as a not-for-profit company under section 8
of companies act 2013 and involved in activities as per
schedule 7 from section 135 of the companies act 2013.

Samunnati Foundation is an innovation
led social impact entity determined to
improve the livelihoods of the farming
community and the stakeholders in
Agri ecosystem. The entity thrives

to make a tangible difference in the
livelihoods of unserved/ underserved
communities of the agricultural
ecosystem. The constituents of such
communities include smallholder
farmers highly prone to risks of
agriculture, aspirational youth from
farming community lacking resources
for skill development and potential
Agri entrepreneurs lacking resources,
support and exposure from the industry.

Grama-unnati
Create a conducive village ecosystem by bringing
socio economic transformations in a sustained way.

Fellowship
Nurture change agents to transform Agri Ecosystem
by empowering rural youth

North East Outreach Program
Engage with Agri ecosystem in North Eastern states
to provide a sustainable means to livelihood.

Community Kitchen
Serve the underserved communities by providing
nutritious food and job creation for women.



OUTLOOK

FOR FY 2022

Grama-unnati

Replicable SOPs to be devised for PALM
(Participatory Learning Meet) activities and
develop further intervention strategies at village
level to reach at least one lakh farmers.

Fellowship

Aim to train 100 progressive Farmers with a size
of 25-member batch. Initiate on field support
programs for entrepreneurs.

FPO Academy

Develop, deploy and manage an online
repository of all capacity building material on
farming practices for the development of FPO
stakeholders. Targeted FPO is more than 800.

Agritlevate

Deploy and manage an FPO centric self-functioning
ecosystem with the sole aim to facilitate connections in
Agri ecosystem. Target is to achieve 5000 registrations, as
of now more than 200 FPOs and 290 AF has registered.

Policy & Advocacy Group

Bring awareness and stimulate advocacy to harness
opportunities to scope policy strategies, initiatives and
Government programs.

Centre of Excellence

Develop nodal hubs of knowledge imparting best
practices, training & infra demonstrable for farming
communities.
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FINDING GROWTH IN

COLLABORATION

Post the lockdown announced by Govt of
India during COVID-19’s first wave in March
2020, the Indian economy started showing
signs of getting back to normalcy in response
to the staggered easing of restrictions in the
month of June 2020. Samunnati has worked
very closely with agri-ecosystem players to
ensure continuity of ‘essential services’” as
designated by the government. Samunnati has
supported various key agri sub-sectors during
these volatile times — providing significant
funding support to important value chains like
sugar, seafood and cotton.

Samunnati also established market linkages
for our network FPOs with large sectoral
corporates like Ruchi Soya, Adani Wilmar and
ITC and enabled higher efficiencies within agri
value chains. In the Fresh segment, Samunnati
is now working with all major modern retail
and e-commerce entities like MORE, Big
Basket, Ninjakart and Waycool.

In line with our B2B2C model of outreach in agri
value chains, Samunnati has established an
anchor partnership with Swiggy, India’s largest
online food ordering and delivery platform. This
partnership will enable the company to lend to
Swiggy restaurant partners for both market linkage
for backend supplies as well as extend receivable
finance solutions. Similarly, we have forged an
anchor partnership with Solv, a B2B e-commerce
SME marketplace, 100% subsidiary of Standard
Chartered Bank, United Kingdom.



SOURCE

OF FINANCE

In FY 20-21, Samunnati has raised debt of
INR 1022 Cr from domestic and international
banks and financial institutions: INR 692

Cr in Samunnati Finance and INR 230 Cr

in Samunnati Agro Solutions. Samunnati

has tapped different avenues to raise debt:
issuing NCDs under the TLTRO (Targeted
Long-Term Repurchase Operations) window,
Market Linked Debentures and External
Commercial Borrowings.

The asset quality and the significant
impending business plan has enabled
CRISIL (affiliate of S&P) in reaffirming

the credit rating of BBB+ (Stable) for
Samunnati. In FY 2020-21, we have received
a credit rating upgrade of A- (Stable)

from Infomerics, another rating agency
registered with SEBI and accredited by RBI.
This has helped open more avenues in
engaging with different lenders as well as in
negotiating lower costs of borrowing.

We continue to forge partnerships with
international institutions to support liquidity

for our journey. Samunnati has raised a large
long-term debt facility from the United States
International Development Finance Corporation
(USDFC), the development finance institution of
the United States federal government. Raised
under the ECB route, the funds will be used

for asset creation in agri value chains. We also
issued NCDs to funders such as FMO, Triodos
Bank, Symbiotics and Blue Orchard.

The above fund-raising has taken place

in the context of the continued downturn
in financial markets in FY2020-21 and

an increasing risk-aversion towards the
NBFC sector, especially in the context

of the large originators from the NBFC
and housing finance space. This risk-off
approach from lenders compounded

in quarters 2 & 3, given the prevailing
uncertainty in financial markets with the
onset of COVID-19 and the disruptions in
operations of most corporate entities and
financial institutions, due to the lockdown
that had been imposed in many parts of
India during the initial phase of FY 20-21.

Under the above circumstances,
Samunnati took precautionary
measures to conserve liquidity to
support business requirements

of existing customers, operating
expenditure and debt service
obligations. Samunnati benefits from
a benign regulatory environment.
The central bank, RBI has already
launched measures to release further
liquidity into the economy to cushion
any adverse market impact and a
willingness to provide dispensations
to banks & financial institutions for

providing relief to affected borrowers.
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Samunnati navigated this crisis successfully

given its strong capitalisation and solvency,

and business model that focused on working
capital requirements of agricultural value chains.
Samunnati’s book had a composition of largely
short-term assets, while the liabilities are longer-
term; financed by term loans from banks and
financial institutions. Hence, Samunnati has a
positive cumulative ALM mismatch upto 6 months.

Explaining the unique business proposition
to financial institutions has been challenging
as Samunnati is an agri value chain entity and
not an MFI (an asset class now understood
by lenders). Our engagement with state-
owned banks has just commenced, given
our credit rating upgrade to A- category. The
risk aversion amongst lenders has led us to
maintain higher liquidity and lower leveraging
on our equity, given the emphasis on high
capitalisation. The prevailing circumstances
have also resulted in downward rigidity of
the interest rates on our borrowings, despite
significant improvement in credit quality and
overall good liquidity in the economy.




ECOSYSTEM

INITIATIVE

Samunnati has explored other innovative

options to channel funds to its customers. The
Company has initiated India’s first co-origination
partnership in agriculture finance in FY19-20,
with a leading international bank. The initial
outreach of this program is to provide agri-
enterprises with working capital solutions. This
successful partnership has helped Samunnati in
engaging with further partnerships with many
banks. Further, Samunnati is in discussions with
leading financial institutions for direct origination
partnerships and participating in pooled loan
issuances for agri value chain originators. These
programs help impart stability to the funding
profile of the Company with liquidity available on-

tap. Samunnati’s efforts to catalyse other financial

institutions into its customers through the debt
syndication route are also bearing fruit.

Samunnati is also working to create a safety
net to propel its outreach in hitherto under-
penetrated, higher-risk borrower segments.
Samunnati is one of three Indian partner
financial institutions under a loan portfolio
credit guarantee from USDFC. This facility
will enable Samunnati to create a portfolio
of ~USD 25 million- extending loans to FPOs,
ag-tech companies, and companies engaged
in clean energy solutions for the agriculture
sector, with a clear goal of supporting

smallholder farmers, including female farmers.

We are already working to enable finance in the
sustainable landscapes sector in partnership
with the United States Agency for International
Development (USAID) and Rabo Foundation. We
have a credit guarantee from these agencies to
help us create a loan portfolio of ~INR 35 Cr to
support activities that reduce greenhouse gas

emissions from land use (including from forestry,

agroforestry, and agriculture) through improved

land management and resource efficiency. Another

outcome would be the generation of sustainable

livelihoods for communities engaged in agriculture,
agroforestry and for forest dependent communities

in biodiversity rich regions. In FY 2021, Samunnati

extended loans to 11 new FPOs and Agri Enterprises,

with total disbursement until date of ~INR 18 Cr.

We have been supported by our long-standing

partners Rabo Foundation since 2019 under

a portfolio guarantee focused on the lending

to nascent and emerging FPOs. Under this

program, Samunnati has been able to support
credit to 100+ FPOs, reaching out to nascent

FPOs in their first few cycles of credit. A total

FPO portfolio of ~INR 100 Mn was made under

this guarantee program.
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NETWORK

ECOSYSTEM

Aligning to the changes in
Agri ecosystem, Samunnati
believes that deployment

of technology and digital
solutions is an important
step towards creating a
transparent and economically
viable value chains for the
ecosystem players.

£Qglech

Summit 2020

SAMUNNATI PARTNERS WITH ET
VIRTUAL AGTECH SUMMIT 2020

Samunnati is proud to be the Title Partner of
the Virtual Aglech Summit 2020 hosted by ET.
This is India’s 1st Virtual Summit on Aglech
with the theme: “Envisioning Business Growth:
Disruptive Technologies: IN and POST COVID
Era”. The Summit initiated thought provoking
discussions and advocated technology
innovation and practices for business growth
at the time of crisis. Samunnati believes that as
an ecosystem player we have a responsibility
to make tailormade tech solutions for small
holder farmers and farmer collectives in the
areas of access of input (financial and non-
financial), farmer data management, market
linkages and more. We at Samunnati, have
kept our ears to the ground and constantly
engaged with the customers to respond to
their requirements.

Samunnati launched its Webinar Series

— ‘In Talks with Samunnati: Agriculture

in the New Normal — Making Markets

work for Smallholder Farmers’ to initiate
crucial discussions with industry experts.
Samunnati has been conducting various
webinars under the series including virtual
round table discussion, national consultative
workshop and regional webinar.



VIRTUAL ROUND TABLE
DISCUSSION

The first session in the series, virtual round table
discussion on, ‘Are alternative markets the way
forward to tackle disruptions in the Agri supply
chain?” was organised on 16th May, 2020.

NATIONAL CONSULTATIVE
WORKSHOP

Samunnati brought together ~50 representatives
from FPO Federations across the country in co-
creating a roadmap in overcoming the challenges
of our times and tapping the new market linkage
opportunities generated by this crisis. The
workshop was to understand what requirements
to be done in the next one year or so and the
prioritisation of the same.

THE REGIONAL WEBINAR SERIES

To understand the key challenges faced by
FPOs as well as, solutions and new ways of
working that we could adopt collectively and
to get the grassroot perspectives from the agri
practitioners, Samunnati organised regional
webinar in 5 vernacular languages including
Tamil, Kannada, Marathi, Hindi and Oriya.
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#glech

Summit 2020

ET START-UP AWARD IN SOCIAL
ENTERPRISE

For the scale and complexity of the challenges that
itis attempting to tackle in agricultural finance
through its market-linkage model, Samunnati was
the overwhelming favourite of the jury in the social
enterprise category.

VEI

VISA EVERYWHERE INITIATIVE
VISA ovoveemirmemnnnenninnnans

VISA INITIATIVE

Samunnati is excited to announce our win in
India’s first-ever Visa Everywhere Initiative for
transforming B2B Payments with our digital
payment’s solution. In 2020, Samunnati was
selected by Visa Initiative as one of the 11 start-
ups for the Visa Everywhere Initiative which
tasks start-ups to solve the payment and
commerce challenges of tomorrow.

—

GREAT PLACE TO WORK

Samunnati’s unparalleled commitment to
growing despite setbacks and trying times
has certified it a Great Place To Work®.
We are invested in helping both our
Samunnati family and the agri ecosystem
grow holistically.

Leaders

IMPACT AWARDS

REAL LEADERS AWARD

Samunnati has secured a place (Rank 83)
in Top 100 Companies globally, under the
Real Leaders Impact Award 2020 - the
premier ranking of companies making

a positive impact on their communities
and the world. The Award honours the
companies that are achieving great
financial, environmental and social returns
by creating value for all their stakeholders.




ISO

Between 18th to 20th of March 2021, both Samunnati Financial Intermediation and Services Pvt
Ltd and Samunnati Agro Solutions Pvt Ltd were successfully 1ISO 9001:2015 certified. Quality is
a way of life at Samunnati and an independent verification by a certification body adds more
value. This certification will help in strengthening the organization through standardization of
processes, enhance Samunnati as a brand in the market thereby boosting investor confidence.

SAMUNNATI'S
ENVIRONMENTAL

a SOCIAL POLICY ...

Samunnati leverages on the social and trade
capital in buyer seller relationships through
non-traditional sourcing, risk assessment
and mitigation, aided by technology, thereby
building quality business that is sustainable
and results in inclusive growth. The entire
organisation works around this genetic code
which is non-negotiable and is embedded in
all the processes adopted by the Company.

Samunnati’s Environmental & Social Policy
reinforces its commitment towards sustainable
development and integrates environmental
and social considerations into decision-
making and operations to effectively manage
environmental and social risks and enhance
positive impacts thus improving outcomes.
Samunnati will strive to influence its borrowers
on incorporating environmental and social
considerations in their business operations.

SAMUNNATI THROUGH THEIR
TRANSACTIONS WILL THUS:

not extend loans to any activity that features
in Samunnati’s ‘Exclusion List” or is prohibited
by local, national or international laws, as
applicable.

influence borrowers to comply with national
environmental and social legal requirements.

encourage borrowers to adopt international
good practices and safeguards, as relevant.

promote prevention and control of pollution to
protect the environment.

promote resource use efficiency and sustainable
production of living and natural resources.

promote safe and healthy work environment and
treating all workers fairly.

proactively engage with the stakeholders
towards timely redressal of grievances; and

protect its borrower through robust processes
and effective communication.
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ACCOUNT ACQUISITION

This involves careful selection of customers
based on its defined credit policy. Clear
definition of prudential norms in terms

of client wise exposures, sector wise
exposures are de-fined and monitored
through a strong governance mechanism.
Account Management - Considering

the nature of customers who are repeat
borrowers in nature under revolving credit
facility, the account management is done
through periodic visits to ascertain end
usage of funds, assess early warning
signals and ensure completion of post
sanction covenants, if any.

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

Sound NPA management strategy has been put
in place to ensure the risk appetite as defined by
the board are adhered to. Portfolio triggers and
mechanisms to ensure fresh slippages are well
within the desired levels have been putin place.

FRAUD MANAGEMENT

A fresh Framework has been put in place to filter
and sieve red flags and loss events and protect
the portfolio from fraud events / occurrences.
Patterns, pointers, triggers are all documented
so that the prevention and deterrence of fraud is
addressed at all levels, organisation wide.



The framework is guided by the tenets which are elicited
below.

Governance and Culture

Governance sets the organisation’s tone, reinforcing the
importance of, and establishing oversight responsibilities
for, enterprise risk management. Culture pertains to
ethical values, desired behaviours, and understanding of
risk across the organisation.

Strategy and Objective-Setting

Enterprise risk management, strategy, and objective-
setting work together in the strategic-planning process.
A risk appetite is established and aligned with strategy;
business objectives put strategy into practice while
serving as a basis for identifying, assessing, and
responding to risk.

Performance

Risks that may impact the achievement of strategy and
business objectives are identified and assessed. Risks
are prioritised by severity in the context of risk appetite.
The organisation then selects risk responses and takes
a portfolio view of the amount of risk it has assumed.
The results of this process are reported to key risk
stakeholders.

Review and Revision

By reviewing entity performance, an organisation can
consider how well the enterprise risk management
components are functioning over time and in light of
substantial changes, and what revisions are needed.

Information, Communication, and Reporting
Enterprise risk management requires a
continual process of obtaining and sharing
necessary information, from both internal and
external sources, which flows up, down, and
across the organisation.

Action plans are deliberated, acted upon and
tracked to ensure health of the portfolio is
within acceptable standards. Legal actions
wherever required are being initiated. The Board
is kept informed periodically of the significant
risks associated with the business of the
Company and the various risk identification

and mitigation processes put in place by the
management.

The Company has an active compliance
function which attends to all compliances
in a timely and appropriate manner
designed to provide comfort to the different
regulators. The Company has complied with
all the mandatory regulatory compliances
as required under the Reserve Bank of India
guidelines, the Companies Act, various tax
statutes and other reqgulatory bodies.
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Dear Members,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to present the seventh Annual Report
together with the Audited Financial Statement of Samunnati Financial Intermediation &
Services Private Limited (“the Company” or “Samunnati”) for the year ended March 31, 2021.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The standalone results of your Company are given in the table below.

(INR MN)
Particulars Year ended 31 March, 2021 Year ended 31 March, 2020*
Revenue from Operations (A) 1,603.86 1,281.81
Other Income (B) 72.97 78.57
Total Income (A+B) 1,676.83 1,360.38
Expenditure
(Including Interest & Depreciation) 1,674.06 1,359.13
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 2.77 1.25
Less: Tax expenses:
1. Current tax 0.00 92.15
2. Deferred tax (0.96) (69.00)
Profit/ (Loss) after tax 373 (21.90)
Other Comprehensive Income A (11
Total Comprehensive Income 7.84 (23.01)
*previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary

The summarised consolidated results of your Company are given in the table below. (INR MN)
Particulars Year ended 31 March, 2021 Year ended 31 March, 2020*
Revenue from Operations (A) 9,207.09 7,161.82
Other Income (B) 8.44 99.12
Total Income (A+B) 9,215.53 7,260.94
Expenditure
(Including Interest & Depreciation) 9,301.75 7,274.81
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (86.22) (13.87)
Less: Tax expenses:
1. Current tax 0.00 100.57
2. Deferred tax (20.11) (80.09)
Profit/ (Loss) after tax (66.11) (34.35)
Other Comprehensive Income 415 (0.99)
Total Comprehensive Income (61.36) (35.34)
* previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary




Summary of Operations (Standalone)

Company achieved 30.3% growth in AUM which has gone up by INR 2,170.53 MN to INR 9,676.19
MN from INR 7,428.27 MN in previous year.

Revenue from operations grew by INR 322.05 MN (25.1%) to INR 1,603.86 MN from INR 1,281.81 MN.
Other Income was lower by INR 560 MN (-7.1%) at INR 72.97 MN from INR 78.57 MN.

The annual total comprehensive income after tax grew by INR 30.85 MN to INR 7.84 MN from a
loss of INR 23.01 MN.

During the year Company raised debt funding of INR 6,91775 MN from Indian Banks, NBFCs and
foreign investors, despite adverse financial market conditions.

Performance of Subsidiary

Samunnati Agro Solutions Pvt. Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which deals in
trading of agro commodities. The revenues grew substantially by INR 1722.83 MN (29.1%) to INR
764775 MN from INR 5,924.92 MN.

EBITDA decreased by INR 1177 MN (-12.2%) to INR 84.52 MN from INR 96.29 MN.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Samunnati was incorporated in the year 2014 as a Private Limited Company under the provisions of
the Companies Act 2013, with its registered office in Chennai. Samunnati, a non-banking financial
company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India, is a specialised Agri Value Chain enabler
that provides innovative and customised financial and non-financial solutions. The Company was
founded by Mr. Anil Kumar S G who began his career as a banker, with an experience of over 29
years in the rural & retail financial services, microfinance and financial inclusion sectors.

Samunnati leverages on the ‘social capital’ and ‘trade capital” in buyer-seller relationships via
Samunnati Aggregators', through non-traditional sourcing, risk assessment and mitigation, aided
by cutting edge technology and an experienced management team with deep domain expertise.
All these contribute to building a quality business that is sustainable and results in inclusive
growth. These values are embedded in the genetic code of Samunnati and demonstrated in the
way the Company’s processes operate.

With an aim to offer holistic, suitable solutions to the agri-value chain players, Samunnati Agro
Solutions Private Limited (“Samunnati Agro”) was incorporated on October 14, 2016 as a wholly
owned subsidiary of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited. Samunnati
Agro offers trade facilities and market linkages to agri-value chain players.

With an institutionalised framework in place, the Company and its subsidiary are present in over
100 value chains including pilots across more than 21 states.

Samunnati has also incorporated Samunnati Foundation, a Company set up under Section 8 of
the Companies Act 2013, on March 09, 2020, to undertake various Corporate Social Responsibility
activities for Samunnati group and also in partnership with other entities.

'Samunnati Aggregators are key partners who possess trade capital and social capital and whose interests are aligned
with that of Samunnati. They give Samunnati access to potential clients with social capital and trade capital and also

substantially participate in the risks in dealing with such clients.
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During the year, to further the synergies of agri related technology, the Company has acquired
Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited (“Kamatan”), as a wholly owned subsidiary with effect
from April 16, 2021 by way of acquisition of 3,44,848 equity shares constituting the entire paid-
up share capital of Kamatan’s existing shareholders, for consideration other than cash. With
this acquisition, we hope to enhance the combined market linkage outreach of Samunnati and
Kamatan to Farmer Producer Organisations (FPOs), small traders, farmer aggregators, and Agri
SMEs - helping them connect to corporate buyers and drive higher farmer income. Recognising
the impact, a technology-led approach to agriculture can create, Samunnati has joined hands
with Kamatan to bring the last-mile benefits of digitalisation to FPOs and Agri enterprises.
Further, Kamatan’s expertise in agricultural institution building, farming best practices, farmer
collectives, distribution, logistics, and technology coupled with Samunnati’s holistic solutions
approach through Aggregation, Market Linkages, and Advisory services (AMLA) is expected to
help agri value chains operate at a higher equilibrium.

OUTLOOK
Samunnati’s Approach in COVID-19 Scenario

Samunnati has been working with FPOs on supply side and with Agri-Enterprises (AEs) on
demand side across the country to understand and resolve the issues at ground level and we
have strived towards providing market access to producers and timely supply to various value
chain players to bridge the gap. We believe that agri-sector will continue to offer significant
support to India’s economy in future as well.

Unique challenges during ongoing COVID-19 crisis have prompted Samunnati to find innovative
ways to connect our customers to other value chain players and the end-consumers. Samunnati
has been striving to develop alternative links between end-consumers and households to
producers in the current extraordinary times. We have been witnessing multiple examples and
use cases where we were able to work with our AE clients to support them in reaching out to
households and residential complexes to supply essential commodities including perishable
fruits & vegetables as well as staples directly. In addition to this, Samunnati has been able to
successfully link farm producers to online aggregators and grocery retailing platforms in some
cases, ensuring timely offtake of perishable farm produce and better profit realisation for

small holder farmers. We have supported many of our AE clients playing critical roles in raw
material supply to India’s top institutional players in agri-processing space, and this has been an
encouraging tale of showcasing adaptability and resilience of agri-sector to the COVID-19 crisis
that we discussed above.



Samunnati Regulatory Package for COVID-19

To provide much needed relief to with our customers and stand by them during these troubled
times, Samunnati offered a moratorium on the repayment of loans falling due between March
1, 2020 and May 31, 2020, in accordance with the COVID-19 - Regulatory Package notification
dated March 27, 2020 issued by Reserve Bank of India (“RBI").

While extending support to the customers as per the COVID-19 Regulatory package, Samunnati
approached each customer segment distinctly and the details are given below.

¢ Farmer Producer Organisations (FPO)- FPO(AC), FPO (WCTL) and Retail - All customers
in these verticals were offered a moratorium period of up to 3 months (in line with RBI
Covid-19 Regulatory Package). All term and working capital loans with unpaid instalments/
interest payments falling due during the period March 01, 2020 to May 31, 2020 were given
moratorium with the new repayment dates as per the moratorium policy.

e InFY 2020-21, 80 FPOs have opted for moratorium. In instances where a customer didn’t
wish to avail the moratorium benefit in this segment, the original repayment schedule
remained in force.

e Agri Enterprises — For all customers in this segment and not covered in FPO segment,
whose loans have instalments or interest payments during the period March 01, 2020 till
May 31, 2020, Samunnati extended the moratorium benefit based on customer request
(anytime till May 31, 2020) on a case-to-case basis based on our assessment of the impact
of Covid-19 on the customer’s income and cashflows. In FY 2020-21, 41 Agri enterprises
have availed the moratorium.

Challenges & Gaps in Agriculture Financing

Agriculture and agriculture-based enterprises are unlike any other businesses, exposed to
multiple risks related to production, weather, prices and policy. This, coupled with lack of
financial data about agri-businesses and smallholder farmers, makes it difficult to adopt
conventional methods of credit assessment for financial institutions. Most plain vanilla
financial products are ill-suited to the cash flow requirements of an agri-business, which is
often cyclical in nature and varies from crop to crop and region to region.

Moreover, while there has been large-scale Government focus on agriculture sector and
priority sector lending norms in India, both microfinance institutions and banks have been
unable to adequately meet the financial needs of agricultural value chain players.

To ensure a sustainable and vibrant agricultural ecosystem, Government policies and financial
interventions need to be augmented and facilitated by other non-financial services, such as
advisory services and market linkages. Availability of these services and linkages will enable
development across the agriculture value chain.
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Samunnati’s Approach to Agriculture Financing

In addition to financial interventions, Samunnati offers co-financial and non-financial services
to its customers. Samunnati follows AMLA (Aggregation, Market Linkage and Advisory Services)
approach to provide holistic solutions to its customers.

Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company

The Company has transitioned to Ind-AS (Accounting Standards), format of reporting and
disclosures in the Financial Statements reflect the same. This has also necessitated restatement
of previous year’s (FY 2019-20) Financial Statements under Ind-AS (Accounting Standards).Your
Company has not made any other significant material changes and commitments during the FY
2020-21.

Dividend

The Directors of the Company do not recommend for any dividend for the year under review.

Transfer to reserves

Your Company has transferred INR 8.53 MN to statutory reserve as required under Section 45-1C
of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Change in the nature of business, if any

There were no changes to the nature of business of the Company during the FY 2020-21.

Non - Acceptance of Deposits

During the year under review, your Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits
from public in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and consequently, no amount on
account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on March 31, 2021.

Internal financial control over financial reporting

The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are commensurate with
the size and nature of business of the Company. Further, the internal financial control system

of the Company is supplemented with internal audit, regular reviews by the management and
checks by the Statutory Auditors. It provides reasonable assurance in respect of providing
financial and operational information, complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding of
assets of the Company, prevention and detection of frauds, accuracy and completeness of
accounting records and ensuring compliance with the Company’s policies. The Audit Committee
monitors this system and ensures adequacy of the same. The Statutory Auditors of the Company
also provide their opinion on the internal financial control framework of the Company.

During the year, no material or serious omissions and commissions have been observed by
the Auditors, reflecting the efficiency and adequacy of internal financial controls. The details
of adequacy of Internal Financial Controls are provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis Report.



Changes to Share Capital

During the year under review, there was no changes to the share capital of the Company.

Disclosure Regarding Issue of Equity Shares with Differential Rights

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with differential rights during the FY 2020-21.

Disclosure Regarding Issue of Employee Stock Options / Sweat Equity Shares

The Company currently administers an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) constituted in 2015.
The Board had approved the amended Employee Stock Option Plan 2019, at their Meeting held
on May 24, 2019 and the same was also approved by the Members at their Meeting held on
May 24, 2019. The ESOP was introduced with an intention to motivate employees to contribute
to the growth and profitability of the Company; as well as to create a sense of ownership and
participation amongst the employees.

In addition to the above, the Company administers Management Stock Option Plans (MSOP)
constituted in the years 2017 and 2019 to provide wealth creation opportunities to the Promoter
of the Company. It is to be noted that the Company is a registered startup and has been issued
a certificate of recognition as a ‘startup’ by the Government of India, with registration number
DIPP6002. Further, as per applicable law (Rule 12(1), Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014), a startup is permitted to issue employee stock options to its Promoter.

Disclosures under Rule 12(9)(a) to (i) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is as below:

Particulars Amount in INR

Outstanding Options at the beginning of the year — April 01, 2020* 93,635
Options Granted FY 2020-21 11,413
Options Vested in 2020-21 10,769
Options Exercised in 2020-21 =
Total No. of Shares arising as a result of exercise of option in FY 2020-21 -
Options Lapsed 2,483

Exercise Price (Weighted)

Variation of terms of options

3 Years & 4 Years - ESOP

Money realised by exercise of options

NIL

Total No. of Options in force as on March 31, 2021

1,02,565

Employee wise details of options granted to;

(1) key managerial personnel

Disclosed under MGT-9

exceeding one percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and
conversions) of the company at the time of grant;

(2) any other employee who has been granted options in any one year amounting to Nil
five percent or more of options granted during that year
(3) identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or Nil
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Capital Adequacy Ratio

The Company’s Capital Adequacy ratio stood at 40.6% which is well within the regulatory limits

applicable for NBFC- ND-SI as stipulated by the Reserve Bank of India.

Extract of the Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of annual return in Form MGT 9 is

annexed as Annexure | and uploaded on Company’s website on this link -

https://site.samunnati.com/notices/

Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Name of the Director DIN/PAN Category Changes during the year, if any
1. | Mr. Narasimhan Srinivasan 01501266 Independent Director Nil
2. | Mr. Sunil Gulati 00016990 Independent Director Nil
3. | Dr. Venkatesh Tagat 02728441 Independent Director Nil
4. | Mr. Mahendran Balachandran | 00121640 Nominee Director Nil
5. | Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan 06572288 Nominee Director Nil
6. | Mr. Akshay Dua 03144843 Nominee Director Nil
7. | Ms. Rekha Unnithan 08354141 Nominee Director Nil
8. | Mr. Anil Kumar S G 01189011 Director & CEO Nil
9. | Mr. Gurunath Neelamani 02799586 Wholetime Director Nil
10. | Mr. Ashok Dhamankar AECPD4476R | CFO (KMP) Nil
11. | Mr. Niranjan Chandra Shekar | ANBPN9694F | Company Secretary Resigned on May 29, 2020
12. | Ms. Ashwini Venkataraman ASBPA2554Q | Company Secretary Appointed w.e.f. November 06,
2020

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy, inter-alia, provides for criteria and qualifications for

appointment of Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, Board diversity, remuneration

to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, etc. The policy can be accessed at the following link:

https://site.samunnati.com/samunnati-financial-intermediation-and-services-private-limited/

Details of Meetings of the Board

The Directors of the Company met 7 (seven) times during the FY 2020-2021.

Date of Meeting No. of Directors who attended the Meeting
1 April 30, 2020 9/9
2 July 02, 2020 9/9
3 July 21, 2020 719
4 September 10, 2020 9/9
5 November 06, 2020 9/9
6 December 11, 2020 7/9
7 February 12, 2021 8/9




List of Committees
The Constitution of the Board Committees as of March 31, 2021 are as below:

1. Audit Committee
The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:
a) Mr. Sunil Gulati - Chairman
b) Mr. N. Srinivasan — Member
¢) Mr. Akshay Dua — Member

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows:

a) Mr. N. Srinivasan — Chairman
b) Mr. Sunil Gulati — Member
¢) Dr. Venkatesh Tagat - Member
d) Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan — Member
e) Ms. Rekha Unnithan — Member
f) Mr. Anil Kumar S G — Member

3. Risk Management Committee
The composition of the Risk Management Committee is as follows:

a) Mr. Sunil Gulati - Chairman
b) Mr. N. Srinivasan - Member
¢) Mr. Akshay Dua - Member
d) Mr. Anil Kumar S G - Member
e) Mr. N. Gurunath - Member
f) Mr. Madhu Varma Raja - Head of Risk — Member

4. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows:
a) Dr. Venkatesh Tagat - Chairman
b) Mr. Anil Kumar S G - Member
¢) Mr. N. Gurunath - Member

5. IT Strategy Committee
The composition of the IT Strategy Committee is as follows:
a) Mr. Sunil Gulati - Chairman
b) Mr. Anil Kumar S G - Member
¢) Mr. N. Gurunath - Member
d) Mr. Nitin Chaudhary - Chief Technology Officer
e) Mr. Dhanasekaran Sivaraj - Chief Information Officer

6. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as follows:

a) Dr. Venkatesh Tagat - Chairman
b) Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan - Member
¢) Mr. Anil Kumar S G - Member
d) Mr. N. Gurunath - Member
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7. Finance Committee*
The composition of the Finance Committee is as follows:
a) Mr. Anil Kumar S G - Member
b) Mr. Gurunath N - Member

*The Board of Directors had re-constituted the Finance Committee of the Company as a sub-Committee of the Board on February 12, 2021.

Details of Committee Meetings

During FY 2020-21, the following Committee Meetings were held:

Date of Meeting No. of Members who attended the Meeting
1 April 29, 2020 3/3
2 July 01, 2020 3/3
3 September 09, 2020 3/3
4 November 05, 2020 3/3
5 December 11, 2020 3/3
6 February 11, 2021 3/3

Date of Meeting No. of Members who attended the Meeting
1 July 01, 2020 6/6
2 September 09, 2020 6/6
November 05, 2020 6/6

Date of Meeting No. of Members who attended the Meeting
1 April 29, 2020 6/6
2 September 09, 2020 6/6
3 November 05, 2020 6/6
4 February 11, 2021 6/6

Date of Meeting No. of Members who attended the Meeting

1 February 12, 2021 3/3




Date of Meeting No. of Members who attended the Meeting

September 09, 2020 5/5
2 March 08, 2021 5/5

Date of Meeting No. of Members who attended the Meeting
1 February 12, 2021 3/4

Date of Meeting No. of Members who attended the Meeting
1. February 25, 2021 2/2
2. March 08, 2021 2/2
3. March 09, 2021 2/2
4. March 18, 2021 2/2
5. March 25, 2021 2/2
6. March 26, 2021 2/2
7. March 27, 2021 2/2
8. March 29, 2021 2/2
9. March 30, 2021 2/2
10. March 31, 2021 2/2

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments

The particulars of loan, investments and guarantee for FY 2020-21 have been provided in notes to
the Financial Statements of the Company.

Regulatory Compliance

The Company has complied with all the mandatory regulatory requirements as required under
the Reserve Bank of India guidelines, the Companies Act 2013, SEBI (LODR) Regulations and other
applicable tax statutes and regulations.

Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies as of March 31, 2021

As of March 31, 2021, the Company held two wholly owned subsidiaries — 1. Samunnati Agro
Solutions Private Limited that offers trading facilities and market linkages to Agri value chain
players; and 2. Samunnati Foundation, incorporated for furthering CSR activities by the Company
as on March 31, 2021.

The information as required under the first provision to Sub-Section (3) of Section 129 is given in
Form AOC-1in Annexure II.
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Related Party Transactions

Details of contracts or arrangements with related parties as per Section 188(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 for FY 2020-21 are given in form AOC 2 as Annexure IIl.

Details of Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals: Nil

Details of Credit Ratings of the Company during FY 2020-21

During the year under review, Rating Agencies reaffirmed / issued ratings to the Company, as under:

Changes/revisions of rating

Rating agency Ratings as on April 01, 2020 during the year, if any Ratings as on March 31, 2021
ICRA ICRA BBB(Stable) No Change ICRA BBB(Stable)
CARE CARE BBB(Stable) No Change CARE BBB(Stable)
CRISIL - Long term CRISIL BBB+(Stable) No Change CRISIL BBB+(Stable)
CRISIL - Short term CRISIL A2+ (Reassigned) No Change CRISIL A2+ (Reassigned)
Infomerics* NA New IVR A- (Stable)

*Rating effective from May 07, 2020.

Details of Debenture Trustee of the Company as on March 31, 2021

Name of the Debenture Trustee Complete Postal Address Email ID and Contact Number

Windsor, 6th floor, Office no.604,
Catalyst Trusteeship Limited CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz,
Mumbai - 400098

E mail ID: deesha.trivedi@ctltrustee.com
Contact No: 9833630277

Declaration from Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the Company have submitted declarations as required under
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) stating that they meet the criteria

of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of the Board,

the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the Act and the rules made
thereunder for appointment and confirm that they are independent of the Management.

Particulars of Employees

Details of the following employees are being disclosed as required under Section 197(12)
of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel Rules, 2014.



Name and

Age of the
Employee

Designation

Remuneration
(INR)

Nature of
Employment
and date of

commencement

of Employment

Qualifications
and experience
of the employee

Percentage
of equity
shares held
by the
employee
of the total
equity

Last
employment
held by such
employee
before joining
the company

Anil Kumar | Director & | 1,87,13,505 Full time, June | Master’s in 41.51% CEO - IFMR Rural
SG CEO 23,2014 management, MBA, Channels and
49 Years BA, Services Pvt Ltd
Banker with Over
28 years’ experience
Gurunath | Wholetime | 85,76,206 Full time from | B Sc - Physics, 0.05% President &
Neelamani | Director June 21, 2017 PGDSM - NIIT and Director General
57 years Banker with over 31 - Wali Hotels &
years of experience Resorts.
in the banking and
financial services
space. Started career
with TMB and
moved to ICICI and
served in various
roles for 15 years.
Ashok Group Chief | 1,32,77,778 Full time from | CA, CPA & ICAEW | NIL Group CFO -
Dhamankar | Financial August 9, 2019 | with more than NCML
52 years Officer 26 year’s post
qualification
experience in the
fields of finance,
accounts, treasury,
Agri, commodities,
risk management,
and pre-engineered
buildings.
The statement containing such particulars of employees as per the provisions of Section
197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are considered as market competitive
information and hence any of the stakeholders interested in obtaining the information can
write to the Company seeking the information. Pursuant to the provisions of the Section
136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the reports and accounts, as set out therein, are being
sent to all Members of the Company, excluding the aforesaid information and the same
is open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during working hours up
to the date of Annual General Meeting and if any member is interested in obtaining such
information, may write to the Company Secretary or CEO at the Registered Office of the
Company in this regard.
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Receipt of any Commission by MD/WTD from a Company or receipt of Commission/Remuneration from its
Holding or Subsidiary

The Company’s Directors have not received any commission/ remuneration from the Subsidiary Company.

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Your
Company believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual and endeavors

to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual
harassment. The policy on Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013, can be accessed at the following link:
https:/site.samunnati.com/samunnati-financial-intermediation-and-services-private-limited/

During the FY 2020-21, your Company has not received any complaints pertaining to sexual harassment.

Statutory Auditors, their report and notes to Financial Statements

The report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes to schedules is enclosed to this report. The
observations made in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory, contain no qualification, reservations,
adverse remarks and disclaimers and therefore do not call for any further comments.

The Members may note that pursuant to the applicability of Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory

Auditors of NBFCs issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide ref. no. RBI/2021-22/25 - DoS.CO.ARG/
SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021, as M/s Walker Chandiok& Co. LLP have already completed a term
of 6 (Six) years as Statutory Auditors of the Company as of March 31, 2021, they were required to step down
and consequently, had expressed their intention to resign as the Statutory Auditors of the Company with
effect from the conclusion of the ensuing 7th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to the proposed resignation of M/s Walker Chandiok& Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration
No. 001076N/N500013) as Statutory Auditors of the Company effective from the conclusion of the ensuing 7th
Annual General Meeting, the Board had at their Meeting held on July 29, 2021 recommended the appointment
of M/s PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 0039905/5200018) with effect
from the conclusion of the ensuing 7thAnnual General Meeting, subject to the approval of the Members

of the Company, in line with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Guidelines for
Appointment of Statutory Auditors of NBFCs issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide ref. no. RBI/2021-22/25
- D0S.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021.

Details of Frauds Reported by the Statutory Auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have examined the books as required
under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and have not reported any employee related fraud.

Cost Auditor and Cost Audit Report

The Company did not fall under the ambit of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 during FY 2020-21.



Secretarial Audit and Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors had appointed Ms.
Jayashree S lyer, Practicing Company Secretary(Membership No.10394/Certificate of Practice
No0.21403), to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for FY 2020-21. The Secretarial Audit
Report in the prescribed form MR-3, is annexed as Annexure V. There are no qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the Secretarial Auditor in her Report
dated July 22, 2021.

Compliance with the Secretarial Standards

The Secretarial Auditor of the Company has confirmed that the Company has complied with all
the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICSI).

Internal Audit

The Company has an Internal Audit department and the Head of the department reports to the
Audit Committee of the Company. In line with the requirement of Section 138 of Companies Act,
2013 read with rule 13 of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, the Board of Directors at their Meeting
held on July 02, 2020, had re-appointed M/s T.R. Chadha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Reg.
No. 0671IN/N500028) as the external Internal Auditors of the Company for FY 2020-21.

The Internal Auditors (both external and in-house) of the Company carried out the Audit and
confirmed that the checks and control systems prevalent are commensurate with the size and
turnover of the Company. The significant observations from the Internal Audit are tabled to the
Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

Information System Audit

In line with the requirements of RBI's Master Direction on Information Technology Framework for
the NBFC Sector, 2017, the Company was required to appoint Information Systems (IS) Auditors
to examine and confirm the effectiveness of controls that are in place to ensure confidentiality,
integrity and availability of the Company’s IT infrastructure.

Accordingly, the Board at its Meeting held on July 02, 2020, approved the re-appointment of M/s
RGN Price & Co (Firm Registration No. 002785S) as Information Systems Auditors of the Company
for FY 2020-21. The Information Systems Auditors conducted the Information System audit and
confirmed that the Company is in compliance with all applicable regulations as prescribed by the
RBI. The observations from the IS Audit are tabled to the Audit Committee on an annual basis.

Disclosure on establishment of Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower policy

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting
highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior. The Company

has implemented a vigil mechanism to provide a framework for the Company’s employees and
Directors to promote responsible and secure whistle blowing.
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The Company has established a Board approved policy on whistle blowing and separate email addresses are
designated wherein the employees or the stakeholders can report the matters falling under the purview of Vigil
Mechanism. There were no complaints received under this category during the financial year ended March 31,
2021.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended, the Board of Directors have
adopted a policy on CSR as recommended by the CSR committee duly constituted and the said policy is
available on the Company’s website.

The composition and terms of reference of the CSR Committee are detailed in this report. The update on the
policy on Corporate Social Responsibility and activities of the Company is provided in Annexure-V annexed to
this report.

N

V222227
AN\




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT — OUR BUSINESS

A. Industry Structure and Key Trends of FY 2020-2021

The agriculture sector in India is providing a direct and indirect source of income for

58 percent of India’s population. During the year 2020, the sector also faced critical
challenges amidst the COVID-19 outbreak. A significant number of sector’s vulnerabilities
were highlighted; however, the country saw the resilient sector emerging strongly to take
up responsibilities of stabilising a volatile economy, and showcased growth because

of good monsoon and prompt interventions by Government of India. Still, there have
been numerous components of the agricultural value chain which have been disrupted
and are undermining the sustainability of organisations and farm workers across the
country. Impact of country-wide lockdown on the Indian agriculture sector has been
quite complex across different parts of the agricultural value chain. Temporary but acute
shortage of labour, reverse migration, disruptions in harvest, logistics & transportation
and exports were a portion of the un-anticipated challenges that agricultural ecosystem
stakeholders witnessed. Liquidity crunch in rural regions further aggravated the issue.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, Samunnati has continued to follow a non-traditional
approach to design custom made financial solutions, based on cashflow rather than
collateral, focused on utilising buyer-sellers relationship and their social and trade capital,
thus creating an excellent example of how Agri value chains can be made to work at
higher equilibrium despite the challenges posed by pandemic for small and marginal
farmers. Samunnati also believes that technological innovations and the new agri-market
related reforms would enable the evolution of approaches and products that can help
agricultural finance. An integrated value chain approach has the capabilities to highlight
the untapped opportunities and present operational nuances in the value chains. Such
opportunities can help us understand the financing within the value chain tailored to fit
the requirements in most efficient manner.

B. Opportunities and Threats

To address the COVID-19 impact on agriculture, Government of India has taken

many proactive measures to protect the interest of the stakeholders, especially the
farming community. The Indian Government has addressed the setback faced by the
agricultural community, among others, and introduced a stimulus of INR 17 Lakh Crores,
for shielding the vulnerable sections from any adverse effects of the pandemic. The
benefit incorporates advance release of INR 2,000 directly to the bank accounts of
farmers under PM-KISAN scheme. The government’s stimulus package for agriculture
under “Atmanirbhar Bharat” has produced positive sentiments and will offer extended
support to the sector to grow and develop adapting to the constantly evolving COVID-19
conditions. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) had permitted banks and Financial
Institutions to offer a moratorium on agricultural term and crop loans for a period of 3
months in first quarter of FY 2020-2021. Increased liquidity for Companies working in Agri
space has also been a focus for the Government.
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With significant uncertainty in the yield and harvest due the unpredictable rainfall and ongoing crisis,
the agriculture sector has continued to operate at a higher risk. The industry has been acknowledging
insurance as a viable product to mitigate the production related risks. Insurance is likely to continue

as a focal point for Public and Private Companies considering the risk profile of the Agri sector and we
believe the mitigation of the production related risk in agriculture will continue to become an important
dimension in the next year as well. With the nationwide introduction of two indemnity and parametric-
based programs, Pradhan Mantri FasalBima Yojana (PMFBY), and the Restructured Weather-Based Crop
Insurance Scheme (RWBCIS), the crop insurance in India will be undergoing significant changes.

COVID-19 has enhanced the use of technology in a variety of industries. Digitisation is emerging as a key
trend in Indian agriculture, and it will be crucially significant in the post-covid period as well. Currently,
over 1.25 Lakh panchayats in India are reported to have internet connections. Online connectivity and
work-from-home would continue to be the vital linkage between people working in organisations to
keep things rolling. At Samunnati being exclusively in the agri-space, we would nonetheless require
keeping a touch and feel with the clients on the ground as well. The pandemic has impacted the

capital infusion and the capital streamlining of many Companies. With the outbreak of second wave of
COVID-19, we expect a very lean business development in the first quarter of FY 2021-22 depending on
the severity and duration of the second wave.

C. COVID-19 Second Wave and Related Challenges

Rural India has been significantly affected by the second wave of COVID-19 and predominantly in many
rural districts, the number of active COVID-19 cases are reported to be upto ten times higher than what
it was in the first wave of the pandemic in the month of September 2020.The share of predominantly
rural districts in new cases in April 2021 was up from 21% in March 2021 to 30%, according to a report
released by CRISIL Ltd. India’s agriculture sector could prove to be a collateral damage to this second
wave of the pandemic. Farmers are staying away from the markets, resulting in lower prices of the agri-
produce, meanwhile the agri-prices continue to rise globally owing to dry weather in major producing
countries. Due to the fear factor and lockdown restrictions, local markets in India are mostly either shut
down or have stipulated operational timings.

In rural India, agriculture is only a portion of the income generated while remaining comes from non-
agricultural activities, a very large part of which is services of various kinds - which would get impacted
due to the mandis not being operational. Operational mandis are currently working at capacities around
40% and due to the uncertainty regarding the pandemic, there are frequent price variations. Government
has been taking steps to decongest the markets and to ease the flow of produce, and the Electronic
National Agriculture Market (e-NAM) application has been revised with modules on procurement,
logistics and farmer-friendly interface for advance registration of the produce for sale. Due to the
lockdown, there is reportedly a shortage of farm labour, which can impose significant challenges for the
upcoming Kharif season.

Our learnings and experiences from last year would prove critical in defining how India can deal
effectively with the second wave of COVID-19, where emphasis should be given on infrastructure,
capacity building and efficiently managing supply chains to connect to the smallest farmer and most
remote parts of the country.



Vertical wise or sector wise performance of the Company

a.

b.

Agri Enterprise (AE)

In FY 2020-2021, Samunnati expanded its AE base to 393 clients with an addition of 60 new AE clients

as compared to 333 AEs in previous year.

Agri Enterprises represent the demand side of the value chain, wherein Samunnati assists in
removing working capital constraints through customised financial solutions. By building market
linkages, the Company connects enterprises such as retailers, wholesalers, processors, traders,
exporters, and so on, to producer organisations who can meet their aggregation needs on time.

In FY 2020-2021, the total disbursements stood at INR 17,440 MN, a 7.38% increase when compared to
INR 16,240 MN in previous Financial Year. The average portfolio yield stood at 19.09%. To help FPOs
realise better price for the farm produce through a transparent mechanism and immediate payment

to the farmer collectives, they were directly connected to Institutional Buyers through Samunnati
Agro and thereby created value for both sets of market participants.

FPO

Samunnati had an overall strong growth in FY 2020-2021, with the disbursements increasing at 7.38%
from INR 16,240 MN in FY 2020 to INR 17,440 MN in FY 2021 with an outreach to over 800 FPOs in FY

2021 compared to 647 FPOs in FY 2020.
FPO Training and capacity building

Institution Development and Capacity Building of Farmer Producer Organisation connotes
programmes of sustainable and constructive change in organisations which are designed to
make farmers/producers better at doing what they already do, and more efficient; change the
character of institutions by modifying their goals and strategies, cultures, ways of functioning,
management styles and so on.

Capacity Building

With the help of a standardised Inhouse Diagnostic assessment tool an assessment study is
performed for each engaged FPO. 20+ assessments were carried out using the Institutional

Development framework and detailed diagnostics are prepared to understand the FPC strengths
and weakness. Samunnati has conducted a total of 110 Capacity building workshops for the FPO

in the FY 2020-21 in the states of Bihar, Orissa, MP, Maharashtra, Karnataka and Tamil Nadu.

a.  Amid COVID-19 Zoom sessions were organised for project FPCs with content-based
modules like legal compliance, book-keeping, applying input license. Zoom link availability,

video recording and efficient participant feedback redressal system was ensured during the
trainings organised during the months of March — September 2020 where a total of 64 online
training sessions were conducted.

b. Field Training resumed since October 2020 with holistic modules with FPO requirements and
deploying need-based trainings with internal expertise and external resources. 70+ Training
sessions have been conducted along with frequent handholding exercise. Following are the
focus domains and modules of trainings.
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Strengthening Governance of the FPO — Need for FPO Formation, Board of Directors
Alignment, Roles and Responsibilities of CEO and Board of Directors, Need for FIG
formation, Activations of FIGs, Efficient management of FPO activities- Standard
Operating Procedures setup.

Improving the Revenue Streams — Training on new business ideas, Business Planning,
Financial Planning, Business proposal for additional revenue streams, market quality
specifications of commodity trade.

Need Based Trainings — Crop cultivation practices to improve yield or quality,
Technology initiatives that can be implemented at Farmer level, Legal Compliance and
timely filing, zero tillage, Insect and Pest management, Digitisation and Pay card.

Building connects between FPOs enhanced the business knowledge and widens
business opportunity.

c. Post training, hand holding sessions are planned by the relationship managers of the team.
Group discussion with FPO Board to address immediate challenges, advisory service and
market linkage facilitation is ensuring continuous engagement process with the FPOs.

Samunnati continues to have a plan for the year of 2021-2022 where it includes having handbook
preparation, developing FIG reactivation module, standardisation of business plan templates, planning
POP Trainings, deployment of tech-based pilots and trainings focusing on trade initiatives and
encouragement for options.

Another important aspect of the training is the gender trainings where Samunnati has hired experts

to prepare the Gender Strategy for the FPOs. Samunnati’s Project team conducted a field visit for data
collection in four states for the following FPOs- Shanthi Sagar FPO, Satkosia/Banarpal FPO, Devanadhi
FPO and Dholisakra FPO. A total of 8 gender trainings were conducted during the FY 2020-21. Based on
field experiences, the core components of gender inclusion approach include selection of core group,
orientation and implementation of gender plan.

Some of the new initiatives and business improvement that have been taken up by Samunnati are FPOs
planning approaches to diversify streams, digitalisation and robocalling, market linkage and quality
standards and policy related discussions.



Farmer Development Centers

Farmer Development Centers (FDC) is a physical store that is set up at the Farmer
Producer Organisation (FPO) premises under the franchise business model as a one-stop
solution for all farmers’ needs. The model will leverage the power of aggregation to make
available high-quality products at the right time and at economical prices. The technology
infrastructure & digitisation will drive efficiency, ease of doing business at the store level &
will provide opportunity to leverage the benefits of analytics for the system.

FDCs would enhance the learning ecosystem for the farmers through the ‘model farmer
initiative’ & advisory services through its partners. It would extend its coverage to include
farm output market linkages, farm machinery, insurance and other value-added services.

FDCs are owned, operated and managed by the FPOs. eFresh will facilitate the
procurement of quality inputs from leading brands and manufacturers based on the
demand of the FDCs. Samunnati strengthens the FDCs by providing financing, market
linkages, advisory services, and the introduction of advanced technologies through its
AMLA [Aggregation, Market Linkage and Advisory] Approach. Overall, the benefits to FPOs
through FDCs are as follows:

Customised software for digitisation of data & records, statutory compliances

+  Spreading good agricultural practices through model farmers program

+ FPO team can focus more on identification and provision of value-added services.

+  Enhanced farm output market linkages through traceability and quality
specifications

+ Additional income generation through farm machinery hiring, insurance and other
digital services linkages.

Aligned with our mission to make markets work for smallholder farmers, Samunnati
in partnership with efresh, Agri business Solutions has inaugurated 15 FDCs - 10 in
Maharashtra, 3 in Gujarat and 2 in Rajasthan in the month of October 2020.

As on March 31, 2021, Samunnati promoted 72 Farmer Development Centres in partnership
with efresh.
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PRODUCT AND INNOVATION

In FY 2020-21, Samunnati focused on multiple digital interventions. Few of them are listed below:

Samunnati’s PayCard Solution

The PayCard is an innovative credit delivery mechanism to meet the production credit requirements of
the farmers in a timely and hassle-free manner. The solution was launched in FY 2019-20 with the scope
of digital payments is huge and can facilitate better access to financial services for smallholder farmers
by lowering transaction costs, providing flexibility, and improving convenience. Once smallholder farmers
experience digital payments, it will allow them to conduct fast, easy, safe, low-cost transactions in small
amounts on their Pay card and mobile phones. This facilitates shifting from cash to digital for all their
crop cycle requirements.

i. i.InFY 2020-21, the PayCard was designed, developed, and tested for card-based payment solution
for the deployment with the farmers.

ii. ii. Samunnati presented the PayCard in the Visa Everywhere Initiative (VEI) India 2020 and won the
B2B Challenge from a total of 400+ applications.

iii. iii. A pilot was initiated for the introduction and testing of acceptance of Pay-card solution by
farmers through FPOs across 4 states (Bihar, Maharashtra, Karnataka, and Madhya Pradesh).

Current extraordinary circumstances (COVID-19), highlight the importance of digital transformation in
agri ecosystem. Aligning to the changes in agri ecosystem, deployment of Pay card solution will be an
important step towards creating transparent and economically viable value chains for the ecosystem
players.

Samaarambh- Samunnati’s Agri Startup Engagement Platform

While working with Agri startups, Samunnati discovered the prime intricacies that Agri startups and
Agtech players face and come across during ldeation, Launch and Growth stage and launched the Agri
Startup Engagement Platform - “SAMAARAMBH'.

The platform aims at integrating and enhancing capabilities of agristartups and AgTech players that are
innovating solutions in the fields of fintech, mechanisation, lof, Value added services, Warehousing and
Storage, Inputs, Advisory and many other diverse portfolios to benefit the agriculture ecosystem. The
platform aims to provide an array of support services such as financial, advisory and market linkage
solutions to enable innovative Agri start-up enterprises to grow.

Samaarambh aims at:

i.  Engaging with more agristartups and deepen the reach to promote and enable
them to make markets work for small holder farmers.

ii. Initiating Pilots for the deployment of technologies provided by the startups for
better reach of technology.

iii. Connecting to idea phase agristartups to nurture and support the ecosystem by
connecting to incubators, and other similar entities.

iv. Developing new customised solutions for startups based on the learning in the
first year of operations.

v. Innovating more services/solutions to be offered to startups for better engagement
and nurturing.



During the pandemic, most start-ups faced a gap in working capital and market linkage and hence
Samaarambh witnessed a good number of registrations and engagements from the startups. The team
witnessed a wide range of start-ups registering on the platform pertaining to stage of the startup,
geography, mode of operation, sub-sectors, value chains, etc.

Samaarambh was launched on August 15,2020 and over 250+ agristartups have registered for more than
450 engagement opportunities. Through Samaarambh, Agri Start-up Funding Committee has sanctioned
INR 1500 Lakhs to the agri start-ups.

Agri Elevate

The key challenges faced by FPOs, as well as the ecosystem players trying to address their issues
include information asymmetry, lack of access to network channels and financial intermediation. As an
ecosystem leader, Samunnati launched Agri Elevate on National Farmer’s Day in FY 2020-2021.

Agri Elevate, an online platform acts as a self-functioning ecosystem, all the agri ecosystem players,
including but not limited to incubators, lenders, new age start-ups, agri ecosystem solution providers
can interact with each other to serve their needs. Further, Farmers & their collectives as FPOs will be at
the core for all initiatives of this platform and will be the primary beneficiaries of this initiative.

Agri Elevate operates as a ‘neutral platform” with linkage to Samunnati’s products and services being
kept separate from this platform. Therefore, this Platform will be a not-for-profit initiative spearheaded
by Samunnati, with the sole aim to facilitate connections in the agri-eco-system. Since the launch, 180+
FPOs and 73+ individuals have registered on the platform and 235+ agri enterprises registered across 6
main categories and 10 Subcategories.

Various digital solutions for the FPO were under pilot in FY 2020-2021 and was beta tested. Both the
platforms were, officially launched in April 2021.

e AgFinMart - An initiative from Samunnati seeking to build FPOs as an asset class- facilitating the
participation of mainstream banks and financial institutions. This portal enables FPOs to explore
financial solutions for their business needs.

e FPO Gateway - A single port of call for the Farmer Producer Organisations (FPOs) to interact with
the Agri Eco System and vice-versa. It is a technology platform that delivers different products and
solutions to the FPO from Samunnati as well as from other eco system partners.
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SUBSIDIARIES

A. Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited

Samunnati Agro witnessed a 29.1% growth in the turnover with INR 7,64775 MN compared to INR
5,924.92 MN in the previous year and trade receivables of INR 2,719.66 for the year compared to INR
1,595.68 MN in the previous year.

a.  Samunnati Trade Solutions
During the year, the Company, to expand its market presence has continued its engagement
with E- Market auction platforms like NCDEX e Markets Limited (NEML) and others to widen
its presence in the Government purchase market and has provided trade solutions of over
INR 120 MN to suppliers supplying to various state agencies. Apart from this, Samunnati Agro
has onboarded Exchange members such as ANDROMEDA, SMC and FINDOC as Samunnati
Associates during FY 2020-21 to leverage on the opportunities of market linkages available
through them. Samunnati Agro did INR 150 MN of trade business though clients introduced by
these SAs.

b. Market Linkages
Samunnati Agro Solutions has extensively engaged with FPOs to establish market linkages for
their produce. Commodities like Maize, Soybean, Castor etc produced by these entities were sold
to large institutional buyers, where Samunnati Agro solutions provided market Linkage, providing
benefit of assured market and better prices for FPOs.

In FY 2021, 200 FPOs and 282 institutional buyers were onboarded for market linkages across six
States (Gujarat, Maharashtra, Telangana, Andhra Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh and Tamil Nadu) and
have successfully traded 181 commodities via bill-to-ship to model.

SAMUNNATI FOUNDATION

Samunnati Foundation intends to focus on innovation led social impact. It has designed a few
projects and activities and commenced some of them. Significant progress is expected during FY
2021-22.

NETWORK ECOSYSTEM

Aligning to the changes in Agri ecosystem, Samunnati believes that deployment of technology and
digital solutions is an important step towards creating transparent and economically viable value
chains for the ecosystem players.

ET Virtual AgTech Summit 2020

Samunnati was the Title Partner of the Virtual Aglech Summit 2020 hosted by ET. This was India’s st
Virtual Summit on Aglech with the theme: “Envisioning Business Growth: Disruptive Technologies:

IN -and POST COVID Era”. The Summit initiated thought provoking discussions and advocated
technology innovation and practices for business growth at the time of crisis. Samunnati believes
that as an ecosystem player it has a responsibility to make tailormade tech solutions for small holder
farmers and farmer collectives in the areas of access of input (financial and non-financial), farmer
data management, market linkages and more



Webinars

Samunnati launched its Webinar Series — ‘In Talks with Samunnati: Agriculture in the New
Normal — Making Markets work for Smallholder Farmers’ to initiate crucial discussions

with industry experts. Samunnati has been conducting various webinars under the series
including virtual round table discussion, national consultative workshop and regional webinar.
To understand the key challenges faced by FPOs as well as, solutions and new ways of
working that we could adopt collectively and to get the grassroot perspectives from the agri
practitioners, Samunnati also organised regional webinars in 5 vernacular languages.

Virtual Round Table Discussion

The first session in the series, virtual round table discussion on, ‘Are Alternative Markets the
way forward to tackle disruptions in the Agri supply chain ?” was organised on May 16, 2020.
National Consultative Workshop

Samunnati brought together ~50 representatives from FPO Federations across the country

in co-creating a roadmap for overcoming the challenges of our times and tapping the new
market linkage opportunities generated by this crisis. The workshop was to understand what
requires to be done in the next one year and the prioritisation of the same.

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

ET Start-up Award in Social Enterprise

For the scale and complexity of the challenges that it is attempting to tackle in agricultural
finance through its market-linkage model, Samunnati won the award for being best start-up in
social enterprise category.

Visa Initiative

Samunnati won India’s first-ever Visa Everywhere Initiative for transforming B2B Payments with
our digital payment’s solution. In 2020, Samunnati was selected by Visa Initiative as one of the
11 start-ups for the Visa Everywhere Initiative which tasks start-ups to solve the payment and
commerce challenges of tomorrow.

Real Leaders Award

Samunnati secured a place (Rank 83) in Top 100 Companies globally, under the Real Leaders
Impact Award 2020 - the premier ranking of Companies making a positive impact on their
communities and the world. The Award honours the companies that are achieving great financial,
environmental and social returns by creating value for all their stakeholders.

Great Place To Work

Samunnati’s unparalleled commitment to growth despite setbacks and trying times has helped it
to be certified as a Great Place To Work®.
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ISO Certification

Between the 18th to 20th of March 2021, both Samunnati Financial Intermediation &
Services Private Limited and Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited were successfully
certified as 1SO 9001:2015 compliant. Quality is a way of life at Samunnati and an
independent verification by a certification body adds more value. This certification will
help in strengthening the organisation through standardisation of processes, enhance
Samunnati as a brand in the market thereby boosting investor confidence.

Samunnati’s Environmental and Social Policy

Samunnati leverages on the social and trade capital in buyer seller relationships through
non-traditional sourcing, risk assessment and mitigation, aided by technology, thereby
building quality business that is sustainable and results in inclusive growth. The entire
organisation works around this genetic code which is non-negotiable and is embedded
in all the processes adopted by the Company.

Samunnati’s Environmental & Social Policy reinforces its commitment towards
sustainable development and integrates environmental and social considerations

into decision-making and operations to effectively manage environmental and social
risks and enhance positive impacts thus improving outcomes. Samunnati will strive to
influence its borrowers on incorporating environmental and social considerations in their
business operations.

Samunnati through their transactions will thus:

not extend loans to any activity that features in Samunnati’s ‘Exclusion List’ or is
prohibited by local, national or international laws, as applicable.

influence borrowers to comply with national environmental and social legal
requirements.

encourage horrowers to adopt international good practices and safeguards, as
relevant.

promote prevention and control of pollution to protect the environment.
promote resource use efficiency and sustainable production of living and natural
resources.

promote safe and healthy work environment and treating all workers fairly.
proactively engage with the stakeholders towards timely redressal of grievances;
and

protect its borrowers through robust processes and effective communication.

Climate Smart Agriculture

Samunnati, with its inclusive approach acknowledges the effect of climate change

on agriculture and aims at committing its resources to promote sustainable practices
across agri-value chains. Through financial intermediation, Samunnati continued to
infuse liquidity into initiatives which bring in food security and resilience into agriculture
while the focus also went into activities such as agro-forestry, organic cultivation etc.



which contributes towards reduction in greenhouse gas emission. Overall, INR 352

Crores was deployed across various financial solutions and included activities from

millet cultivation in drought-prone regions of Tamil Nadu to funding biofuels to

replace wood & fossil-fuel. An estimated 15% of the Company’s overall disbursement

was towards climate smart agriculture covering 554 farmer collectives and 579

enterprises during FY 2020-21. Samunnati aims to focus on promoting climate smart

agriculture and monitor the impact generated over time.

? <9 Samunnati

Investedin your Growth

4

Samunnati, FPOs and
Sustainable Development Goals

The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) are
an ambitious commitment by world leaders
that sets out a universal and an unprecedented
agenda embracing economic, environmental
and social aspects of the wellbeing of societies.
The progress of the world to meet the SDGs,
largely depends on India's progress, given the
size of our population. India played a prominent
role in the formulation of SDGs and much of the
country's National Development Agenda is
mirrored in the SDGs.

SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

The agribusiness sector is well positioned to take a lead in making a significant contribution to
achieving the SDGs while pricritising and addressing sector-specific challenges. The agribusiness
sector has a clear stake in ensuring the achievement of the SDGs, which is emphasised by its integral
role and influence in many crosscutting dimensions including:

- Enhancing livelihoods for farming communities

- Improving access to employment and decent work
- Productivity enhancement in poor earning areas

- Empowerment of women

- Addressing causes of mortality and illness (including a rise of non-communicable diseases and
ill health)

- Preserving natural eco-systems
- Building resilience of the poorest to economic, natural, and social shocks

- Strengthening public private partnerships in the agribusiness sector as well as global (and
regional) partnerships

- Urbanization overtaking farmland
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HUMAN RESOURCES

A large part of FY 2020-21 entailed work from home across all locations on account of the pandemic
and related lockdown. During this period, as part of its employee well-being programme, Samunnati
had rolled out several new initiatives like 100%++ projects, HR Samvad, Sam-Milan, Sam-Mitr, etc. All
these initiatives were launched and implemented virtually, with an idea to upscale the learning culture
and collaboration between the members despite being connected virtually. The Company also ran
several sessions of Living True North to reiterate our Vision and how each one of us associate to it.

As on March 31, 2021, Samunnati Group (the Company and its subsidiaries) had a total of 446 employees
on its payroll. To meet the needs of the growing business the Group has onboarded 130 employees in
FY 2021 across verticals through various sources like LinkedIn, Naukri and Campus recruitments. We
have conducted smooth onboarding of 74 Management Trainees amidst the pandemic with focused
training programs and defined learning expectations. HR Team at Samunnati also facilitated various
training programmes on Induction, policies awareness and online courses etc. Around 10 batches of
Samunnati Swaagat (Induction program) were conducted covering total onboarded employees, with
average batch size of 8 participants. A focused training program on agri value chain and finance (AVCF)
was conducted that covered 100 participants. At organisation level, several knowledge management
sessions like ‘Samtalks” and policies awareness sessions were conducted covering topics on Prevention
of Sexual Harassment at Workplace, Vigilance awareness, Travel policy, etc.

We conducted several Townhalls and CEO meetings with small regional groups to address Pandemic
and related queries. To revamp and enhance the goal setting process, OKRs (Objective and Key Results)
were implemented at organisation level with various identified champions to drive the initiative. We also
introduced Feedback as a part of performance management process and encouraged employees and
managers to request/give feedback. ~Over 250 employees have been recognised on performance and
on making impact. We conducted two half yearly reviews at organisational level for documentation of
annual performance by self and respective reporting managers/functional heads/additional reviewers.

TECHNOLOGY RELATED UPDATES

Technology Initiatives

Samunnati has taken up the following initiatives towards energy conservation and technology
absorption:

Linking buyers and sellers using online market linkage platforms like NCDEX and reducing
the multiple movements of the produce thereby reducing transportation costs and carbon
emissions.

Recycling and reduced usage of paper

Energy efficient lighting in its offices

Introduction of mobile based training app

Usage of solar power

Virtual meetings, reviews, planning and mobile based learning sessions help reduce carbon
footprints.



Core Systems Updates

Having envisioned the significance of cutting-edge technology and data driven decision
making, we have implemented three major systems in FY 2020-2021 to support the core
business and enabling functions:

i. Loan Management System (LMS):

During the year, it was decided to implement a more robust, sophisticated application
to meet our growing business and compliance requirements. Oracle L.oans from
Oracle Corporation has been implemented and is currently being run in parallel. This
system meets RBI and other regulatory requirements such as limit management, audit
trails and so on.

ii. Loan Origination System (LOS):
The Company has developed an in-house one stop solution systematic workflow
that will route the application to different stages like Credit Underwriting, Committee,
Sanction, Post Sanction Documentation, Disbursement etc., thereby tracking the entire
loan management process.

iii. Sun Infor:

Sun Infor ERP was implemented during FY 2020-21 to meet all aspects of finance,
including accounting measures, revenue and expense schedules, wages, and balance
sheet verification. Sun Infor ERP system is live for NBFC business.

iv. Deferral Tracking System (DTS):

This system helps to tracks all the deferrals given to customers till the closure. A fully
automated system triggers periodic alerts to Regional Managers (RMs) and other
stakeholders for the pending deferrals.

v. Integrated Document Archival System (i-Das):
All customer KYC as well as loan documents were converted into soft copies and
uploaded in this system. Users can search and download any documents from this
system very easily.

vi. Legal Management System (Lgl):
This system used to track all Legal Service Request across the organisation and
maintains the history of all legal proceedings.

vii. Risk Management System (Rsk):

This system helps the Risk Monitoring to digitise their entire customer visits as well as
automatic DN generations.
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viii. Power BI:

Power Bl is a cloud based data analysis tool, which is used for reporting and data
analysis from wide range of data source. Power Bl is powerful and mature enough
so is used in Samunnati for complex data mash-up, modelling, and generating
dashboard reports based on the LMS & financial data. It is both web and mobile
based tool used by Samunnati which is hosted in Azure cloud.

Other Technology Initiatives

FPO Gateway

FPO Gateway is the first port-of-call for FPOs to interact with the Agri Eco System
players and vice-versa. This is the single largest platform that delivers AgriTech solutions
from Samunnati as well as other eco system partners to FPOs and their member
farmers. It also enables Samunnati to provide its Aggregation, Market Linkage &
Advisory (AMLA) services to the Agri value chains.

FPO Gateway is available in Web and Mobile Application versions and in 6 different
languages.

Business Management System (BMS)

Accounting & Finance Solutions for FPOs, Digitising transaction data helps the FPO
manage their business in a much more efficient way. BMS is a system that provides
point-of-sale, accounting and rich analytics and reports on a single platform.

BMS is envisaged to become the ‘Tally for agriculture’ with its customised Ul that suits
the needs of FPOs and their member farmers.

FPO Gateway and Business Management System (Accounting) form a ‘Digitisation suite’
for FPOs to do smart business. 825+ FPOs have registered on the platform so far.

Financial Marketplace (AgFinMart)

AgFinMart is a platform where Farmer Producer Organisations (FPOs) can explore loan
products for their business requirements whether it is for their working capital needs or
some long-term activities. Once an FPO submits a loan application, multiple financial
institutions (Fls) will be able to review and show interest in lending to the FPO.

Samunnati brings in its expertise of understanding the FPO landscape well and through
‘FPO Gateway’, it has the unique ability to help assess an FPO in the least possible time.

Samunnati Academy for FPOs

Information asymmetry is the key issue that needs to be resolved in the Agri sector

and Samunnati understands that very well. Farmers and farmer collectives need a lot

of information on a day-to-day basis. FPOs also have many training needs on various
topics like 1) How to set up an FPC, 2) What are essential qualities of a CEO and/or Board
of Directors , 3) How to conduct an Annual General Meeting , 4) How to engage well with
the FPOs member farmers, 5) What kind of leadership will make the FPO successful in
business as well as create social impact etc.



The ‘Samunnati Academy for FPO’ has several courses and stand-alone videos that
provides self-paced learning opportunity for FPOs, their staff and their member farmers.
The platform is envisaged to be the ‘LinkedIn Learning of Agriculture’.

e. FPO Grading and Engagement and Know Your Member Surveys
*  FPO Grading & Engagement

Grading tools assess the performance of FPO parametrically. The analysis is
made based on eight indicators- Governance, Compliance, Accounts and Finance,
Outreach, Management, Operations, Technology & Services, and Socio economic
and environmental impact.

Fngagement tool helps to understand the aspiration of FPO with respect to the
areas like input business, output business, Sorting and grading facility Processing
facility, Packaging facility, Custom hiring centre.

*  Know Your Member Project

A ‘Know Your Members (KYM)” survey is conducted with about 125 questions for
the farmer to digitise information about them, their family, the crops they grow, the
farm- land that they own or lease, the irrigation techniques they use, the livestock
they own, the equipment that they own, whether they have any insurance etc.

Most FPOs and Farmers realise that it is very important for them to digitise
their profiles so they can gain better access to the markets and to improve their
borrowing capacity.

10,000+ farmers are digitised across 30 FPOs under KYM project so far.

f.  Kisan Connect App
Status- Work in Progress

Kisan Connect is an application for farmers associated with FPOs registered on FPO
Gateway, enabling farmer data syncing (membership, crop details, etc.) &§ making
communication between farmers & their FPOs easier.

Kisan Connect focuses on Strengthening FPO-farmer interactions, Farmer data
management, Crop health management for farmers, Weather & price information, Crop
Advisory, Alerts & notifications.

So far, we have completed two sprints & testing of features - Basic Farmer Profiling, ,
Hyper-local Weather prediction for Hourly and next 7 days + extreme weather alerts,
Price Dissemination across State/Mandi/Commodity/Variety wise trends, Notifications
from FPO to farmers on Information dissemination/collection of responses on input
and output demand and available in 5 different languages.

g. Dashboards

MIS dashboards provided at different levels of aggregation. RI/POPI/Consortium/
Federation, FPO, FIG/SHG/ILG, Member-Crop-Village.
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Risk Management and Concerns

COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the economy, institutions and livelihoods
worldwide, besides taking a huge toll on human lives. Agriculture and Agro based
industry were the only sectors that recorded growth and contributed significantly to
the GDP in FY 2020-21. Cumulative impact of slowdown in all sectors had a bearing
on the functioning of banking and financial sector. FY 2020-21 was characterised

by challenges arising out of the impacts of complete lockdown, liquidity crunch,
high defaults and increased levels of NPAs. Government’s supportive measures

like grant of emergency lines of credit backed by Government guarantee and
restructuring of loans rescued the industrial units and businesses, especially those
in the vulnerable MSME sector. RBI's proactive measures like providing additional
liquidity and softening the IRAC norms, helped the Banks and NBFCs to weather

the storm. Samunnati, through its robust risk management practices followed in
underwriting and monitoring of loans, cautiously treaded the path by supporting
the needy small farmers and garnering fresh business in the last two quarters of the
year. The company also built sufficient liquidity cushion to meet its business and debt
commitments.

Approaches to Risk Management

The ever-changing terrain of financial markets has made the Risk Department a

very critical part of the organisation. Lastyear the Company has adopted an ERM
Framework which defines the Risk metrics aligning with the strategy of the Company,
and has also focused on its governance, with well-defined procedures. During the
year, despite working under challenging environment the Company has managed the
Operational Risk well, by monitoring the performance of Key Risk Indicators, across
all departments. Samunnati has further enhanced the Credit Risk management by
closely monitoring the performance of individual relationships through identification
of early warning signals and initiate appropriate action.

During the FY 2020-21, the Company developed an inhouse internal risk rating scoring
model for all business verticals, which provide the real time portfolio performance and
classification of portfolio exposure into High, Medium, and Low risk category.

The risk management approaches followed are:

1. Account Acquisition - This involves careful selection of customers based on its
defined credit policy. Clear definition of prudential norms in terms of client wise
exposures, sector wise exposures are defined and monitored through a strong
governance mechanism.

2. Account Management - Considering the nature of customers who are repeat
borrowers under revolving credit facility, the account management is done
through periodic visits to ensure completion of post sanction covenants,
ascertaining end use of funds and assessing early warning signals.



3. Portfolio Management - A strong follow-up and collections team and Risk
Monitoring department, supported by daily MIS on the portfolio performance aid the
Company’s efforts to have a satisfactory loan book, in tune with the risk appetite.

4. Fraud Management — A Framework has been put in place to filter and sieve red flags
and loss events and protect the portfolio from fraud events / occurrences. Patterns,
pointers, triggers are all documented so that the prevention and deterrence of fraud
is addressed at all levels in the organisation.

5. Risk Architecture — The framework is guided by the tenets which are elicited below.
Governance and Culture: Governance sets the organisation’s tone, reinforcing
the importance of, and establishing oversight responsibilities for enterprise
risk management. Culture pertains to ethical values, desired behaviors, and
understanding of risk across the organisation.

a. Strategy and Objective-Setting: Enterprise risk management, strategy, and
objective-setting work together in the strategic-planning process. A risk appetite
is established and aligned with strategy; business objectives put strategy into
practice while serving as a basis for identifying, assessing, and responding to risk.

b. Performance: Risks that may impact the achievement of strategy and business
objectives are identified and assessed. Risks are prioritised by severity in the
context of risk appetite. The organisation then selects risk responses and takes
a portfolio view of the amount of risk it has assumed. The results of this process
are reported to key risk stakeholders.

c.  Review and Revision: By reviewing entity performance, an organisation can
consider how well the enterprise risk management components are functioning
over time, and what revisions are needed, when required.

d. Information, Communication, and Reporting: Enterprise risk management requires
a continual process of obtaining and sharing necessary information, from both
internal and external sources, which flows up, down, and across the organisation.

This year the focus area of interest for risk department is to further enhance the risk
management practices like

Automated real time tracking of all key risk indicators, which will reduce the risk
reporting turnaround.

Further improvise our Operational Risk Management by using model-based
approach.

Considering advance analytics practices for improving risk scoring model, that
helps to identify emerging risk and take appropriate preventive action.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors, based on the representations

received from the operating management after due enquiry, confirm that:

a.

In the preparation of the annual accounts for the FY ended March 31, 2021, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

They have, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and have
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent to
give a true and fair view of the of the Company as March 31, 2021 and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

The directors had taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other

irregularities;

The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

The Board of Directors have laid down internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption

In term of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules

2014, requires the disclosure of particulars regarding conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

& Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo.

Samunnati has taken up the following initiatives towards energy conservation and technology

absorption:

linking buyers and sellers using online market linkage platforms like NCDEX and reducing the
multiple movements of the produce thereby reducing transportation costs and carbon emissions.
Recycling and reduced usage of paper

Energy efficient lighting in its offices

Introduction of mobile based training app

Usage of solar power

Virtual meetings, reviews, planning and mobile based learning sessions help reduce carbon
footprints.



Conservation of Energy

S. No. Particulars

1. | The steps taken or impacton | The Company is taking adequate steps to conserve
conservation of energy the energy at all the levels and also implementing
various measures for reduction in consumption of
energy.
2. | The steps taken by the Not Applicable.

company for utilising alternate
sources of energy

3. | The capital investment During the year under review, there are no capital
on energy conservation investment made on energy consumption equipment
equipment’s;

The Company has no Foreign Technology Absorption during the period under review

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption; NA

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product NA
development or import substitution;

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years NA
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) -

(a) the details of technology imported; NA
(b) the year of import; NA
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed; NA
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and NA

the reasons thereof; and

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. NA

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Particulars NA Outflow
Current Year Nil INR 17.46 MN
Previous Year Nil INR 3.14 MN
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ANNEXURE - |

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 of
SAMUNNATI FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION & SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN U65990TN2014PTC096252

i) Name of the Company ~ SAMUNNATI FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION & SERVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered office BAID HI TECH PARK, 8TH FLOOR, NO 129 B, EAST COAST
Address ROAD, THIRUVANMIYUR,
CHENNAI - 600 041

E-mail ID secretarial@samunnati.com
Telephone No 044-66762400
Website www.samunnati.com

i) Date of Incorporation  23/06/2014

Type of Company Category of Company Sub-Category of Company

Private Limited Company Company Limited by shares Indian Company Non-Government

v)  Details of Stock Exchange where shares are listed  BSE Limited (Debt Listed)

vi)  Name, Address and Integrated Registry Management Services Private Limited,
Contact details of Registrar 2nd Floor, Kences Towers, No.l, Ramakrishna Street, North
and Transfer Agent. Usman Road, T. Nagar, Chennai - 600 117.
Email: kences@integratedindia.in
Phone # : 044- 28140484
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Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the

company shall be stated:

Name and Description NIC Code of the Product/ % to Total Turnover of the

of Main Products /Services Service Company

L. Financing Activity (NBFC) K 64990 100%

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Name and Address of the Holding/ Subsidiary/ % of Applicable

oG Company SINGER Associate Shares held  Section

Samunnati Agro Solutions

Private Limited U74999TN2016PTC112925 Subsidiary 100 2(87)

2. Samunnati Foundation U85300TN2020NPL134814 Subsidiary 100 2(87)




IV. (A) (I) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAK UP AS % TO TOTAL EQUITY)

Category of

Members

No. of Shares held
at the beginning of the year

held at the end of the year

No. of Shares

% change
during the year

A. Promoters

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Increase

Decrease

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF

2,38,257

5,000

2,43,257

42.39%

2,38,257

5,000

2,43,257

42.39%

b) Central Govt.or
State Govt.

¢) Bodies
Corporates

d) Bank/FI

e) Any other

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

2,38,257

2,43,257

42.39%

2,38,257

2,43,257

42.39%

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals

b) Other Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/FI

e) Any other...

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

Total Shareholding
of Promoter

A)=AMD(A)Q)

2,38,257

5,000

2,43,257

42.39%

2,38,257

5,000

2,43,257

42.39%

B. PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/FI

¢) Central govt

d) State Govt.

e) Venture Capital
Fund

f) Insurance
Companies

g) FIIS
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IV. (A) (I) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAK UP AS % TO TOTAL EQUITY)

No. of Shares No. of Shares % change
held at the beginning of the year held at the end of the year during the year

Category of Members

h) Foreign Venture =

Capital Funds

i) Others [Specify] -

SUB TOTAL (B)(1): =

(2) Non-Institutions

a) Bodies corporates -

i) Indian 19,746 - 19,746 3,44 19,746 - 19,746 3,44 - -
ii) Overseas 83,304 7,937 91,241 15.90 83,304 7,937 91,241 15.90 - -
b) Individuals -

i) Individual Members
holding nominal share
capital

upto INR1 lakhs

ii) Individuals Members
holding nominal share
capital in excess of INR 1

lakhs

3334 2760 6094 1.06 3334 2760 6094 1.06

¢) Others [ESOP Trust] -| 2,13,523 | 2,13,523 37.21 - 2,13,523 | 2,13,523 37.21 - -

SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 106384 | 224220 | 330604 57.61| 106384 | 224220 | 330604 57.61 = =

) . 106384 | 224220 | 330604 57.61
Total Public Shareholding _ .
106384 | 224220 | 330604 57.61| 106384 | 224220 | 330604 57.61

(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian

For - - - - - - - - - -

GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 3,44,641| 229,220 | 5,3,861 100% | 3,44,641| 2,29,220 | 53,861 100% - -




(I1) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL)

Shareholding Shareholding
at the beginning of the year at the end of the year % change in
Members’ Name No of % of total % of Shares No of % of total % of Shares shargholdmg
Shares = Shares of the pledged Shares Shares pledged during the
Company encumbered to of the encumbered year
total Shares Company to total

1. | Anil Kumar S G 2,38,257 41.51% -1 2,38,257 41.51% =
2. | K. Seetha Lakshmi 5,000 0.87% - 5,000 0.87% -
Total 2,43,2571 42.39% - | 2,43,257 42.39% -

Shareholding Cumulative Shareholding during
at the beginning of the year the year

Particulars

% of Shares pledged
encumbered to total ~ No of Shares
Shares

Noof = % of total Shares
Shares  of the Company

% of total Shares
of the Company

1. | At the beginning of the year 2,43,257 42.39% - 2,43,257 42.39%

Date wise Increase / Decrease
in Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying the

2 reasons for increase / decrease I elngge i iy
(e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)
3. | At the end of the year 2,43,257 42.39% - 2,43,257 42.39%
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(IV) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL) OF TOP TEN MEMBERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS,

PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):

Shareholding at the beginning of

Shareholding at the end of the year

the year
SI.No  Top Ten Members Category % of total
% of total shares
No. of shares shares of the No. of shares
of the company
company
Accel India v Foreign Body
1. . 75,733 13.19 75,733 13.19
(Mauritius) Ltd Corporate
Foreign Body
2. Elevar M III 7,571 1.63 7,571 1.31
Corporate
Elevar I-IV AIF
represented by its Indian Body
3. . 19,746 3.44 19,746 3.44
trustee Vistra ITCL Corporate
India Limited
responsAbility Foreign Body
4. . 7,637 1.33 7,637 1.33
Agriculture I, SLP Corporate
Ms. Poorna
Pushkala, (Trustee
of Samunnati
5. Trust 2,13,523 37.20 2,13,523 37.20
Employees Stock
Option Plan Welfare
Trust)
6 | Nitin Chaudhary Individual 2,815 0.49 2,815 0.49
7 Gurunath Neelamani Individual 1,200 0.21 1,200 0.21
8 Sridhar Easwaran Individual 1,080 0.19 1,080 0.19
9 Ritesh Nair Individual 519 0.09 519 0.09
10 | Poorna Pushkala Individual 450 0.08 450 0.08




(V) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS & KMP (EQUITY SHARE)

Shareholding at the beginning of =~ Cumulative Shareholding during the
the year year

Particulars 9% of total

% of total shares

No. of shares shares of the No. of shares
of the company

company

1. Anil Kumar S G - Director & CEO

i) | Atthe beginning of the year 2,38,257 41.51% 2,38,257 41.51%

ii) Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons for

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment No change during the year
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity,
etc.)
iii) | At the end of the year 2,38,257 41.51% 2,38,257 41.51%
i)
ii)

2 Mr. N. Gurunath - Wholetime Director

i) | Atthe beginning of the year 1200 0.05% 1200 0.05%

ii) Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment = = = -
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity,
etc.)

iii) | At the end of the year 1200 0.05% 1200 0.05%
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IV (B) (i) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
(PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL BREAK UP AS % TO TOTAL PREFERENCE)

No. of Shares held at the beginning of ~ No. of Shares held at the end of % change during
the year the year the year

At the beginning of ol ok

9 9 Demat | Physical | Total | Total | Demat | Physical | Total | Total | Increase | Decrease
the year

Shares Shares

(1) Indian - - - - - - - - - -
a) Individual/HUF - = = = = = = = = =
b) Central Govt.or i i i i i i i i i i
State Govt.

¢) Bodies Corporates - - - - = = = - - .

d) Bank/FI - = = = - - - , - _

e) Any other - = = = - . - - - _

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) = - - - = = = - - -

(2) Foreign = = - - - - - - R -

a) NRI- Individuals - = = - - . - - - _

b) Other Individuals - = = = = - - - - -

¢) Bodies Corp. - - - - - = = = - -

d) Banks/FI = = - - - - - - - -

d) Banks/FI - = = = - - - - R _

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) - - - - - = = - - -

Total Shareholding of - - - - - = - - . B

Promoter

A)= A1) +(A)N2)
SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions - = = = - - - - - _

a) Mutual Funds - = = = - . - - - _

b) Banks/FI = = = = - - - - . _

c) Central govt - - - - - = = - - .

d) State Govt. = = = = - - - - . -

e) Venture Capital
Fund

f) Insurance
Companies

g) FIIS - - . - - ; ] - ] )




IV (A) (i) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
(PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL BREAK UP AS % TO TOTAL PREFERENCE)

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
Members year

% change
during the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others [Specify] = = = - - - - . ; _
SUB TOTAL (B)(1): - = = = . - , . i, _

(2) Non-Institutions - = = - - - - - - _

i) Indian 99,340 - 99,340 6.15 99,340 - 99,340 6.15 - -

ii) Overseas 7,41,681 | 7,37,324 | 14,79,005 91.51| 7,53,023 | 7,25,982 | 14,79,005 91.51 - -

b) Individuals - = = - - . - - . _

i) Individual
Members holding
nominal share capital
upto INR1 lakhs

ii) Individuals
Members holding
nominal share capital 37,850 - 37,850 2.34 37,850 - 37,850 2.34 - -

in excess of INR 1
lakhs

¢) Others = = = - - - - - _ -

SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 878,81 | 737324 16,16,195 | 100.00% | 8,90,213 | 7,25,982 | 16,16,195 | 100.00% = =

Total Public
Shareholding 878,871 | 737324| 16,16,195| 878,871 8,90,213 | 7,25,982 | 16,16,195 | 100.00% - -
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian - = = - - - - - - _
For GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 878,87 | 737,324 16,16,195 | 878,671 890,213 | 7,25982 | 16,16,195 | 100.00% = =

(iii) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS (PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL)

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year

% change in
Members’ Name No of % of total % of Shares No of % of total % of Shares shareholding

Shares  Shares of the pledged Shares Shares pledged during the year
Company encumbered to of the encumbered
total Shares Company to total

1. | Anil Kumar SG - = - - - - -

2. | K. Seetha Lakshmi - = - - - _ _

Total - - - - - - -
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(IV) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING (PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL) (SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

% of Shares
pledged Noof % of total Shares pledged
encumberedto  Shares of the Company  encumbered to

total Shares total

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

0,
9% of total % of Shares
Shares of the

Company

Particulars No of

Shares

1. | At the beginning - = - - - -
of the year

2. | Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during
the year specifying the
reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity, etc.)

During the year there was no change in promoter’s Shareholding

At the end of the year

Shareholding at the beginning of

Cumulative Shareholding during

Cat the year the year
ategory
No of Shares % of total Shares No of Shares % of total Shares
of the Company of the Company
Accel India v (Mauritius) Ltd | oreign Body 3,74,949 23.20 3,74,949 23.20
Corporate
Elevar M III RO By 3,78,074 23.39 3,78,074 23.39
Corporate
responsAbility Agriculture I, Foreign Body 3.66,594 2268 3.66,594 2268
SLP Corporate
Teachers Insurance and Foreion Bod
Annuity Association of gn body 2,26,730 14.03 2,26,730 14.03
. Corporate
America
Accel Growth Fund V L.P R 1,10,075 6.81 1,10,075 6.81
Corporate
Allotment of 1,10,075
Preference Shares on - - 1,10,075 6.81
24.05.2019
Elevar I-IV AIF represented Foreion Bod
by its trustee Vistra ITCL &1 Body 99,340 6.15 99,340 6.15
o Corporate
India Limited
Ramaraj Rajasekhar Individual 37,850 2.34 37,850 2.34
No Increase or Decrease - - 37,850 2.34
responsAbility SICAV (Lux) Foreien Bod
Micro and SME Finance gh body 22,583 1.40 22,583 1.40
Corporate
Leaders




(V1) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS & KMP (PREFERENCE SHARE)

Shareholding at the beginning of theyear  Shareholding at the end of the year

Members’ Name

% of total Shares of No of Shares % of total Shares of

No of Shares the Company the Company

1. | Anil Kumar S G - Director & CEO

(iv) | At the beginning of the year

(v) | Date wise Increase / Decrease in = = = -
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity,
etc.)

(vi) | Atthe end of the year - - _ _

2. | Mr. Gurunath N — Wholetime Director

(iv) | At the beginning of the year

(v) | Date wise Increase / Decrease in - - - -
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity,
etc.)

(vi) | Atthe end of the year
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (INR in MN)

Secured Loans Unsecured

excluding deposits Loans Deposits  Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 4,513.51 - - 4,513.51

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - _

iii) Interest accrued but not due 50.10 50.10

Total (i+ii-iii) 4,563.61 4,563.61

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Additions 6,917.75 6,917.75
Reductions 3,919.93 - - 3,919.93
Net Change 2,997.82 - - 2,997.82

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 7,511.33 7,511.33

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due 109.75 - - 109.75

Total(iii+iii) 7,621.08 = = 7,621.08




IV. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Wholetime Director, Executive Director and/or Manager

Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD

Total Amount (INR)
Mr. N. Gurunath

L Gitors sellaty (Wholetime Director)

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section

17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961. 8,126,206.00 8,126,206.00

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income

tax Act, 1961 450,000.00 450,000.00

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961

2. Stock option*

3. Sweat Equity - -

4, Commission - -

as % of profit . .

others (specify) - .

5. Others, please specify - -

Total (A) 8,576,206 8,576,206

Ceiling as per the Act NA

*This represents the total number of Stock options available as on March 31, 2021 after exercise of vested options
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B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS

Sl

No

Particulars of Remuneration
in INR

Independent Directors

Mr. Sunil Gulati

Name of the Directors

Mr. N. Srinivasan

Dr. Venkatesh Tagat

Total Amount
(in INR)

(a) Fee for attending board &
committee meetings

7,80,000

6,85,000

5,10,000

19,75,000

(b) Commission

(c) Others, please specify

Total (1)

7,80,000

6,85,000

5,10,000

19,75,000

Others, please specify

(a) Fee for attending board
committee meetings

(b) Commission

(c) Others, please specity.

Total 2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration (Total=(1+2))

7,80,000

6,85,000

5,10,000

19,75,000

Opverall Ceiling as per the Act.

NA

NA

NA

NA




Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Gross Salary Mr. Anil Kumar Mr. Ashok Mr. Niranjan Ms. Ashwini
S G, Director& | Dhamankar, Chandrashekar, Venkataraman,
CEO CFO Company Company TOTAL
Secretary Secretary
(resigned w.e.f (appointed w.e.f
May 29, 2020 November 06,
2020)
a) Salary as per provisions 18,655,905 13,245,378 173,003 640,550 32,714,836
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 57,600 32,400 - = 90,000
17(2) of the Income Tax Act,
1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary - - - - -
under section17(3) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961
Stock Option** - - - - -
Sweat Equity - - - - -
Commission - - - - -
as % of profit - - - - -
others, specify - = = . .
Others, please specify - - - - -
Total 18,713,505 13,277,778 173,003 640,550 | 3,28,04,836
** Number of Stock Options
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Vii. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT /COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Details Of Penalty/
Section of the : o Punishment/
Brief Description :
Compounding fees
Imposed

Authority Appeal made
(RD/NCLT/ if any
Court) (give details)

Companies Act

A. COMPANY

Penalty = = = = =

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - = - .

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty = = = = =

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - = = - .

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty = = = = =

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding = = = = =

For Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

s \

Gurunath Neelamani Anil Kumar S G
Wholetime Director Director & CEO
DIN: 02799586 DIN: 0118901

Place: Chennai
Date: July 29, 2021



ANNEXURE - I

FORMAOC -1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint
ventures

PART “A”: SUBSIDIARIES

SI

Details Details

No Particulars

1. | Name of the subsidiary Samunnati Agro Solutions Samunnati Foundation

Private Limited

2. | Reporting period for the subsidiary NA N.A
concerned, if different from the holding
company’s reporting period

3. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on N.A N.A
the last date of the relevant Financial year in

the case of foreign subsidiaries

4. | Share capital INR 6.32 MN INR 0.10 MN
5. Reserves & surplus (INR 112.55) MN INR 1.10 MN
6. Total assets INR 3,324.92 MN INR 1.55 MN
7. Total Liabilities INR 3,324.92 MN INR 1.55 MN
8. Investments INR 50.01 MN NIL
9. Turnover INR 7,702.73 MN INR 2.18 MN
10 | Profit before taxation (INR 90.09) MN INR 1.10 MN
11. | Provision for taxation (INR 19.15) MN NIL
12. | Profit after taxation (INR 70.94) MN INR 1.10 MN
13. | Proposed Dividend NIL NIL
14. | % of shareholding 100% 100%

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations — Not Applicable

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year — Not Applicable
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PART “B”: ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures
Name of associates/loint Ventures NA
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end
No.

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

Extent of Holding%
3. Description of how there is significant influence
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated
5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet
6. Profit/Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations — Not Applicable

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year - NA

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.



ANNEXURE - 11l

FORMAOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain Arm’s Length Transactions under third provision there to.

Date on which the
Amount  special resolution was
paid as passed in General
advances, if  Meeting as required
any under first proviso to
Section 188

Justification for
entering into Date of
such contracts or ~ Approval by
arrangements or  the Board
transactions

Name(s) of the Nature of Duration of

related party contracts/ the contracts/
and nature of  arrangements/ arrangements/
relationship transaction transactions

NIL

Salient terms of

Name(s) of the Nature of Duration of the contracts or
Date of

Approval by
the Board

related party contracts/ the contracts/ arrangements or
and nature of arrangements/ arrangements/ transactions including
relationship transactions transaction the value, if any
(Amount in INR

Amount paid as
advances, if any

Employees of Deputation of Deputation of the September Nil
Samunnati Financial | the Employees of Employees of the 10, 2020
Intermediation & Samunnati Agro subsidiary Company.
Services Private Solutions Private An amount of INR
Limited Limited, to the 19.11 MN (exclusive

A th t
S PerTNeagleement | = of Taxes), has been
dated 1st July 2017

charged to the
. . and as amended .
Financial Holding Company,

Holding company,
Samunnati

eriodically.
Intermediation & P Y Samunnati Financial
Services Private Intermediation &
Limited Services Private

Limited, as deputation
charges.
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Limited)
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Deputation of the
Deputation of Employees of the
the Employees subsidiary Company.
of Samunnati An amount of INR
Agro Solutions 19.11 MN (exclusive
Private Limited of Taxes), has been
Employees of Samunnati to the Lol ding, charged to the
Agro Solutions Private — = Holding Company, - NIL
Limited. Samunnati Samunnati Financial
Financial Intermediation &
Intermediation & Services Private
Services Private Limited, as
Limited deputation charges.
Fees charged
Fees for Corporate by Samunnati An amount of INR
Guarantee provided Financial 13.04 MN (exclusive
as security for the Intermediation & of Taxes), has been
borrowings availed SeFVi.CeS Priv.ate = charged) to the February 27,
] Limited, to its Company’s wholly Nil
by its wholly owned wholly owned oSt b, 2020
subsidiary, Samunnati subsidiary, Samunnati Agro
Agro Solutions Private | Samunnati Agro Solutions Private
Limited. Solutions Private Limited.
Limited
Long term working
capital loan availed by
Riviera Investors Private
Limited
(Indifi Technologies Loan Agreement February 12, )
) o ) dated March 15, 24 Months INR 100 MN Nil
Private Limited (“Indifi”) - 2021
Holding Company of

For Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

@\

Gurunath Neelamani
Wholetime Director
DIN: 02799586

Place: Chennai
Date: July 29, 2021

\ -

Anil Kumar S G

Director & CEO
DIN: 01189011




JAYASHREE S IYER
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY, INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL &
REGISTERED VALUER

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members
M/s. Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

CIN No.: U65990TN2014PTC096252
Baid Hi Tech Park, 8" Floor, No129 B,
East Coast Road, Thiruvanmiyur
Chennai-600041

Dear Members,

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services
Private Limited (here in after called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion there on.

Based on my verification of the soft copy of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit and considering the relaxation granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs warranted due
to the spread of COVID-19 Pandemic, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31% March, 2021 generally complied
with the provisions of Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards listed here under subject to
the reporting made here in after:

@ The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there
under to the extent applicable to the Company;

(i)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there
under to the extent applicable to the Company;

W) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act,1992(‘SEBI Act’):
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations,2008;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations,2015;

23 Lake Area, 3™ Cross Street, Nungambakkam, Chennai 600034
Mobile: 9840908393 E- mail: jayashree2505@gmail.com
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JAYASHREE S IYER
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY, INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL &
REGISTERED VALUER

vi) The following laws specifically applicable to the Company viz.,
(a) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Circulars, Master Directions, Notifications made there under;
(b) Non-banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies
Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007,
() NBFC Auditors Report Reserve Bank Directions,1998;

vii) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013;
viii) Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the Company;

I report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, the Company has
complied with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
)] Secretarial Standards issued and amended by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India;
(ii) The Debt Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Standards and Agreement mentioned above.

I further report that—
Q) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.
(i) The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
(iii) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

(iv) As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and confirmed by the Directors and
taken on record by the Board, the decisions of the Board were unanimous and no
dissenting views have been recorded.

) The Compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws like direct and
indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not
been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory
financial auditors, tax auditors and other designated professionals.

23 Lake Area, 3" Cross Street, Nungambakkam, Chennai 600034
Mobile: 9840908393 E- mail: jayashree2505@gmail.com



JAYASHREE S IYER
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY, INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL &
REGISTERED VALUER

I further report that based on the information received, explanations given, process explained,
records maintained, statutory compliance and statutory internal audit reports submitted to the
Board on quarterly basis, and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in my
opinion there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

Jayashree S Iyer

Practising Company Secretary
Membership No.: 10394
CPNo.:21403

UDIN: F010394C000674794

Place: Chennai
Date : 22.07.2021

23 Lake Area, 3" Cross Street, Nungambakkam, Chennai 600034
Mobile: 9840908393 E- mail: jayashree2505@gmail.com
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JAYASHREE S IYER
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY, INSOLVENCY PROFESSIONAL &
REGISTERED VALUER

‘ANNEXURE-A’

To,
The Members
M/s.Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

CINNo.: U65990TN2014PTC096252
Baid Hi Tech Park, 8" Floor, No129 B,

East Coast Road, Thiruvanmiyur
Chennai-600041

Dear Members
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The review was
done to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the
process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification
of procedures.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Jayashree S Iyer
Practising Company Secretary
Membership No.: 10394
CPNo.:21403
UDIN: F010394C000674794
Place: Chennai
Date: 22.07.2021

23 Lake Area, 3" Cross Street, Nungambakkam, Chennai 600034
Mobile: 9840908393 E- mail: jayashree2505@gmail.com



ANNEXURE -V

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) Activities
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

Samunnati goes beyond business to make a sustainable, positive social, economic, and
environmental impact on the lives of the people. The Company envisions sustainable and
inclusive development of small holder farmers and the agriculture ecosystem as a whole. With
the endeavour of equal prosperity to all, Samunnati as an agriculture ecosystem enabler strives
for inclusive and sustainable development of small holder farmers with positive environmental,
social and economic impact.

The primary purpose of the Company’s CSR philosophy is to contribute to the development of
socially and economically challenged communities of the country with specific focus on creating
sustainable livelihoods, supporting rural development projects, promoting education and skill
development, promoting environmental sustainability, and supporting innovations that largely
benefit the agriculture ecosystem.

The CSR activities of the Company are wheeled through various CSR entities including Samunnati
Foundation.

In line with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company was required
to constitute a CSR Committee. Accordingly, the Company has constituted the CSR Committee
during the year and the details of the Committee forms part of this Report. The Company has
put in place a Board approved Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy that has also been
uploaded on the website (https:/samunnati.com/wpcontent/ uploads/2020/03/CSR-Policy.pdf)

2. COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE:

Number of meetings Number of meetings of CSR
S.NO. NAME OF THE MEMBER  DESIGNATION of CSR Committee held  Committee attended during
during the year the year
L. Dr. Venkatesh Tagat Chairman 1
2. Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan Member 1 1
3. Mr. Anil Kumar S G Member 1
4. Mr. Gurunath N Member =
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Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board
are disclosed on the website of the company and can be accessed at the following link:
https://samunnati.com/csr/

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for
set off for the financial year, if any : Nil

Average net profit (PBT)of the Company as per Section 135(5):
a) Net profit (PBT) for the year 2017-18  : INR -2,89,50,523/-
b) Net profit (PBT) for the year 2018-19  : INR 10,01,91,291/-

¢) Net profit (PBT) for the year 2019-20  : INR 13,82,49,194/-

Average net profit for last three financial years  : INR 6,98,29,987/-

(@) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR
13,96,600/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year: INR 13,96,600/-

(@) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

AMOUNT UNSPENT (IN INR)

TOTAL AMOUNT
SPENT FOR THE

FINANCIAL YEAR.

(IN'INR)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR
Account as per Section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Schedule VII as per second proviso to Section

135(5).

Amount

Date of transfer

Name of the
Fund

Amount.

Date of
transfer

18,82,514

NA
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial
year: Not applicable

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads - NA

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - NA

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year = INR 18,82,514/-

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

9. a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years : Nil

b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial year(s): Nil

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the
asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Nil

For Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

sd/- sd/-

Chief Executive Officer Chairman - CSR Committee

Place: Chennai
Date: July 29, 2021
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Para A as per SCHEDULE V:
[See Regulation 34(3) and 53(f)]

The annual report shall contain the following additional disclosures:

1. Related Party Disclosure:

1. The listed entity shall make disclosures in compliance with the Accounting
Standard on“Related Party Disclosures”.

2. The disclosure requirements shall be as follows:

Disclosures of amounts at the year end and the maximum amount of

S Lty e ] loans/ advances/ Investments outstanding during the year.

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries - Samunnati Agro Solutions
Private Limited for INR 700.00 MN

1 Holding Company | Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates - Nil

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are
interested - Nil

Same disclosures as applicable to the parent company in the accounts of subsidiary

2. Subsidiary ——

Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company and subsidiary company, when

> Holding Company the company has made a loan or advance in the nature of loan. - Nil

For the purpose of above disclosures Directors’ interest shall have the same meaning as given
in Section184 of Companies Act, 2013.

Disclosures of transactions of the listed entity with any person or entity belonging to the
promoter/promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more shareholding in the listed entity, in the
format prescribed in the relevant accounting standards for annual results.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

@ Floar, A wing,
4T1, Anno Salsl,

Teynampel, Chennai - 600 018,
india

1 481 444 2840089
F 491 444 2040044

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standaslone financial statements of Samunnatl Financial
Intermediation & Services Private Limited (the Campany'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as al
31 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatary information

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the Information regquired by the Companies Act, 2013
{'Act’) in the manner 80 required and give a lrue and fair view in corfarmity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in Indig Including Indian Accounting Standards {'Ind AS") specified under section
133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Campany as at 31 March 2021, and its profit (including other
comprenensive income), Its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

Wae conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditer's
Responsibifibes for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our reporl. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics tssued by the Institute of Charered Accountants
of India (1CAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requiremants and the Code of Ethics. We belisva that
the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriale to provide a basis for cur opiion,

Emphasis of Matter = Impact of COVID 19

We draw attention to Note 44 of to the accampanying standalone linancial statemants, which describes
the uncerainties ralating to the effects of Covid-18 pandeinic on the Company's operations and the
impact on the impairment provision recognised towards the loan assets outstanding as at 31 Mg
2021 Qur apinion is not modified in respect of this matter,
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ek i o) iy il gt ialien
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Key Audit Matters

5. Keyaudit matters are those matters that, in our prefessional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

6. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in

our report.

Key audit matter

[ How our audit addressed the key audit
| matter

First time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards Framewark

Refer Note 2 for significant accounting policies and

statements, the Company has adopted the Indian
Accounting Standards natified under section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013, read together with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 {as amended) {Ind AS") with effect from 01
April 2020 (01 April 2019 being the transition date)
and prepared the first set of standalone financial
staternents under Ind AS frarmework in the current
year.

For periods up 1o and including the year ended 31
March 2020, the Company prepared its standalone
financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {Indian
GAAP or previous GAAP).

This change in the financial reporting framework
required an end-to-end evaluation of the potential
impact on each component of the financial
statement including presentation thereof, additional
notes and disclosures which were carried out by the
management with the hep of a management exper
and involved significant efforts. This process also
required ihe management to apply significant
judgements 1o identify and elect appropriate
accounting policies suitable for various transactions
and balances relating to the operations of the
Campany including electing of available aptions far
transition of balances as at transition date from the
previous GAAP to the new GAAP.

Further, the first time preparation of the Ind AS
financial statements involved preparation and
presentation of additional notes and disclosures as
required by the Ind AS framework as compared to
the previous GAAP in addition to Nole 42 to the
financial statements setting forth the reconciliation
of balances from previous GAAP ta the new GAAP
as at the ftransition date, and the impact of
rastatement on the resulls of the comparative
period due to such transition.

Qur procedures in respect of the first time

Note 42 far reconciliation. adoption of Ind AS financial reporting
framawork included, but not Iimited to, the
As disclosed in Note 42 to the standalone financial | following:

Obtained an understanding of
management's processes and controls to
identify the potential impact areas in the
financial statements due to the adoption of
Ind AS;

Reviewed the diagnostics performed by the
management and their experts 10 assess
the impact on Ind AS transition to the
individual financial statement line items

Reviewed the professional competence,
professional reputation, experience,
objectivity and the scope of work of the
management's expert in relation {o
providing assistance in Ind AS transition

Reviewed  the mplementation  of
exemptions availed and options chosen by
the Company in accardance with the
requirements of Ind AS 101, First Time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards;

Assessed the appropriateness of the
adjustments made to the opening halance
sheet as at 01 April 2019,

Assessed the appropriateness of the
adjustments recorded in the financial
staternents as of and for the year-ended 31
March 2020 which were prepared n the
previous GAAP

Evaluated the  appropriateness  of
accounting policies adopted by the
Company on transition to Ind AS on the
basis of understanding of the Company,
the nature and size of its operations and
the requirements of relevant accounting
standards under the Ind AS framework;




Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

The areas where there was a significant impact on
account of first time adoption of Ind AS; involved the
application of the following standards amongst
others:

Ind AS 109; Financial Instruments

Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 102: Share-based Payment

Ind AS 12: Income Taxes

Considenng the significance of the above transition
with respect to the standalone financial statements,
the complexities and audit efforts involvad, this
matter has been identified as a key audit matter for
the current year audit.

e Obtained written represeniations from
management and those charged wiih
governance on whether the standalone
financial statements comply with the Ing
AS in all respects, and

= FEvaluated the appropriateness and
adequacy of disclosures in the slandalone
financial statements on adoption of the Ind
AS to determine if these are in compliance
with the requirements of the Ind AS:

of Covid-19 and Note 33 for credit risk disclosures)

Impairment loss on loan assets (expected credit losses on loans) and Implementation of
COVID-19 related packages {Refer Note 2.5 for significant accounting policies, Note 44 far Impact

As at 31 March 2021, the Company has reported
gross loan assets of T €,829.63 millions against
which an impairment loss of ¥ 153.44 millions has
been recorded.

The Expected Credit Loss ("'ECL') approach as
required under Ind AS 109, Financial instruments,
involves high degree of complexity and requires
significant judgement of the management.

The Management is required to determine the ECL
that may occur over either a 12-month period or the
remaining life of an asset, depending on the
categorization of the individual asset. The key areas
of judgment include:

1. Categorization of loans in Stage 1, 2 and 3 based
on identification of:
a)exposures with Significant Increase in Credit
Risk (SICR) since their origination which
involved determination of days past due as per
the guidance under Ind AS 109 and
b)Indiwdually impaired / default exposures.

2. Segmentation of loan porfolio based on nature
of customers for risk profiling.

3 Technigues used to determine Loss Given
Default (LGD") and Probabilily of Default ('PC")
fo calculate an ECL based on past experience.

4. The impact of different future macroeconomic
conditions in the determination of ECL.

These parameters are derived from the
Company's internally  developed  statistical
models, historical data and macro-economic

factors and & change in such models or
assumptions could have a material impact on the
accompanying financial statements.

Cur audit focused on assessing the
appropriateness of management's judgment
and estimates used in the impairment analysis
through procedures that included, but were not
limited o, the following:

= Evaluated the Company's accounting
policies for estimation of expected

credit loss on loan assets in
accordance with the requirements of
Ind AS 108,

+ Obtained an understanding of the
madelling techniques adopted by the
Company including the key inputs and
assumptions. Since modelling
assumptions  and parameters are
based on historical data, we assessed
whether historical experience was
representative of current
circumstances and was relevant in
view of the recent impairment lossas
incurred within the portfolios.

+ Assessed the design and
implementation, and tesied ihe
operating effectiveness of controls
over the modelling process including
governance over monitoring of the
model and approval of key
assurmptions

» Evaluated the appropriateness of the
Company's process of determination
of significant increase in credit risk
and default assets and the rebuttal of
presumptions prescribed under Ind
AS 109 and the basis for classification
of exposures into various stages.

e Verified appropriatenass of
segmentation of ioan assels based on
nature of customers for risk profiling.
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Implementation of COVID-19 related packages
Also, during the current year, the Reserve Bank of
India ('RBI') issued several guidelines/notifications
to NBFCs, as a relief measures to the borrowers,
that included:-

1. Regulatory Packages that required NBFCs
to provide moratorium in repayment of
loans based on certain conditions and the
asset classification and provisioning norms
to be applied on such loans by NBFCs.

2. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
{MSME) sector — Restructuring  of
Advances

These factors required the models to be reassessed
based on the available information including the
additicnal risk profiling due to the impact of COVID-
18 Pandemic and economic risk 1o measure the
ECL.

Management has made a number of interpretaiions
and  assumptions when  designing  and
implementing models that are compliant wilh the
standard. The accuracy of daia flows and the
implementation of refated controls is critical for the
integrity of the estimaied impairment provisions.
Considering the significance of the above matter to
the financial statements and the significant auditor
attention required to test such complex accounting
estimates, we have identified this as a key audit
matter for current year audit.

We also draw attention to Note 44 of the
accompanying standalone financial statements,
reqarding effects of COVID-19 uncertainlies on the
appropriateness of impairment losses provided on
the above mentioned loan assets as on 31 March
2021, as the same is fundamental fo the
understanding of the users of financial statements.

Assessed the key judgments and
assumptions relating to the macro-
economic scenanos including the
impaci of COVID 19 pandemic, RBI
guidelines/notification and the
associated probability weights.

Obtained ihe approved pclicy of beard
of directors to understand the relief
measures sanclioned fo various class
of borrowers in accordance with the
directions given by the RBl and tesied,
on samgle basis, the compliance with
respect to asset classification and
provisioning norms as per such
directions.

Tested management’s computation of
ECL by performing following
procedures:

a. Evaluated management’s
groupings of borowers on the
basis of customer segments;

b. Tested classification of loans into
various categories based on their
past due status and other loss
indicators;

c. Tested various assumptions for
calculation of expected loss viz,
probability of defauit, loss given
default, exposure at defauit;

d. Performed test of details of the
input information vsed in ECL
computation on a sample basis.

e. Tested the arithmeatical accuracy
of Ihe computation.

f.  Performed analfical procedures
by determining various ratios or
percentage-based measures to
review overall reasonableness of
the estimate determined by the
management.

Assessed disclosures included in the
financial statements in respect of ECL
including the specific disclasure made
with regards to the management’s
evaluation of the uncertainties ansing
from COVID-18 and its impact on
ECL.
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Information Technology system for the financial reporting process

The Company is highly dependent on their IT
system (Encore software) far recording customer's
operational dala, supporting their business
processes, ensuring complete and  accurate
processing of financial transactions and supporting
the averall intemal control framework

This system is maintained by a third party which
acts as technology pariner for implementing an end-
fo-end loan management solution, infrastructure
and network componenis. Their scope includes
customer  information management, user
management and role-based access control.

Encore software is a complex IT system which runs
on a mobility platform and is used for recording all
disbursements and collections, identification and
tagging of pledged loans o customers and
calculaiing interest income and overdue days.

The Company’s accounting and financial reporting
processes are dependent on manual controls which
are dependent on above IT system which impacts
key financial accounting and reporting items such
as loans, interest income, impairment on loans
amongst cthers. The controls implemented by the
Company in its IT environment determine the
integrity, accuracy, completeness and validity of
data that is processed by the applications and is
ultimately used for financial reporting.

Accordingly, considering the pervasive impact of
the [T system on the standalone financial
statemants and testing of such IT systems and
related controls being the most significant aspect of
our audit strategy, we have determined the same as
a Key audit matter.

Our audit procedures with the invalvement of
auditer's |IT specialists included, but were not
limited to the following:

« Obtained an understanding of the
Company’s IT related control
environment  and  conducted  risk
assessment and identified IT

applications, dala bases and operating
systems that are relevant tc our audit.
Alse, obtained an understanding of the
changes that were made o the identified
IT applications during the audit period
including  the impact on  asset
classification on account of moratorium
relief extended to ils customers and
tested those changes that had a
significant impact on financial reporting;

- Evaluated the appropriateness of
contrels  for security governance to
protect systems and data from
urauthorised use, including logging of
security events and procedures fo
identify vulnerabilities. Tested controls for
sagregalion of dulies around pregram
maintenance, security administration and

key business processes.

» Evaluated management processes for
modifications to the 1T environment
including monitoring and authorization of
such modifications and interactions with
the third party for carrying out such
modifications Tested changes made to
the IT system that involved significant
impact on financial reporting.

+ Tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Company's [T
controls over the IT applicalions as
identified above;

= Tested related interfaces, configuration
and other application layer controls
identified during our audit and report logic
for system generated reports relevant to
the audit mainly for loans, interest income
and impairment of loan assets for
evaluating completenass and accuracy,

+« Tesled IT general contrals padicularly,
logical access. change management and
aspecis of IT operational controls.
Tesled that requests for access io
systems were apprapriately reviewed
and authorized;
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« Tested conlrols around Company's
periodic  review of access rights;
inspected reguests of changes to
systems for appropriate approval and
authorization; and

¢« Where deficiencies were identified,
tested compensating conirols  or
performed alternative procedures to
ensure control objectives are met.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

7. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comgrises the infarmation included in the Annual Report and Director's report, but does not include the
standalone financial stalements and cur auditar’s report thereon. The Annual Report and Directot’s
report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Qur gpinian on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connecticn with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalene firancial statements or our knowledge
cbiained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materiaily misstated.

When we read the Annual Report and Director's report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the maiter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

8 The accompanying standalong financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters staled in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these slandalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequaie accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the asseis of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial contrels, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error.

9. In preparing the finanaal statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Campany or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

10. Those Board of Directors is also responsible for ovarseging the Company's financial reporting process.




11,

12.

13.

14.

15.

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasenable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whale
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high fevel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accerdance with Standards on Auditing will always datect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonahly be expecled lo influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain grofessiconal skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial staterments, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence thal is sufficient and appropnate o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissians, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are aopropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operaling effectiveness of such
controls;

« [Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies vsed and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

= Conciude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceriainty exists related to avents
or conditions thal may cast significant deubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a gaing
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainiy exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's repori to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
ta cease to continue as a going concern;,

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the plannad
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have camplied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matiers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditer's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the malter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicaied in our report because the adverse consequences of daing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Mattfer:
16. The Company had prepared standalone financial statements for the year endec 31 March 2020 in

17,

18.

19.

accordance with accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amended), on which we have issued an unmedified opinion
vide our audit report dated 02 July 2020. These stancalone financial statemenis have been adjusted
for the differences in the accounting principles adoptad by the Company on transition to Ind AS, which
have alsa been audited by us. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 187 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicatble to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71)
of the Act. Accordingly, reporing under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143{3} of the Act, based on our audit.
we reporl, to the extent applicable, that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which ic the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone
financial statements:

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have bean kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

the standalone financial siaterments dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

c

—

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

g} on the basis of the writien representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Direclors, nane of the directors is disgualified as en 31 March 2021 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2} of the Act;

fi  we have also audiled the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date and our repont daled 29 July 2021 as per Annexure
B expressed unmodified opinion; and

@) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 (as amendead), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I. the Company, as detailed in note 37 to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2021;

ii.  the Company did not have any long-terrn coniracts inciuding derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseesable losses as at 31 March 2021,

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021; and




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

v, the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes
were applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 {o 30 December 2018, which are not
relevant to these standalone financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

B

Praveen Warrier

Partner

Membership No.: 214767
UDIN- 21214767AAAACAIGE]

Place: Kannur
Date: 29 July 2021
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Samunnati Financial
Intermediation & Services Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2021

Annexure A referred to in paragraph {1) under the heading ‘Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements’ of our report of even date

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and iaking intc consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit,
and to the best of cur knowledge and belief, we report that:

() {(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative detalls and situation of fixed assets.

{b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of s fixed asseis under

which fixed assets ars verified in a phased manner over a period of two years, which, in
our oginion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. In accordance with this program, certain fixed assets were verified during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c} The tille deeds of all the immovable properties (which are included under the head

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

{v)

(vi)

(viia)

‘Property. glant and equipment’) are held in the name of the Company.

The Company does not have any inveniory. Accordingly, the provisions of ¢lause 3(ii) of
the Order are not applicable.

The Company has granted unsecured loans (o parties covered in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act; and with respect to the same:

(a) in our opinion the terms and conditions of grant of such loans are nol, prima facie,
prgjudicial to the company’s interest.

(b) the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been slipulated
and lhe repayment/receipts of the principal amount and the interest are regular;

(c) there is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such companies, firms,
LLPs or other parlias.

In our opinion, the Company has comgplied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Actin respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
{as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

The Ceniral Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-
section {1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's services. Accerdingly, the
provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicabte.

Undisputed slatutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurange, income-
fax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise. value added tax, cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited to
the appropriate avthorities, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. Further,
no undisputed amounis payable in respect thereof were outslanding at the year-end for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Samunnati Financial
Intermediation & Services Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2021

(o)

x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiil)

(xiv)

(xv)

The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-lax, service-tax, duty of cusloms,
duty of excise and value added tax on account of any dispule, are as follows:

Statement of Disputed Dues:

Name Nature Amount {¥ | Amount paid | Period to | Forum where dispute is
of the | of dues | in millions} | under which the | pending
statute Protest (¥ in | amount
millions) relates
Income | Income | 10.18 2.1 AY 16-17 | Commissicner of Income
Tax Act, | tax and tax {(Appeals)
1961 Interest
Income | Income | 3.57 0.8 AY 47-18 | Commissioner of Income |
Tax Act, | tax and tax (Appeals)
1961 Interest
Income | Interest | 0.29 Nil AY 18-18 | Assessing Officer
Tax Act,
1961

The Company has not defauited in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution
or a bank or government or any dues to debenture-holders during the year.

In our opinion, the Company has applied moneys raised by way of issuance of debentures and
the term loans for the purposes for which these were raised. The Company did not raise maneys
by way of initial public offer/ further public offer dunng the year.

No fraud by ihe Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported gduring the period covered by our audit.

The provisions of Section 187 of the Act read with Schedule V 1o the Act are not applicable to
the Company since the Company is not a public company as definad under Section 2(71) of the
Act. Accordingly, provisicns of clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable.

In our apinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are nof applicable.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and
188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS.

During the year, lhe Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convenrtible debentures

In our opinion, the Company has not entered inlo any non-cash transactions with the directors
or persons connecled with them covered under Section 192 of the Acl.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date fo the members of Samunnatl Financial
Intermediation & Services Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2021

(xvi) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and such registration has been obtained by the Company.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

7

Praveen Warrier

Partner

Membership No.: 214767
UDIN: 21214767AAAACAQBE3

Place: Kannur
Date: 22 July 2021
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of Samunnati
Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2021

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
{"the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Samunnati Financial
Intermediation & Services Private Limited (the Campany') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021,
we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company
as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
contrals based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Campany considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guigance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company's
palicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection cf frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our respansivility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial siatements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india ('ICAI') prescribed under Section
143(10} of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Interna! Financial Controls Over Financia!
Reparting ('the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAl Those Standards and the Guidance Nota require
that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audii to oblain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with referance to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial contrals, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’'s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements |

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies ang
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recarded as necessary lo permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
wilh generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the campany are
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Samunnati
Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2021

being made only in accordance with autherisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial staterments.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Finhancial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
rmisstatements due to errer or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference io financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company bhas, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021,
based on the internal financial controls with reference te financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 301076N/N500013

g

Praveen Warrier

Partner

Membership No.: 214767
UDIN: 21214767AAAACADGEH3

Place: Kannur
Date: 29 July 2021



Samuynnatl Financlel infermediation & Sarvices Private Limited

Sandalons Belance Shoet as at 31 March 2021

(AN amounts are in milians of Indien Rupeed (T), unieas oiharwise stafed)

Paricilars Nele Anat An ot At
3% March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2018

ASSETS
Financial assols

a) Canh and cash equivalanie 1 1,157.74 1,184 02 ABT 43
b] Bank baluncas aihar than (a) ebova 4 521,68 284,04 178,82
€] Loams ] BETE.18 7.428.27 460827
) Invesimanis g 1,158 14 Te0.10 260.80
e} Othar Nnanclal suaets 7 111,33 108,42 B0.02
12,624,948 B.762.88 6,003,094
Monfinancial aesits
a) Currant lax ssseis (nel) a §8.42 14.849 .60
b) Dafarred e sssels {nai) ] 108.08 105.51 1.2
@) Property, plant and aquipmant 0 §4.38 86,37 35,70
d) Rignt of use essale i 11.22 16 84 087
o) Oihar nlanglble anssts 10 25.23 1.44 1.74
1) Intangible nasats unesr development 10 0.46 24,35 4.18
gl Othar non-financlal assete 1" 28.02 32.88 20.95
282.82 82,28 130.80
Tole| ausats 12,807.77 10,028,13 5,731.60
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Llablitas
Elrancial llabilitian
n) Dobi securiles 12 42382 1,622.87 1,818,81
b) Barowings (ethas (han dell secudties) 12 347832 317128 1,808.38
g} Qhar france labiting 14 44,88 8301 7742
7.736.13 481723 3,058.41
Nondinancial liabllitios
8] Provisions 1B 27.30 827 1a.78
b Other nor-tnancial babikiass 16 18.76 23.28 1074
4405 48.55 24.48
Equity
8] Equity shand capilal 17 1876 18,78 14.48
b} Other equity 18 5,106.83 5,075 .58 1,659.20
! 512550 5,080.38 wﬁ
Tolal labiltles and squity 12 807.77 _10,02513
Tha sscompanying noles 1 10 45 lorm an inlegral part of the nancisl sintemeils
As par our repon of even daie allscred
For Walker Chanaiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Bcard of Divediors of
Cnatared Accounienls Spmunneti Financial intarmediation & Sarvices Privalo Limied
(Firm Ragn No. 0010TENINS00013) i
50 Anil | Gurunath Neelaman!
Director snd CEC Diracior
DIN 01188011 DiN : D3T99505
*
Dﬁmw)\h,\ Jgﬁ"
Blace Kannur Ashaok Dhamankar Ashwinl Vankatraman
Dwter 29 July 2021 Group Chial Fingncial Difcer Company Secralary
Place: Channal Pinca: Chennal
Dule: 26 July 2021 Dale. 28 July 2021
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Bamunnwll Flnancial Intermadiation & Services Frivato Limitad
Standalono Statoment of profit end loes lar the year andod 31 March 2031

(AN amaents ang in miltasg of ndlen Rupeds (£) unisss olherwide slaled)

Partlculam Mota Your ended Yeas endog
L 31 March 2021 31 March 3020
| Aevanue from operations
{1} Inkes wst income 1% 1,603, 88 1,281.81
1,602.80 1,281.81
I Ol Ipcome 20 72497 R8T
I Total Incomo (1+H) 1,676.82 1,380.28
Expangos
1) Flnance cosiy 21 fA54 10 43712
(il Impeirmasnt on Anecslal instrumernls 72 32261 pal ¥
() Employes beneft orperese e ABE TE 40T 40
{Iv} Daprecialion end amanizatian 24 2808 1728
(v} Othar exponacn 25 173,60 167.46
IV Tolal expansca 1,674,068 135873
¥ Proflt befors tax (14V) 77 1.28
VI Tax expanme ]
1) Curant tax . 9215
(V) Dalermed tax (0.84) {E5.00)
Vil Pralit/ (less) for iha yoor (V1) 3.7 {21.80)

Vill Qther comprehensive incoma (OCH)
{1 tbams that will not be reclassifed 1@ profil of lovs

&) Ramensuremant galna and fiostes) on dalinad bensfit plans Bap (1.48)
(M) Incoma lax Impacl Iharaon .| (1.34] 0ar
Qther comprehensiva Incoma (i) 411 11.14]
IX Total gomprahensiva incoma for the year (VI T.04 23.01)
X Earnings per agulty share (laco velus Ra. 100 per squlty shan) F
Basls (€} 1038 8019
Dikiled 1t} 184 60.18)
The se.ampanying nolss 1 to 45 domm an inlegral pad of the nancial slslements
A pae ouf fepar] of aven dais altached
For Welker Chandick & Co LLP For end on bahal! of tha Board of Divectors of
Chartared Arcouniants Samunnatl Financisl Intermediation & Sorvices Private Limitod
[Firm Rogn Na. 00107EMNEI0013)
g M '
Pravesn Warrier Anl Wimar Gurunath Neslamani
Parinar Director and CED ; Directot
Membership No, 214TB7 OIN ; 01188011 DiN ; 02798500
Hhorarda, @7
Asnok Dhamanker Ashwini Venkatraman
Oroup Crisf Financial Oficar Comparyy Sacrotary
Piata! K Placa: Channal Place Channal

Dule: 25 July 201 Detac 29 July 2021 Date 28 Juiy 2021
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Samunnstl Financlal Intermedistion & Sorvicos Privato Limiled
Standalone Statement of cash flows lor the y2ar anded 31 March 20249
(AN ameunts are In milions of Indian Rupsess (), unless olherwiss staled)

Yaar anded Yaar ended

31 Nlarch 2021 31 March 2020
A. Operating activities
Praht belore fax 7T 1.26
Arflusimants for
Depreclalion and amortzalion 28,09 17.28
Employae sleck opfion apanses 40,608 164,47
Gratully and |aave encashment sxpensss T.82 10.6%
Leas an sole of propedy, plant and equipmant 0.74 0.26
Incoms fram mutual funds {4.00) (5087
Income from dabl funds {8 85) »
Impalrment an fnancial Inslruments (81 siertised oosl) 232.59 160.66
Bad debts writhen off 208,82 g1.18
Amorlisalon of adginalion costs of barmowings 22.58 18.50
GCash gonorated from cperations bafore working caplial ahangos 411,85 38037
Changes In working capital:
Loans (2,670.43) {3,059.85)
Other Nnandal assats {4.81) (28,40)
Other non-inancis! asysls 2.88 {90,18)
Mot movemant In provisions (4.11) [4.57)
Cther finenclal and pon-fnancial llabilkeg 40,67 ¥8 BE
Cach unad In operations ,205.49) {2,661.87)
Income Lexes paid (nel of refunds) {43.53) (80.48)
Met cash (uged inj operating activitior (4) [4.248.02) (2,782.46)
B. Invasling activities
Purchsas of property, plant and eguipméant ond Intangitée asiels {1221) (Bd.42)
Proceeds from sala of property, plani and eguipment 1.02 noe
Movemant in capltal advances 1.58 {2.1E)
Movament In deposits with banks and financlal Inelliutions 1259.41) |87.22)
Purcheo of invesimanis [376.04) [829.60)
Irilwrest Incomae recalvad on Invesiments measursd &t amortissd 1368 §0.81
cost, FVTPL and at cosl
Nt cash (used In) investing activities (B) {831.11) |662,50)
€. Flnanclng activities
Proceeds from lesue of shavs Including eharg pramium ( nat of share [hais sspensey) - 282518
Buyback of shares - (44.27)
Progeeds from daibl secuiiiies 3,143 37 B
Rapaymant of debt sscurities {575.00) -
Precesds from other than debl securiiiss 3,756,650 2,466,680

Rapayment of olher lhan debl securiiies
Mat onsh generaled from flnencing activitias (C)

Met (decrease)f Ingregsa In cash and cash equivelents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivelents gl he boginning of the year
Cosh gnd cash equlvalenis at the end of the year

(3,471.02) 11.328.85)
2,863,806 4,111.84

(28.28)
1.184.02
1,157.74

858,68
487.43
1,184,02
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2.2

24

2.5

Carporate infermation

Samunnat| Flnancial Intermediation & Services Private Limited (The Company') Is a Non-Banking Financial Instiiution (NBFI} ncorporated on June 23,
2014. The Company has received cedificate of registration dated February 25, 2016 from the Reserva Bank of india to camy on the business of Mon-
Banking Financfal Institution without accepting denosits The Company provides secured and unsacured leans to farmers, farmer producer organizations,
community based organizations and Agri-enterprises The company commenced active NBFI operations from the month of July 2016, The Company is an
MBFC - Systemically Impertant Non-Deposit taking Company (NBFC-ND-5I') per regulations of Reserve Bank of india (R8I,

Easls of preparation of financial statements

Statement of compliance wilh ind AS and basis for preparation and presentation of financial statements

These standalone financial statements of the Campany have been prepared in accordance with the indian Accpunting Standards as per the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards} Rules 2015 as amended and notfied under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Acl™), In conformity with the
accountng principles generally accepted In nd'a and cther relevant provisions of tne Act  Any acplication guidance! clanfications/ directions issued by RBI
ar other regulators are implemented as and whan they are issuedf applizab'e.

The Company's financial stalements up to and for the year ended 371 March 2020 were prepared n accordance with the Generally Accepled Accounting
Principles In India ('GAAP) under the histoncal cost convention as a going concern and on accrual basis, and in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Acl, 2013, lne Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companles Act, 2013 ("the Aet”) read with rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules 2014 {as amended) prudentiai norms for income recognition. assels classification and provisioning for non-parforming assets as well as
coftingency provision for standard asseis as prescribed by Tne Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for N3FCs ana the gudelines issuad by Securties and
Exchange Beard of Indla (SEBI) to the exdent applicable, collectively referred as "Previous GAAP”,

These are the Company's firs! standalone financiel stalemends prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) The Company has
applied Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards for transition from Previous GAAP 1o Ind AS. An explanation of how transition
Ind AS has affected the previously reparted financial position, financial pedormance and cash flow of the Company (s provided in Note 42

Tnese standalone financial statements were approved by the Campany’s Beard of Directors and auviherized for issua on 28 July 2021,

Functional and presentation currency
These [inancial stalements arg presented in Indian Rupges (‘INR' or 'Rs.t which s also the Company's fungiional currency Amounts |ess that the
reunding off norms adopled by the Company ars disclosed as 0 All amounts are reunced-off lo the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Ristorical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on the hislorical cost basis axcapt lor cerlain financlal instrumenis which are measured at fair values.

Measurement of fair value changes

A number of the Company's accounting policies and discloaures require the measurement of fali values, jor both financial and nen-financial assels and
liakilties. The Company has established policles and procedures with respect to the measurement of {alr values, Far values are categonized into different
Imvels In a fair value hierarchy based on the Inputs used in the valuation lechnlquas as follows:

-Level 10 Quated prices (unadjusted) in aclive rmarkels for idenlical assels and liabilitiss,
-Level 2 inpuis olher than quoled prices included in Level 1 lhal are observable for the asset or liability, sither direclly or indirsctly.
-Level 3. inputs for the asset cr liztilily thal are not based on observabla markel dala (unobsarvable Inputs)

Crltlcal accounting estimates and Judgements

In prepadng these linancial statements, management has made judgemants, estimates and assumplions that affect the application of the Company's
accounting policies and the reporied ameunts of assets, labilbies, Income, expenses and the disclosures of conlingant assets and liabillles Actual resulis
mmay differ from these estimates Estmates and underlying assumptions are rowewed on an ongoing basis. Revisons to esfrnates are recognized
prospeciively

The key assumphons concerning the future and othar key sources of estmation uncertainly at the reperting date, that have a sigmficant nsk of causing a
mataral adustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabllities within the next financial year. are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and esbhmates on parameters avallacle when the financial staterments were issued. Bxasting eircumstances and assumptions about future
develaopments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances ansing hat are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptons when they occur.

“ollowing are areas that involved a higher degree of ¢stmatlen and judgement or complexity In determiming the carrylng ameount of some assets and
iabiliies

Estimatian of uncertalnlies relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

The Company bas made delailed assessment of its |lquidity position for the nexd year ana the recoverability and carrying value of its assets compnsing
property, olant and equipment, investments, financial and non financial assets Rased on current indicaters of fulure economis conditions, the Compamy
enpects lo recover the camying amount of Lhese assels. The Company centinues to evaluate them as highly probab'e considering the presant business
trends. The srtuation is changing rapidiy ghving fise to inherent uncerainty arcund the extent and tming of the pofential future impact of the COVID-1§&
which may be different from that estimaled as at the dale of aoproval of the financial statements. The Company wi'l continue to closely monitor any
material changes arising of fulure economic conditions and impac! o1 ils business,

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Management reviews its eshmate of the useful lives of depreciable/amonizable assats atl each reporing date, based on the expected utiity of {he assets,
Uncerainbes in thess estimalas reals 1o technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assels.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements jcontinued)

Incame tax
Sigrificant eshmalas are Invalved in delermining the prawisien dor income taxes, including amount expected 10 be pad / recovered 105 Licenain 1ax
positions,

Deferred tax assets
Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewng the deferred tax assels at each reponing date lo determing the amount of defeired tax
assols hat can be retained! recognized, baszed upon the likely tming and the level of fulure 1axacle pretits woether witn fulure 1ax planning stratogies.

Fair value

iWanagement uses valuallon technigues in measuring the fair value of financial inglruments where active market quotas are not avallable n apafying the
valuation lechniques, managerment makos maximum use of market Inputs and uses estmates and assumptions that are, as far as possitle, consisient
with observable data thal market parlicipants would use In pricing the Instrumenl Whare apphicable data 1» nol observabla, management uses rs best
estimate about the assurmpllons that markel participants would make. These estimalas may vary from the actual pnees that would be achieved in an arm's
\ength lransaction al the raporling date.

Effective Intergst Rate {EIR) Mathod

The Company recoanizgs interasl incoma / expense using a rale of relurn that represents the bast estimale of & constanl rate of return over the sxpected
hfe of the loans given f taken. This gstimation, by nature, requires an element of judgsrmant regarding the expaclad behaviour and life-cycle of Lha
instruments, as well as axpecied changes to olher fee Incemelfexpanse that are integral parts of the nstrument

Impairment of financlal assets
In accorance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses 'Expected Credit Loss' medel (ECL), for evaluating impairment of financial assets ather than those
measured ai Fair valug through profit and loss

Overview of the Expected Credil Loss {ECL) modet

Expected Credi Loss, at each reporting date, s measured through a loss sllowance for a financial asset

At an amount equal to the |ifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrurnent has Increased significantly slnce nilial recogrition Al
an amount egual to 12-month expectad credit losses, if the credil nsk on a finandal instrument has not increased significantly since initial recoanifion,

Lifelime expected credit losses means expected credit losses mat result from 21l possip'e default events over the expected Irfe of a financial asset
12-month expected credil losses means the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that resull from dafault evenls on financial assets thal are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date

The Company perorms an assessmenl, althe end of each reporting period, of whether a financlal assets credit risk has increasad significantly since initial
recogrition When rmaking ine assgssment, the change in 1he risk of a default oceurnng over 1he expected life of the financial instrument is used instead of
the change in the amount of expected credit losses.

For non-impalred financial assets (Stage 1 and Stage 2);

- Stage 1 13 comprised of all non-Impaired financial assets which have not experienced a significant increase in eradit sk (SICR) since 1n tial recognibon.
A 12-month ECL pravision |8 made for stage 1 financial assets. In assessing whether credit risk has wicreased sigarficantly, the Company compares the
risk of 2 defeull gccurrng on the nancial assel as al the reporting date with the nsk of a default oocurring on the finangial asset as at the date of indtial
recoghition

- Stage 2 Is compnsed of all non-impaired financial assets which have experienced a sigrmificant increase In credit nisk since Intial recogniion. The
Comgpary racognizas liletime ECL for stage 2 inancial assets. In subsequent reporting peniods, if the credil nsk of ihe financial [nstrument improves such
that there 1= ne longer a signlficant increass in credit rigk since inilial racognition. then anlities shall revart to recognizing 12 months ECL provision

For Impalred financlal assets (Stage 31

Financlal assets are classified as stage 3 when there i3 objective evidence of impairmant as a result of one or more 108% events Ihat have accurred afler
initial recagnition with a negative impact on the esumaigd futire cash flows of a loan cr a portiolio of lcans, The Company recognizes fifetime ECL for
impaired financlal assets.

The Igans are segmented into hemogenaus product categories to determine the histenical PO/LGD as per similar risk prefiles, this segmentation is subject
to reguiar review The loan porfolio are segmented inte two broad categeries ‘e, loans to Community-Based Organizations or Farmer Producer
Organizations 'CBO/FPO and Others' and Agri enterprises

The company has rebutted the presumpbion prescribed under Ind AS 109 that the credit risk increases sigmficantly since inftial recogniton when
contractual payments are more than 3@ days (Stage 2) and that dafault occurs when a financlal asset (s 80 days past due {Stage 3). The nsk prefiling 1s
determined for each business vertical indicaled below based on nisterical and market trends and directions from RBI including guidance for identification
of NPA in agricultural advances

Mame of the pool of loan assets | Stage Loans Days past due (DPD)

CBO/FPO and others
Stage 1 | Uplo 60 days

Swage 2 | 61 days 10 240 days
Stage 3 | More than 240 days
Agrianlgrprises
Stage 1 | Upto 60 days

Stage 2 | 81 days Io 360 days
Stage 3 | More than 360 days
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2.5

2.6

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (conlinued)

Estimatlen of Expected Credit Loss:

The mechanics of the ECL calcutations are outined below and the key e.ements arg, as follows

Probabiiy of Default (PD) ~ The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelhood of default over a given tima horizon. The Company uses hstorical
Information to determine PD. Considering the different categories of custemers, the Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio inlo v pools {CBOFFO
and othess] For each pock of Iaan assets, the PD s calculated using Incremental 30 DPD appreach considenng esh s/ippage using histoncal information

Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Expesure at Defaul iz an estimate of the exposure at a fulure defaull date, considering expected changes in the
exposure after the reporting date, including repaymenls of principal and interest, whathar scheduled by contract or atherwise, expected drawdowns on
commitizd facllibes, and accrued wtersst from missed payments, Management hed assumed thal the outstanding balance as at each reporing date
{including interest and other components) as ths exposure al defaull for purpose of compubng the ECL,

Loss Given Defauit (LGD} — The Loss Given Default s an estimate of the ogs ansing in the case where a defaull ccours ala given e 11 is based on the
difference between ine contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect o recaive, including from the realization of any collaleral.

To mitigate it credit risks on financial assets, the Company seaks 1o use collateral, where possibla. The collaleral comes (n vanous lorms, such as land,
building, books debts, securties, letters of crediVguarantees, slc. However, the fair value of collaleral affects (he calculation of ECL. The fair value of the
same is basad on management udgements,

Fonward tooking information - While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic daveloprents sccurring in the sconomy
and markel it operates in On a penodic basis, the Company analyses jf there is any relationship between key economle rends hke GOP, benchmark rates
set by the Reserve Bank of 'ndia, inflation ato. with the estimate of PO, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal data While the intarnal
estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may no! be aways reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the
methodology to reflect such macroeconomic trends reasonably.

Impairment of non-financial assels (PPE)

The impairment assessmenl of non-financial assels is determined based on estimation of recoverable amount of such assets, The assumplons
used in cormiputing he recoverable amount are based on management judgement considenng the timing of future cash fows, discount rates and the
risks specific 1o the assat,

Dafined benefit plans and other long term employee benefits

The cast of the defined beneft plan and other long term emploves benefils, and the present velue of such obligatinn are determined by the fndependant
actuarial valuer. An acluanal valuation Involves making various assumplions thal may differ fram actual developments in future. Managemen believes that
the assumptions used by \he actuary in detarminaten of the discount rate, future salary ingreases:, morality rales and attntion rates are reasonable Due to
he camplextes involved In the valuation and 118 'ong term nature, this obligation is highly sensitive 10 changes in these assumptlons. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting dale,

Provisions and cther contingent liablitles

The reliatte measure of the estmales and Judgements pertaining to lifigations and the regulatory proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company's
business are disclosed as contingent llabllites.

Esbmates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectalions of future events that
may have 2 financial impact on the Company and that are beliaved 1o be reasonabls under the circumstances,

First time adoption of Ind AS - mandatory excaptions and ¢ptional exemptions

Qverall principle

The Company has prepared 1he opening baiance sheet as per Ind AS of 1 April 20718 (the ransiton date”) by recogmizing all assets and habilites whose
recogmition i3 required by Ind AS, not recognizng ilems of assets or labilities which are not permited by 'nd AS, by reclassifying items from Pravious
GAAP o Ind AS s required under nd AS, and applylng Ind A5 n mezsurement of recognised assets and labilites However, this princiale is subject 1o
cartain exceplions and caran optional exemplons availed by the Compatiy as mentioned be'ovw:

A. Ind AS optlonal exemptions

Deemed cost for proparty, plant and squipment and intangible assets
The Company has elected to measure proparty, plant and equipment, and inlangibte assels al its Pravicus GALP carmving ameund and use that Previous
GAAFR carrying amount as its deamed cost at the date of transition o Ind AS

Share based payments

The Company has availed the exemplion of not applying ind AS 102 "Share-based Pavment” in respect oplions already vested before the date of
transition.

Leases

WWhen a first-lime adoptar that is a lessea recogrizes lease labiities and right-of-use assets, it may apply the following appreach 1o all of ils |eases
{a} maasure a lease liability at the date of transition to Ind A5; and

{b) measure a righi-of-use asset at the date of wansiticn to Ind AS

Deemed cost for Invesiments in subsidiaries
when an enlity prepares separate financlal statemants, Ind AS 27 requires it 1o a¢count for its investments in subsidiaries joint vertures and associates
either {a) at cosl, or {b) In accerdance with Ind A% 109, The company has alected 10 account for iis Investments in supsidianies at cost

Designation of previgusly recognized finaacial Instrumenis
Ind AS 101 allows an entity to designate investmeants in equity insirumenis al FYOC! or FYTPL an the basis of the facts and circumsta-ces al Ul date of
wransition o 1nd AS The company has elected Lo apply this exemption for s invesimant in equily investiments
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First time adoplion of Ind AS - mandatory exceptions and optional ¢xemptions {continued)

B. ind AS mandaiory exceptions

Estimales

An enuty's estimales In accordance with Ind ASs at the date of nansitan o Ind AS shall be consislent with eslimates made for the same date In
accordance wath previous GAAP (after adjusiments to raflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there s ob ective evidencs that those eslimates
wale in ofror

Ind AS esiimates as at 1 Apnl 2019 ara consislant with the esbmales as at ihe same dale made in sonformity with previous GAAP, The company made
astimalzs for impalmment of financial assets based on expacted credil boss model in accordance wilh Ind AS al the dale of lransition as these were not
ragured under pravious GAAP.

Classificalion and measurement of financial assets and llabiities

The classification and measurament of financial assets will ke made consldering whether the conditions as per Ind AS 109 are met basad on facts and
girgumstances existing at the date of transition. Financial assets ¢an be measured using effective interest method by assessing ita contractual cash flow
characienstics only on the bass of facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition and if it is impracticable to assess the use of effective interest
method, falr value of financial asset at the date of transition shall be the new carrying amount of thal asset The measurement exernpion applies for
financial liabilities as well.

Do-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter 1o apply the da-recogniton provisions of ind A5 102 prospectively for transachons oocurring on or after the date of
transiticn 10 Ind AS However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopler 1o apply the de-recognition requirerm=nts in ind AS 109 relrospectively frem a date of
ihe entity’s choosing, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 102 10 fnancizl assets and financlal iabilities derecognised as a result of past
transactions was obtained &l the tirme of initially aceounting fo: those transactions Tne Company has not elected to apply the de-recognition provistons of
Ind AS 108 prospectively from the date of ransillon to ind AS

Revenue recognition

a} Recognitlon of interest income on loans
Interast income is recognized in Stalement of profit and loss using \he &ffective nterest methed for all inancial Instruments mMeasured at amonised
cost, dabt instruments measurad at FYTOC! and deblinslrumenls desanated at FWYTRL The 'elfeclive inlerest rate’ Is the rate that exactly discoums
estimated uture cash payments or receipts through the expecied life of the financial instrurment.

The calculauon af the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees that are an inlegral part of the contract. Transaction costs INclude
incremental costs that are directly attributable o the acquistion of financial asset

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the finzncial agset are revised for reasons other than credit nsk, the adjusiment is recorded as a positive or
negatve adjustment 10 the camying amount of the assel in the balance sheet with an increaso or reduction in Interest incoma. The adjustment is
subsequently amorised through Interest income In the Statement of profit and loss

Tne Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR 1o the aross earrying amount of financ al assets other than crediv-imparred assets.

When a financial assel becomes credit-impaired the Company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised
cos! of the financial assel If the financial asset cuves and is no longer ereall iImpaired, the Company revens to calculating interest income on a gross
hasis,

Additional Interest and interest on rade advances, are recognized when they become measurable and when 1t 13 not unreasanable 10 expact their
ulimate collection

b} Dividend and interest income on Investmenis

Dividends are recognizad in Statemen of profit and loss only when the right 10 recsive payment is established, it ts probable Lhat the scenomic
bensfits assoctated with the dividend wiil flow (o the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measwed reliably.

Inerest Income from investmants 1s recognized when iLis certain that the ecanomic benellts will flow Lo the company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest Income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to tha principal outstanding and at the effective inlerest rale applicable.

Property, Plant and Equipment {FPE)
PPE are stated at cost of acquisition {including incldental expenses), less accumulated depreclation and accumulated impairment [oss, if any

Assels held for sale or disposals are stated at the lower of their nat book value and net realizaple value.
Advances paid lowards the acquisition of PRE outlstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed separately under other non-financial assets. Capital
wark n progiess comprises the cast of PPE (hat are not ready for its Intended use at the reporting date.

Depreciaton on PPE s provided on stralght-ine basis in accordance with the useful lives specified in Schedule Il fo the Companies Azt 2093 on a pro-
rata basis. Assels costing less than Rs.5,000 are tully depreciated in the period of purchase.

PPE iz gerecoymzed on disposal or when ng future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain er loss ansing on derecogriticn of the asset
{ealculated &s the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the net camying amount of the assel) 1s recognized in othar income / netted oft from
any loss on disposal in the Statement of profit and loss In the year the asset is derecognized

Intangible assets

Intangible assels are stawed at cost less accumulated amorization and accumulated Imparment loss, if any.,

Intangible 2ssets comprises of computer software which is amortized over the estimaled useful ife, The amortization pericd s lower of license pariod or 36
menths which i3 based on management's eslimates of useful life, Amortisation |s calculalad using the straight line method o wiite down the cost of
tangible assels pver thei' estimaled usalul llves.,
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240 Investmen! in subsidiaries
Inwestmenis in subsid anes are measured al cost less accumulatec impalanent, f any

2.11  Fereign exchange transactions and translations

a) inltlal recognition
Transactions in foraign cummencies are recognzed at the prevailing exchange rales between the repofing currency and a foreign curency on the
transaction dalg

b}y Conversion

Transactigns in forelgn currencles are renslated Lo the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transacltions Foreign
exchange galns and lossas resulting lrom the setlement of such ransaclions &nd lrom the ranslavon of monetary assets and liabilites denominated
in farsign cumencies al year end exchangs rates are generally recognized in Stalemant of profit and loss

Foreign axchange differencas regarded as an adjustment 1o borrowing costs are presented in the slalament of prafit and loss, wilhin finance costs, All
cther foreign exchangs gains and losses are présentad in the Staterment of profit and loss on a net basis,

Mon-monetary itemns that are measuwod at faic valug in a foreign currengy are translaled using the éxchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differances on assets and liabilities carrled at fair value are reponed as pani of the fair value gain or loss Thus, transkation
differences on non-manetary assets and labilities such as equily instruments held at fair value through profit or logs are recagnized in profit or loss as
part of the Fair value gain or foss and tranglation differences on non-maonetary assets such as equity investiments classified as FVTOC! are recognized
in other camprehenalve income Non-monetary items that are measured at historical costin foreign curmency are not relranslated at reparting date,

212 Fipancial Instrumenis
a) Recognltion and Initial measurements
Financral assats and financiaf liablities are recognized when the Company becomes a party lo the contractual provisions of the Instrumerns.,
Financizl assets and financial llabil bes are initially measurad at fair value Transaction costs tat are directly atinbutable to the acquisiticn or issue of
financhal assets and linancial liabities (other than finencial assats and financial iabliies at FVTPL) ars added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets of fingncial labilties, as appropriale, on initisl recognition. Transaction costs directly altributable to the acquisitlon of financial assets
or financial liabiliies at FVTPL are recognized immedialely in Statement of profit and |oss.

B) Classifications and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Onintial recognllion, a inanclal asset 13 cassified as measured at
- Amortised ¢osl;
- Fair value Through Other Comprahensive Income (FVTOCI) - debt inslruments;
- Fair value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FYTOCH - aquity instruments; and
- Fait Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Amortised cost

The Company's business mode! s not assessed on an instrumeant-by-instrument basls, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios being the tevel at
which they are managed The financial asset 3 held with the objective to hold financial assst in order to collect contractual cash llows as par the
contraciual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely payment of prncipal and (nterest (SFP) on the principal amount
outstanding Accerdingly, the Comparny measures 8ank balances, Loans, Trade recelvables and other finarcial instruments at amortised cost

FVTOCI - dabt instruments
The Gompany measures its debt instruments at FYTQC! when the instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by
both colleciing centractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and the contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI 1est

FVTOC! - egtuity Instruments

The Company subsaquently measures all equity investmants ai falr value through profit or loss, unless the Company’s management has efactad (o
classify lirevocably some of its aqurty instruments at FYTOGI whan such Instruments meet the defingion of Equity under ind AS 32 Financial
Instrurments and ars not hald for trading

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to thelr inittal recognillon, exeept if and In the period the Company thanges 118 business model for
managing financial assets.

FVTPL
All financlal assets not ciassified as measured at amortised cost or FYTOCI are measured at FVTPL This weludes all dervabive linanaal assels

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial gs<ets al amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method, The amertised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. [nterest income, loreign exchange gaing and losses and impairment are recognized in Statement of profit and |ess, Any gain and
loss on darecognition is recogrized in Staternent of profit and loss. Debt investment at FVYTOC! are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest
income under effective interest methed, fareign exchanga gains and losses and impair t are recognized in Statement of prefil and Joss. Gther net
gains and losses are recegnized in OC) On derecognition, gains and losses accurvulated in QCI are reclassified to Statement of profit and loss. Far
equlty investments, the Company makes an elsclion on an instrumant-by-instrument basis to designale equity investments as measwed at FVTQCL
These elecled invesiments are measuraed at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes In fair value recegnizeo in other comprehensive
Income and ascumulated in the reserves. Tne cumulative gain or [958 18 not reclassified to Statement of profit and loss on disposal of the invesiments
These Investmenis i equity are nol held for trading. nstead, lhey are held for stralegic purpose. Dividend Income recelved on such eqully
investments are recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

Equity Investmants that ars not designated as measured al FYTOC! are designated as measured al FWVTPL and subsequent changes In fair value are
recognizad in Statement of profil and loss.

Financlal assets at FYTPL are subsequenily measured at fair vaiug. et gains and losses, including any nlerest or dividend income, are recognized n
Statement of profit and loss
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Financial iiabilities and equily instruments

Classification of debt and equlfy
Debt and egqurty instruments 1ssued by the Company are classified as either financial liabiities or as equity 1n accordance with the substance of the
cantractual arrangamenls and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual Imerest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabiites. Equity instruments
i=sued by Company are recognized al the proceeds recelved Transaction cosls of an equity ransaction are recognized as a deduction from equity.

Financial liakilities

Financial liabilites are classified as measured at amortlsed cost or FVTPL. A financial kability 1s classibed as at FWTPL 1If IL1s classifisd as held-lor
trading or it is a derivative or 1t is designated as such on Inibal recogniven Olher financial labiities are subsequantly measwiad al amorissd cost
using the effective nterest method Interest expense and forelgn exchange gains and |osses are recognizad in Slalement of profit and Inss, Any gain
or loss on derecogmtion 1s also recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

Financlal guarantee contracts
A ofinancial guarantee egntragt is a contrast thal requires the 1ssuer 1o make specified payments 1o reimburse the halder for a loss it incurs because a
specified detia- fa s 10 make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrumeant.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FWTPL, are subsequently
measued al the Fgiver of
- 1he amount of 'oss al owance determinea in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 108 "Financial Instruments"; and

- the ameunt inita"y recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulalive amount of income recognized In accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115
"Revenuve from contracls with custorners”

Derecognition

Financia) assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset wnan the contractual nghts o the cash flows fram the financial asset expire, or it tranzlers 1he rignis to
receive the contraclual cash Naws in a transacton in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel are transferred
of in which the Company neither fransfers nor retains substani.ally all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial
assel

If the Company enters Into transactions wherahy it transfers assels recognized on ils balance sheet, but retains edher all or subslantially atl of the nsks
and rewards of lhe ransferred assots, the ranslanead assels are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities
4 financial Yability s derecognized whan tha obhgation in respect of the hability s discharged, cancslled or explres The diffarence between the
carrying value of tha fnancial liability and the consldaration paid is recegnized in Statemant of profit and loss

QOffsetting

Financial asseis and financial llakilives are offset and the nel amount presented in the balance shedt whan, angd only when, the Company cumently has
a legalty enforceable rght to set off the amaounts and it intends either to sette them on a net basls or lo realize the asset and setile the liability
simultaneousy.

Write offs

L.oane are written off (ether partially or in full} when there is no realist ¢ prospect of recavery. This (s generally the case when the Company delsrmines
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate suffictent cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs.
Any subseguent recoveries against such loans are credited 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss

Employee benefits

a)

b)

c)

Short- term employee benefils

Short-lerm employee benefits are expensed as the refaled service 15 provided A llabllity is recognized for (he amount expected to be paid o ihe
Company has & prasent legal of constructive obligation to pay this amound as a resut of past service provided by the employee and tha abligation can
be estimated reliably

Contribution to PF and oiher funds
Company’s conlrburton pardipavatle dunng tha year 10 provident fund and employess stale nsurance 1S recognized in the Siatement of profit and
loss. The Comparty has no furtner obligavon cther han the contributions made

Gratuity

The Cempany's ilability towards gratuity scheme is determined by indapsndent scluaries, using the prejected unit ¢radit method. The present value of
the defined benafit obagalion is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outfiows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporling
penod on government bonds that have torms approximating to the terms of the related cbligation. Past servicas are recognized at the earier of the

* plan amendment / curtallment and recegnitien of related restruciuring costs! termination banefits.

The net interest cost 1s calculaled by app ying he discount rale to the net balance of the defined benent coligalion and the fair value of plan asssts
Tris cost is included in employes benefit expense in the Statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losaas

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, comprsing of actuarial gains / losses. return on plan assets excluding interest income are recognized
immediatety in the balance sheet with comesponding deit or credit to Other Comprahensive Incoma {OCI). Remsasurements arg not reclassified lo
Stateman of profit and loss in the subsequent period.
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2.6

Employee benefits {continucd)

d) Leave encashment/ compensated absencesf sick leave.
The Company provides for the encashment J availment of leave wilh pay subject 1o certain rules The employees are antilled to accurnulale leave
subject to cerlain imits for future encashment / avalment. The liability is provided based on the number of days of unulilized leave at each balance
sheat date an the basis of an independent actuaral valuation

¢} Employee stock pptions
The fair value of optians granted under Employee Steck Cption Plan 15 recognizes as an employee benefits expense with a coresponding increase in
equity. The lolal @mount to ba sxpensed is delermined by reference (o the fair value of the options. Tne tolal expense is recogrized over the vesting
pancd, which is the period over which all of the specilied vesting conditions are to be satisfied. Al the end of each period, the entity revizes its
estimates of the number of options that are expacied to vast based on the non-markst vestng and service conditions. || recagnizes the impact of the
revislon o grigingl estimates, if any, |n profit or loss, with & corresponding adjusiment lo equity. Upon exercise of share opliens, the proceeds recawed
are allocated to share capital up 1o the par value of the shares issuad with any excess being recorded as share premium

Finance cost

Finance cosls inglude inlerest expense computed by applying the effective Inlerest rate on respective financial insirumenis measured at Amortised cost
Finarcial Instrurments |rclude term loans, fixed deposits maobilized, debt inslruments, commercial papers and suberdinated debts, Finance costs are
charged to the Statement of profit and loss

Taxation - currenl 1ax and deferred tax
Income tex expense compnses of cument 1ax and deferred tax 115 recognlzed in Staterment of profit and loss axcept to the extent that it relates to an item
recognized dirgclly In equity or in other comprehensive income

4) Currenttax
Current tax comprises amount of 1ax payable in respect of INe laxable income or Ipss for the year determined in accordance with fncome Tax Agl,
1861 and any adjusimentl to the tax payable or receivable in respect of prewious years The Compamy’s current tax 1s caloulated using tax rates that
have been enactad or substanlively enacted by Iha end of tha reparting penod

Minlmum allernate tax (MAT') credit entilemaent |s recognized as an assst only when and 1o the exdent there is tonvincing evidence that normal
ncome lax will be paid during the specified pericd. In the year in which MAT credit becomes oligible to be recognized as an asset, Lhe said asset is
created by way of a credit te the Statemeant of Proilt and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement This iz 1eviewed at each balance sheg! dawe and
the carrying amounl of MAT cradit sntilament 1s writlen down to the extent it s not reasonably certain that normal Income fax will ba pard dunng the
soocified period

b) Delferred tax

Deferred 1ax assels and lablitias are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary diffsrences betwaen e carrying valuss of assets and
liabilites and their raspective tax bazes, Deferred tax llabilities and assets are measured at the tax rales that are expected to apply in the panad in
which the liability 15 ssttled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or subslantively enacied by the end of the
reporting pericd  The measurement of deferred tax llablities and assets refiects the tax consequenca that would follow from the mannar in which the

Company expects, al the end of the reporting pericd, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and [abilities

Deferred tax assets are recognized 10 the extent that it 15 probable that future taxabls income will be avalable against which the deductiole temporary
differsnce could be utilired. Such deferred tax assats and liabilities are not recognized if the temparary diffarence anses from the initial recogniuen of
assets and habilities in a lransaction thal aflects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The camying amount of defsrred tax assets 1s
rivigwed at the and of each reporting peripd and reducad (o the extent that it is no longer probable thal sufficienl 1axable prefits will be avanable ta
allow all or part of he asset to be recovered

Impairment of assets other than financial assels

The Company reviews the camrying amounts of its langible and intangible asseta al the and of aach reporting peried, to delerming whelher thare 1s any
indication that those agsets have impaired. If any such indication axisls, the recoverable amount of Ihe assel iz eshmated in order o delerming the extent
of the impairment loss (if any) Recaverable amount is determined tor an individual asset, unless the asset does nol generale cash flows that are largely
Independent of those from other assets or groupd of assets.

Recoverable amount iz the higher of fair value less costs 16 sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimaled fulure cash flows are
discounted (o Iheir presen value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assassments of the time valua of money and the risks specific 1o
{he asset for which the eslimates of future cash flows have not oeen adjusted If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating uniy is estimalted
ta be lass than 18 carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assel (or cash-generating unit) (s reduced to its recovarable amount,

When an rnpairment loss subseguently reverses the carrying amourt of the asset (ar @ cagh-generating unit) is increaged to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount such thal the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carmying amount that would have been determined If no impairmenl loss
had been retcognized for the asset {or cash-generating unity in prior years. The reversal of an impaimment loss is recegnized in Statement of profit and logs.




Samunnati Financial Inlermediation 8 Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory informatian for the year ended 31 March 2024

217

2,13

2.24

2.22

2.23

Provisions, conlingent liabillties and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or ¢onstruclive obligation as a resull of a past evant, it s probable that an outfow of
economic resgurces will beg reguired (rom the Cempany and amcunts can be esmaled reliably. Timing or ameunt of the oulflew may still e uncertain,
Provisions are measured al the estimaled expendilure required to sstile the prassnl obligalion. based on the masi relishle evidence avalab's al the
repoting date, ingluding the risks and uncertainties associated with he present obligation, Provisions are discountad to thair present values, wnere the
tme value of money is material

Contingent labllity is disclesed for:

- Posg ble cbligations which will be confirmed only by future svents nat whally within tha control of the Company, or

+ Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of rescurces will be required 1o setile the obligation or & reliable
esurmate of the amount of the obligation cannct be made.

In those cases, where the outflow of econamic resourses as a result of present obligatiens s considered improbable or rermote, no liability 15 recognized or
disclosure s made.

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virually certain to collect fromm a tnird party with respect to the obligaton {such as from insurance) Is
recognized as a separate assel Howevar, this assst may not exceed thg amount of the related provision.

Contingent 453613 8ra nol recognized, However, when infiow of egonomic benefits 1s probable, the related assat is disclosed.

Leages

The Company’s lpase assol classes primarily consist of leases for ofiice premises. The Company assesses whether a conraci comains a lease, at
inceplion of a contract A conlract is, or conlains, a lease il the contract convieys the fight Lo control the use of an identified assel for a period of time In
exchange for consideralion Vo assess whethar a contract conveys the rght to contrdl the use of an identilied assel, the Company assesses whether

(i} the cantract invelves the use of an identifed assel

(i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from usé of the asset through Lhe pariod of the lease and

{ili) the Compary has Lha right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of comm rment of the lease, the Company recognizes a ngnt-of-use asset ("ROU" and a correésponding lease labllity for all lease
arrangemgnte in which it s a lessee, except for leases with a2 term of twelve maonths or less (short-tarm leases) and low value leases, For these short-term
and |ow value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Cerfain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or lerminate the lease befare the end of the lease term. ROU assels and |ease |iabilites
includes thase eptions when it 1s reasenably cenain that they will be exerclsed,

The right-of-use asasts are initlally recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
prior 0 he commencemment data of :ne lease plus any inital direc! costs less any lease incertives. They are subsequenlly measurad at cosl less
accumulated depreciaton and Impalrment losses

Right-of-use assaets are deprecialed from the commencemam dale on & st-aightd ne basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful fife of the
urdarlylng assat

The lsass Takility 15 initially measured al amortized cost al the presant value of the future leaze payments. The lease paymenis are discouniad using ihe
imerest rate implicit in the lease or, if not read|ly determinable. using (he Incremental borowing rares in the country of domicile of these leases. Leasa
liabilites are remeasured with a corrgsponding adjusiment ta the relaled ripht of use assal if the Company changes 18 assessment if wisther It will
exercise an axtensicn or & termination option.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and ¢ash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, cheqgues and drafis on hand, balance wilth banks In current accounts and short-
term depesis with an original matunty of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share s calculated by divichng the nat profit of loss for the period atirbulzble lo equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares oulslanding during the pencd Earnings considered in ascerlaining the Company's =amnings per shara Is tha net profit for the genod after
deductng preference dividends and any atlributable tax therelo for the period The we'ghted average number of equily shares ouistanding duning the
paniod and for all periods presented 1s adjusled for events, sucn as bonus snares, sub-division of shares efc that have changed the number of equity
shares gulstanding, withoul a corresponding change In resources For lhe purpese of calculating dluted earnings por share, the net profit or oss for the
pariod attnbutabla to equily shareholders i3 divided by Lhe weighted average number of eguity shares cutstanding during the period, considered for
derfving basic earnings per share and weighted average numbér of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shargs

Segment reporting

Operating seqments are reported in @ manner consislant with the intamal reporting provided to the ¢hlel opoeraiing declsion maker. The Company is
prmarly engaged in financing agn busnesses. The Company’s achvity falls within a single primary business segmeant. The Comaany operates primarly in
India and there 1s no other gecgrapnical segment.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Amendments to Schedule It to the Companles Act, 2013

On 24 Mareh 20214, 1he Minstry of Corporate Affairs {MCAT thfough a notification, amenced Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, The amendmants
revlsa Division |, It and Ill of Schedule Il are applicable from 1 Annl 2021,

Evants after reporting date
Whera events occurding after the balance sheet date provide évldence of conditions that existed el the end of the reporting penod, the impact of such
gvents Is adjusled within the financial statements. Olherwise, events after the balance sheet dale of matenial 5170 or nalure are only disclosed,
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(Al amaunta ara in millions of Indian Rupeas (), unless ciherwise stated)

As at Ag at As at
34 March 2021 31 March 2020 91 April 2019
3 Cash and cash equivalenis
Cash-an-hand bR 015 026
Balances with banks
{i} In current account 1,150 AG EE5.TE 37T AT
(i) m deposil account {with original malurlly up 10 3 morhs) &18 09 11000
Total 1,157.74 1,184.02 487.43
4 Bank balances other than cash and cash aquivalents
Deposit account with banks
Balances with banks o the axtenl held as margin monay {Refer nole below] 523 55 264 04 176.82
Total ~ 523.58 264.04 176.82
Details of balances with banks to the axtent hald as margin money or sacurity against the borrowings and securitization transactions
Maturity pariod of lass than 12 months
(i} Held as collawgral against berrewings and securilization lransachons 487 68 204 74 33.38
467.68 204.74 33.28
Maturity period of more than 12 months
{ii} Held as collaleral against borrowings and secuntization transaclions 55 87 58.30 143 44
55.87 59.30 143.44
Total 523.55 264.04 176.82
5 Loans
(A) Term Loans at amortised cost
To clents 8,374.20 7,195.96 4.370.53
To subsidiary (also, refer note 41) 45543 431.23 277 70
Total- Gross 9,529.63 7,627.19 4,648.53
Less . Impairment foss allowance {153.44) (198.92) (40.25)
Total- Net 9,676.19 7,428.27 4,608.27
[B) Secured/ Unsecured break up
(it  Securad against tangiblc assets:
Gross 374 53 100.28 120.19
Less: Impairment loss allowances - = -
Net 374.53 100.28 12019
(il Secured against receivables’
Gross 5,975.28 4.258.03 1,324.14
Less; Impairment loss allpwances (121.68) {109.46) {1177)
Net 5,853.60 4,148.57 4,312.37
{il}  Unsecurad
Gross 3479 82 3.265.88 3,204.20
Less. Impairment loss allowancas (31.76) {89.45) (28.49)
Net 3,448 06 3,179.42 3475.71
Taotal (BY = (1) + (i + (iil) 89,676.18 7,428.27 4,608.27
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As at As at As at
34 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2013
5 Loans {continued)
{C) Loans inf outside India
(i) Loans in India
(&) Public sector - - -
{b) Othars 9,829.63 762719 4,648.53
9.82983 7627.19 4645 53
Less : Impawment loss allowance (1563.44) {198 92§ {40.28)
Total {1} . 9,676.19 7,428.27 4,608.27
{1i} Loans outside India - -
Total (C) = {) + (i) 9 576.19 7,428.27 4.608.27
Mote: There is no Inan asset measured gt FVTOC! ar FVTPL
Summary of loans by staqge distribution
Gross Carrying Impairmant Loss Net Carrying
Amount Allowance Amount
&) (8) (A-8)
As at 21 March 2021
Slage 1 - Considered good 8,556.60 27.48 8,528.14
Stage 2 - Significant increase i eredit sk 1.109.75 25684 1,083.21
Stage 3 - Credit Impaired 163 28 99,44 6384
9,829.63 153.44 9.676.19
As at 31 March 2020
Slage 1 - Considered goog 705898 93,12 6,959.77
Siage 2 - Slgnificant Increase in eredit rsk 483.01 24 57 458,45
Sirge 3 - Cradlt impa red B5.20 7518 10.09
7,627.19 198.92 7.428.27
As at D1 April 2019
Stage 1 - Conswderad good 4,426 26 2058 4,405 B7
Stage 2 - Signilcant ingrease in gredit nisk 185.48 @43 177 00
Stage 3 - Cradit /mpared 3579 10,19 29.60
Total 4,648.53 40,26 4,608.27
As at As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2045

€ Investments

(A} Invastments in substdiaries carried at cost

{1) tn equity shares of subsidianes’ 780 10 73010 18010
Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited
£32,484 {previous year. 532,484 01 Aprl 2019: 180,007} equity shares of 710 gach

Samunnati Foundation g.10 - -
10,000 (previous year Nil) equity shares of ¥10 each

(B} Investments carried at amortised cost
{i) In Pass Thiough Certficales ("PTC") 222.25 - 4038
(i} in non converliale debentures ["NCD") . 53,88 - -

{C) Investments at falr value through profit or loss
In mutual funds

{iy Tata Liquid Fund Ragular Plan - Growth Fund - - 30.02
{liy SBI Mutual Fund - Savings Fund 100.00 - -
Total 1,156 14 780.10 250.50

Mote Mo impairment foss has been provided on the above investmeants.

Qut of above
in India 1,156.14 780.10 250 50
Gutside India - - -
1,156.14 78010 250.50
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As at As at Ag at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2019
7 Other Anancial assets
Unsecured, considered good
Secuny deposits 8.25 707 £.85
Employea advances 484 - 0.5
Depaslts with finanafal institutions goon 51.06 16 83
Intarest acerued bul net due on depasds with tinancial institutions 1.67 .44 -
Intaresti stop asset - 1519 4471
Payment receivable on secuntization 13,40 26 69 -
Cther recajvables 3.37 512 6.12
Total 111.33 106.42 80.02
8 Cumrent tax assets (Net)
Advance tax {nat of prowigions) 56 42 14.88 26.56
Total 58.42 14.8% 26.56
9 Deferred tax assets {nel)
Balance as at mh;::‘::_;:r:f?: to {Charge}/  Balance as at (t?:h:t?t‘;i\::;fi:} {Charge) / Balance as at
01 April 2019 credit to OCl 31 March 2020 creditto QCI 31 March 2021
__profitand loss profil and loss
Tax effect of items constituting
deferred tax assets / (liabllives) :
Fixed assets (0 58) 438 - 382 {1.81) - 20
Provisians for employes benefits 373 338 037 7.46 182 {1.38) 7.490
Impairment foss allowance 11.20 35.08 - 485 28 {11 83) - 34.76
Employes stock oplion expenses - 3877 38.77 - 3677
Carried forward lossas 7 BY {7.89) - - 1774 - 17.74
Others 18.98 {7 80) - 11,18 (520 - 591
41.24 63,90 0.37 105.51 0.96 1.38) 105.09

<This space is intentionally [eft blanx=
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Samunnatl Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary af significant accaunting policies and ather explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All arnounts are in milliens of Indian Rupees {3), uniess otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
34 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2019
11 Gther non-financtal assets
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 057 2,55 a.40
Prepaid expenses 21.38 2099 18 89
Advance pajd to vendors 478 0.68 -
Balances with government authorilizs 1.29 3.78 128
Advances 1o employees - 4,88 -
Total 28.02 32.88 20,55
12 Debt securities
At amorlised cost
Non-converible redeemable debanlures (secured) 4,213.92 162297 1,51961
Total 4,213.92 1,622.97 1,619.61
Dabt securities in India 44807 - -
Dabl securilies oulside \ndia 3, 765,85 1622.97 1.679.61
Total 4,213,982 1,622.97 1,619.61
talso, refer note 31(a})
13 Borrowings (other than debft securities)
At amortised cost
Secured:
Tarm lnans' {also, rafer note 31(b))
from banks 1,728 68 1,267 70 509.78
from cther parties 1,556.87 1.389.15 145862
Weorking capital facililies frorn banks (also, refer note 31(b)} 127 04 148 B8 30.00
Commercial paper (also, refar note 31(b)) - 120.00 -
Liabilities against securitisation {also. refer nole {1) below) 65,72 23572 -
Talal 347932 3,171.25 1,998.28
Borrowings in India 347932 3147125 1,988.38
Borowings outside India - - -
3.479.32 3,171.25 1,998.28

i) Liabiiides against securitsation represents amoun!s received in respect of securitisation transactions {nel of repayments & investment therein)
as thesa transachans do not meat the de-recognition critena specified under Ind AS 108 These are secured by way of hypothecation of
designated assets on finance recelvables.

14 Other financial lizbilities
Al amorisec cost

Payable towards securitses transactions - 13.12 33.07
Lease liabildies (also refer note 35) 14,36 18.95 Q.57
Employes relaled payables 1.485 17.95 20.89
Payable to subsidianes (3iso, refer nole 41} 343 - -

Onher payablas [aiso, refer note 41} 5645 12.41 20.78
Provision for expenses 18.92 20.58 2.19
Total 4489 83.01 77.42

15 Provisions
Provisron for employee benafits:{alse, refer note 30)

Gralurty 1522 13.80 693
Compensated absences 1218 1147 548
Pravision for loss on loans serviced - - 0.37
Total 27.30 25.27 13.78

16 Othes non-financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable 15.86 22.38 10.11
Others 0.849 0.88 -
Total 16.75 23.28 19.71




Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of signilicant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amaunis are in millions of Indian Rupees (3), unless otharwise slated)

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

As at 01 April 2018

Na. of shares[ Amount | No. of shares | Amount No. of shares ] Amount
17 Equity share capitat
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10 sach 750,000 7.40 750,040 7.50 750,000 750
. i 1,750,000 17.50 1,750,000 17.50 1,250,000 12,50
Compulsorily converitle preference shares of € 10 each
Total 25.00 25,00 20.00
Issued, subscribed and pald-up:
Equity shares ef 7 10 each 573,461 5.74 573 861 9.74 465,681 4,66
Less Bquity shares held under brust for emgloyees under (213523 {2 14} [213.523) {2 14} {138.824) (1.38)
ESOP scheme (also, refer rote 17(q) }
1.616,185 16.1 1.616,155 16,16 1,721 1.
Compulsonly convernble preference shares of ¥ 10 each T 8.6 616 121.955 1122
Total 19.76 19.76 14,49
a) Receonciliation of number cf equity shares and amount
outstanding
Issued, svbscribed and paid-up
Balance al the beginning of the year 573,861 574 485 861 4.66 485,661 4.68
Shares issued dunng Lhe year - - 115,500 1,18 - -
Shares bought back dunng the year B i (7.300% (0.07) - -
573,861 5.74 573 861 574 465,661 4 66
Less Equily sharas hald undar trust for smployeas under (213.523) (2.14) {213,623) (2.14) (138,824) (1.39)
ESCP scheme
Balance at the end of the yoar 360,338 3.60 360,338 3.60 326,837 3.27
b) Reconciliation aof number of preference shares and
amount outstanding
lssued subscribed and paid-up:
Balance at the baginning of the year 1,616,195 16,18 1,121,955 11.22 1,121,935 11,22
Shares insued dunng the year - - 494,240 4.94 - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,616,195 16,386 1,616,195 16.16 1,121,955 14.22
¢} Sharehclders holding more than 5 percent
No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding Ma. of shares % of halding
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each .
& G Anil Kumar 238,257 42% 238,257 42% 230058 A8%
Samunnati ESOP Welfare Trust 213,523 IT% 243523 37% 138,824 30%
Agcet Ingia v (Mauritius) Lid 75,733 13% R 733 13% - -
Ecap Equities Limiled - - - - 75,689 16%
Compulserily convertiblo preferance shares of ¥ 10
each
Elevar -l 374,074 23% 378074 23% 366,732 33%
Accel India V {Mauritus) Lid 374,349 23% 374,949 23% 362,100 32%
ResponsAbility Agrigulture I, SLP 366,594 23% 386,594 238 317,423 28%
Teachers Insurance 2nd Annudy Association of America 226,730 14% 226,730 14% - -
Accel Growth Fund V L.P 110,075 T% 110,075 7%, - -
Elevar IV AIF rapcesentad by its Trustee Vistra ITCL 99,240 6% 93,340 &%
d} There were no shares issued pursuant to contract without paymeat being received in cash, allolted as fully pad un by way of bonus issuas since incorporalion of
the Company.
e} Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares js entitled 1o one vote per share, The
Company shall declare and pay divdends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Direciors shall be subject to the approval of the sharehalders
I the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend which can be approved by the Board of Directors In the event of liguidation of the Company. the
holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining asssts of the Company, after distnbution of all preferential 2meounts. The disiibution will be in
proportion Lo the number of equity shares held by the shareholders
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information tar the year ended 31 March 2021
[All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (), unless otherwise staled)

17 Equity share capital {continued)

f)

Tarms and rights attached to preference shares

The Company has 1ssued Senas A1, A2, A3, B. C and D compulsarly convertivle preference shares having a face value of T 10 per share. Al the option of Fe
holdars, these shares, either in whale or In par, may be converted into equity shares in the ratio of 1.1 bafore the expiry of 13 years from the issuance of such
compulsorily convertible preference sharas. Each nolder of the compulsorily convertible preference sharas is entitlad ta one vole per sharc. Dividend an each
compulsorily ¢convertible preference shares 1s 0.01% per annum, subject to cash Now solvency, and such dividend shall be a preferred dradend. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, the holders of compulaorily convertible preferance shares shall have a prafaranca over olhar sharg holders of the Company,

Terms of corversion

Series Date Amount

Senes A1l 25 Feb 2034 039
Series A2 25 Jul 2034 1.26
Sares A3 31 Mar 2035 08
Series B 25 Feb 2036 2,78
Serez C 27 Dec 2038 580
Series D 23 hMay 2038 4,94

16.16

g} The Company has gven an interest and coliateral free loan 1o Samunnall Employee Steck Oplion Plan Walfare Trust ("ESOF Trust'h lo provide financial

assistance for purchase of equity shares of the Company under Employee Stock Optien Scheme. The Company has established the ESOP Trust 1o which the
stock options issuable have been transferred. The Company treats ESOP rust as its extension and shares held by ESOP trust are trealed as treasury shares.
Cwn equity Instruments that are re-acquired {tressury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from Equity share capital {to the extent of face vu.ue! and
from Other equity (to Ine exient of premium oo shares). (Also refer nole 29)

ny During the previous year ended 31 Mareh 2020, the Company has bought bacx 7,300 nos of aquity shares from ts share holders based on appraval rece ved

18 Other equily

fram the members at EGM dated 17 Januacy 2020

As at As at As a1

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019

Statutory Reserve 40.59 39.84 18.80

Securities Premium {alsa refar nate 17(g)) 4,931.10 4,952.68 1,956.10

Employee slock aptions cutstanding 20529 164,31 50.73
Capital Redemplion Reserve Q.07 0.07 -
Other comprenensive Moome 3.00 {1.11) -

Retained eamings (74,22 (77.20) {26.52)

5,105.83 5,078.58 1,899.20

Dascription of the nature and purpose of other eguity

Statutory reserve
Rasarva fund is crealed as per the tarms of saclion 45-1G{1) of tha Reserve Bank of India Acd, 1934 a5 a siatllory resenve. An amaunt equal to 20% of profits
after tax is transfemed 1o this reserve every year. This is a restricted reserve and any appropnation from this reserve ¢an anly be made after prior approval from

RAI

Securities premium
Securities premiwm is used to recard the premium on issue of shares This amount ¢an be utilised in accardance with the provisions of the Compames Act 2013,

Employee stock oplions ouvistanding

The employee stock oplons outstandirg represents amount of reserve created by recogniton of compensation cost at grant date fair value on slock options
vested but not exercised by employees and unvesled stock oplians in the Statement of prafit and less in respect of equily-setlled share options granted to the
ghigible amployeas of the Company and ds subsidiaries in pursuance of the Employes Stock Option Plan

Capital redemption reserve
Capital Redemplion Reserve is created as per lhe provisions of the Companiss Act, 2013 1n respect of the shares bought back by the Company,

Other comprehensive income
Regresents remeasurement of defined banefr liabilny which compnises of acluanal gains and losses excluding amounts ncluded in nat interest on the net

defined benefit liakilities and income tax impact thereon,

Retained eamings
Retained eamings or accumulated surplusy (loss) represents total of all praf s/ (losses) retainad since Company's incaption Retained earnings are creditad with

current year profits. reduced by losses, if any, dividand pay-auts, transfers 10 General reserve or any such other appropnations 1o specific reserves.




Samunnali Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and olher explanatory information for the yoar ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts are In milions of Indian Rupees (¥), un . otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

19

20

4|

22

23

24

25

Interest income
On financial instruments measured at amortised cost

Loans 1488.28 1,200.78
Investmants in Pass Through Cerificates 5.06 3.60
Security depasits held with lenders 27.1¢9 16,63
Fixed deposits 3553 1589
Loans to subsidiary (also, refer note 41{b)) 46,71 4491
Total 1,603.86 1,281.81
Other income

Income from subsidiary for shared seraces { also, refer nate 41(b)) 47 73 17.58
Income from debt fund investiments. 365 -
Income from mulual fund imesiments 4.00 50.81
Recovery of defaults in loan serviced 4.72 316
Miscellareous income 637 704
Total 72.87 T8.57
Finance ¢osts

On fHnancial liabilities measured at amertised cost

Interest expense on:

Barrowings (other than debt, securities) 31l 57 217.31
Debt securtas . 19817
Qther borrgwing costs s 2114
Total 584.10 437,12
Impzairment on financial instruments
At amortised ¢ost

Impairment, of loans (45.48) 158 66
Bad dabts written off 367,59 81,19
Tota! 322.61 235.85
Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages {also, refer note 41) 385,25 311,73
Gratuity and leave encashment expenses {alo, refer note 30) 742 10 57
Caontribution to provident and othar funds 12.74 1038
Employee stock aotion expenses faiso refer nole 29) 4098 15247
Stafi welfare axpenses 16.17 12.25
Total 465.76 497 .40
Dapreclation and amortizalion

{Alsa, refer note 10)

Depreciaticn on preperty, plant and squipment 18.16 1275
Amartisation charge on nightl of use assels 5,62 4.03
Amaorbization of intangible assels 4.31 0.50
Total 28.09 17.28
Qther expenses

Legal and professional charges §1.02 51.686
Service fge expensas 936 22.87
Technology and commumcation expenses 22386 13.74
Membership and subscnption charges 10.88 754
Traveling and conveyance 1161 iza
Insutance 1.51 .31
Payments to audilors (also, refar nals 27) 260 265
Repairs and maintsnanes - others 552 631
Rates and 1axes 003 072
Rent (also, refar note 35) 9 B0 1078
Printing and stationery 338 365
Power and fuel 2.58 2.82
Sitting fees 232 2.15
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 074 a26
Marxeting expenses 541 7.30
CSR contribution (alse, refer nole 38) 1.88 -
Miscellansous expenses 2.37 190
Total 173.60 167.48
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Sarmunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant ageounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounls are in millions of Indian Rupees (F), unlass olherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

26 Tax expense

27

28

2) Income tax recognized in sfatement of profit and loss

Cuwrrent tax:
Inrespect af curren’ year

Deferred fax:

|n respect of current year origination ang reversal of temporary differences
Total income lax recognized in statement of profit and loss

Tatal

b) income tax recognized in othar comprehensive incame

Deferrad tax related to items recognized in Other Comprehensive Incame during the year:
Remeasurement of dafined emplayee benefils
Total income tax recognized in other comprehansive income

¢) Reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to incorne tax expense reported in the
statement of profit and loss:

Prof before tax

Corparate lax rate

Experted incoma tax expense al corparate tax rate

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected Income tax expense at tax rate to
reported income [ax expense:

Effect of expenses / provisions nat deductible in determining laxable profit

Effect of change in enacted 1ax rate

Cthers

Tax expense

Payments 1o auditars
Statutory audit
Limited review
Tax audit
Cenification
Qut of packet expenses

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Nel profl {loss} allibutable o aguity sharehalders Fin millions (Basic and Diluled}

Weighted average humber of aquily shaces vsed in computing basic EPS {in numbers)

Effect of potenual dilutive equily sharas {in numbers)

Weighted average number of equily shares used in computing diluted earings per share {in numbars)
Basic EPS (¥) - face value of share 310 each

Diluted EPS (¥} - face value of share #19 each *

- 92.15

- 9218
(0.96) (69.00)
{0.96) (69.00)
(096} 23.15
t1.38) 0,37
{1.36) 0.37
277 1.25

25.17% 27.32%
070 0.35
.85 -

- 11,47
(2.21) 11.33
{0.96) 23.15

1,70 1.70

0.55 055

01§ 0.15

0.10 0.18

0.10 0.07

2.60 265
3.73 {2190}

360,338 353,818
1,910.320 1,748,525
2,270,558 2,112343

10,35 (60.19)
1.64 {60.19)

*Due 1o the 155 incurred for the pravious year ended 31 March 2020, the polenhal squily shares are considerad a5 anti-dilubive,




Samunnati Financial Intermediation 8 Services Privale Limiled
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al zmaunis are In millions of Indian Rupees (3), unless olherwise satad)

29 Employee share based payments

a

—

b}

ESQOP 2645 Scheme

On 08 September 2015 | \he Beard of Direclors approved and the Company adopled the "Employees Stock Option Plan 2015" (the “Plan”) under
which not mere than 62,500 shares of the Company's equily shares was resarvad for issuance 1o employees. In {he Board meeting dated 28 January
2017, 20 December 2017 and 28 Apnl 2012 addifional shares of 6,794 {nos), 70,368 (nos) and 115,000 {nos) respectively were added to the Pian,
ssusd and allohed 1o ESOP Trust

The options are to be granted {o the eligible employees as per the sligibtily crileria as determined by the Board of Directors The share oplions vest in
a graded manner over a penad of 1- 4 years and are exercisable within 2 maonths of exarcise event, lalling which the options shall lapse

On 21 Jung 2018, the Board of Direclors approved and the Company adopted the " Amegndment lo the Employees Stock Option Plan 2015 (The
Plan"}. The amandmant partains Lo vesting pariod, exercise and grant of oplions 1o new joiners, The optiens 16 be granted 1o the sligb'e employess as
per the sligibility criteria as delarmined by lhe Board of Directors. The share opbons vesl in a graded manner over a period of 1-4 years and arg
exercisable within 7 months of exercise evant, failing which the amployess shal have to hold on till the next evanl anses. On 24 May 2019, the Board
of Directors approved and the Company sdopted the "Employees Siock Oplion Plan 2019" The amaendment pertains o vesling period Vesting of
Opticns may now laks place betwesn three and four years in the manner, as may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Commuttes,

During the current yzar, Board of dirsclors approved issue of 11,500 granis to smployess of which 11413 grants has besn ssued 10 employees as at
31 March 2021,

No. of options | Weighted | No. of options | Weighted optiS:; O;S at Weighted
Parliculars as at Avgraga as at Averags 11 Mareh Average
31 March 2021 Rate 31 March 2020 Rate 2018 Rate
Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 48635 2,170 37,357 S17 28512 205
Grarted during the year 11,413 7,500 23480 3783 9.026 1,520
Exercised during the year - - (11,772) 197 - -
Expired! lapsed dunng the year {2,483) 3403 {430) 1,532 {180) 1.24Q
Options outstanding a1 the end of the year 57,565 3,173 48,835 2,170 372357 517
Options exercisable as at the end of the penod 15.956 3,173 10.777 280 11,772 107

The weighted average remaining ¢ontractual life for the stock options cutstanding al the end ol the year was 318 days (previous year 578 days: 01
Apnl 2019, 574 days)

The fzit value of lha opbons granted is determined on the date of the grant using the "Black-Scholes option pricing model® wilh the following
assumphons, &s ceorlified by an independent valuer,

Particulars FY 2015-16| FY 2016-17 FY 2017-38| FY 2018-19] FY 2019-20|FY 2020-21
Fair market valug of oplion an the date of grant 532.86 806.84 8356.10 1,728 61 297044 | 331807
Exercise prica renge (welghted averaga) 1000 319.00 £18.00 1,484 45 320350 | F50000
Expected volatility {%) B0 29% 60 28% 60 28% B0 29% 60.29% 60.29%
Expected forfeiture parcentage on each vesting dale - - - - - -
Expecled aption life (welghted average in years) 3ar 157 322 310 247 3.00
Expacled dividends yisld - - - - - .
Risk free inlerest rale {%) 7 55% £.85% 5.66% 7.62% 8.81% 5.86%

Management Stock Option Scheme 2017

On 20 December 2017, the Board of Directors approved and the Company adopted the "Management Stock Dplon Scheme 2017* hersinafter
referred as the "Scheme” Under the Scheme, 28,529 oplions were granted (o the promater (Anil Kumar S G - Diractor and CEQ), vesting over 1 year
from the date of the grant On 29 Apnl 2019, the Board of Directors approved and the Company adopted the "Managamant Slock Option Scheme
2018". Under the revised Scheme, 45,000 oplions were granted to the promoter, vesting equally over 3 years from the date of the grant. On the
hapgening of any liquidity event as defined in tha Scheme, the Nominaton and remuneration committea has the discretion to provide cashless
exeicise

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock oplions outstanding at the end of the year was 212 days| previous yaar: 384 days: 01
April 2019, NI

HNo. of options | Weighled | No. of options | Weighted 'No. of Weighted
options as at

Panlcufars as at Average as at Average 21 March Average
31 March 2021 Rate 31 March 2020 Rate 2019 Raie

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 45,000 3,753 28,529 10 28,529 10
Granted dunng the year - - 45,000 3753 - -
Exercised during lhe year - - 28,520 10 - -
Expired! lapsed durirg tie yaar - . - - - .

Options outstanding al ine end of the year 45,000 3753 45,000 3753 28,529 i0
Oplions exgreisabe as at the end of the periad 15.000 3,753 - - - -
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Samunnat Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infermation for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All armounts are in milllens of Indian Rupees (), unless othenwlse stated)

29 Employee share based paymaents (continued)

The fair value of lhe options granted s determmned on the date of the grant using the "Black-Scholes oplion prcing madel” with the following
assumptions. as certified by an independent valuer,

Particulars | FY 2019-20
Fair markst value of opton on the date of gramt | 2,938.71
Number of options granted 45,000
Exercise price range (welghled average) 3,752.55
Expected volatiity (%) 60.29%
Expected forfeiiure parcentage on each vesting d 0%
Expected option life (weighted average in years) 3
|Expected dividerds yield -
|Risk free interest rate (%) | 6.86%

Note Since the MSOR shares issued on 20 December 2017 were vested before Ine date of transinon, the Comparty has not fair valued such grants.
Hence atove distclosure s not presented for tha same

30 Employee benefits

Genaral description of defined bonefit plans
a} Gratuity
In accordance with applicable Indian laws, the Company provides for gratuty, a defined benefit renrement plan [The Gratuity Plan™) covering
eligible employees. The gratuity plan provide for a lump sum payment fo vested employees on retirement {subject to completion of five years of
continuous employment), death, incapacitation or termination of employment fhat are based on 'ast drawn salary and tenure of employment The
Cempany does net maintaln any plan assats 1o fund its obligatjon towards gratuity fatility,

Through i1s defined benefit plans the Company is exposad to a number of risks, the mest significant of which are detailed telow.

Intlation risk

Tne present value of some of the defined banefi plan obligations are calculated with reference to the fufure salaries of plan partcipants As such,
an increase in the salary of the plan paricpants will ncrease the plan's labilty,

Life expectancy
Tha vrasent value of defined beneh! p.an obligation js cacuslad by yeference to the best estimata of ihe mortality of plan participants, both during
znd afler the employment. An ncrease in the life expectancy of the plen participanis will increase the plan's liabilily.

Discount rate
Raduction in discount rata in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's Iability.

Details of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation are as follows

Year ended Year ended
21 March 2021 31 March 2020

. Amount recognized in the statemant of Profit and Loss

Current service cost 573 4.51
Net Interest cosl 118 08s
Tetal expenses Included in employee benefit expenses €.91 5.29

Il. Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive income
Remeasurement (gains} losses:
Actuanal (galn) losses arising from changes in

- Expenence adjustments (5.49) 148
Total amount recognized in other comprehensive income {5.49) 1.48
As at Asg at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2049
ll. Changes in the defined benefit abligation
Opening defined benefit abligation 13 80 693 341
Current service cost 5.73 4.51 2.58
Interast expense 118 nes 0.47
Remeasurament (gains)losses arising from changes in -
- Experience adjusiments (5.49) 1.48 0,62
Beneilils paid - {0.22)

Closing defined benefit obiigation 15.22 13.80 6.93




Samunnati Financial Intermedialion & Services Privatle Limited
Summary of signilicant accounting policies and olher explanatery information for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees {#), unless othenvisa stated)

30 Employee benelits (continued)

As at As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 04 April 2018
V. Het defined banefit obligation
Defined bensfit oblgation 1522 13.80 6.93
Current paricn of the above 2.07 ©65 019
Hon current porbon of tha above 1315 13:15 6.74
V. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounied) As at As at
34 March 2024 31 March 2020
Within 1 year 208 085
1t 5 years 881 526
Mare lhan 5 years 14,17 189.31
Particulars As at As at

3% March 2021

31 March 2020

{. Actuariat assumptions and sensitivity

Duzcount rate {p.a.) 6 50% 6.61%
Atiitien rate 15 D0% 12.00%
Rale of salary increase 7.00% 10.00%
In- service Marality rate 1ALZG12-14UN JAL2006-08UI
Il. Quantifative sensitivity analysis for input of significant assumptions oo Year ended Year ended
defined benefit obligations are as foliows 34 March 2021 31 March 2620
One percentage poinl increase In discount rae {0.81) {0.98)

Ore perceniage point decrease in discount rate 0.89 1.15

Cre percentage point increase In salary growth rate 083 1.01

Cne percantage point decrease in salary growth rate (0.78) {0.92)

by Compensated absances

The company permils encashment of compensated absences accumulaled by the - smplayees or: relrerent, separatizn and dunng \he course of
service The lability In respec! of the Company, for pulstanding balance of privilege 'save al the balance sheet date 15 determined and orovided
on the basis of actuanal valuation provided by an indepencent aciuary. The company does nol maintain any plan assets to fund its obligation

towards compensaled absences.

Achuearial assumptions for compensated absences

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

I, Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

Discount rate {p.a.} 6.50%
Rate of salary increase 7.00%
Attntion rate over differen age brackeis 15 00%

661%
12 00%
10.60%

The sstimate of future salary increases, considered in ecluanal valuation, considers inflaton, senlorty, prometion and cther relevant facters. such as

supply and demand [n the employmant marksl

Year ended Year ended

Il.  Expenses recognized in Statement of profit and loss 34 March 2024 31 March 2620
Included undar gratuity and leave encashment gxpenses 07 5.8

As at As al As at

lll,  Net defined henefit obligalion 31 March 2029 31 March 2020 01 April 2018
Defined banefit abligation 1218 i1.47 648
Current portion of the above 3.34 213 087

Noa eurrent portion of the above &84 9.34 561
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Privata Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amaunts are in miions of Indisn Rupsass (7)), upless olhanuse stated)

32
21

Fair value measurement

Financial instruments by category

a) Financial instruments measured at amortized cost

Particulars As atl As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2019
Carrying value  Carrying value _Carrying value

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,157 74 1,184.02 487.43
(Other Bank Balances 523.55 264 04 176 82
Loans 8,673,149 42827 4,608 27
Investments 1,066 14 780.10 220.48
Other financial assets 111 33 106.42 80.02

12,524.95 9,762.85 5,573.02

Financial liahilities

Debt sacunties 4,213,982 1,622 97 1,819,617
Borrawings {other than debt securities) 3,479.32 3,171.25 1,998,38
Other financial iakilifes 4489 33.01 7742

7,738,13 4,877.23 3.695.41

The management assessed that fair value of above financial instruments measured al amertised cosl approximate to their carrying amounts
largely dus to the shori-term matunties of these instrurments.

b} Financial instrumenis measured at {air value through profit or loss

32.2

Particulars Carrying value Fair value Fair value
Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3

As at 31 tarch 2021
Financial assets
Invastments f00.00 100,00 100,00 - -

As at 31 March 2020
Financlzl assats
Investments - - - - R

As at 01 April 2019
Financial assafs
Invesiments 30.02 30.02 30.02 - -

Fair value measurement hierarchy

The Company recards certain financial assets and financial liakilities &t far value an a recurring basis. The Company determines fair values
based an the price | would recerve to sell an assel ar pay to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date and in the principal or mosl advantageous market for that asset or liaoility.

The guidance specifies a higrarchy of valuation tachniques based on whether the inpuls to each measurement are observable or unobeervable
Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unabservable inputs reflect the Company's assumptions about
current market conditions. The fair value hisrarchy also requirss an entily to maximize the use of obsarvable inputs and minimize the use of
unobzservable inputs when measuring farr value

The Company determines faw values of itz financial instruments according 1o the following hierarchy-

Level 1 - Valuvation based on quoted market prce- Financial instrurents with quoted prices for Wentical instrements in active markels that the
Company can access at the measurement date

Level 2- Valuation using observable inputs: Finanaal inslraments with quoted prices for similar instruments in aclive markets or quoted prices
for identical or similar instruments in inzctive markets and financial instruments valued using modsals where all signifisant inputs are observable
Level 3 - Valuation techrique with significant unobservable inputs Financial instruments valued using valuation techmgues

where one or mare sigrificant inputs are unobsarvable.




Samunnati Financlal Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information for the year ended 34 March 2021
(Al amaunts ara in millions of Indign Rupees (2}, unless olherwise slalad)

23

Financial Risk Management Framoewerk

The Company's noard of direclors has ovarall rasponsibilily for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.
The Company manages financial risk refating to the operalions through internal risk reparts which analyse exposure by togree and magnitude
of risk. Thesa risks nclude markat ask (ncluding interast rate nsk and ofher pnce risk), credit nsk and hauidny risk. Complanca with policles
and exposure limits is reviewed by the managament on a conbnuous bagis

(a) Credit risk

Crodit risk 15 tha risk thal he Company will Incur a 10ss because its customars or counterparties fail 1o discharge their conactual obligations,
The Company's exposue to credlt nsk 3 influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, investments, loan aszels and
other financial agsels, The Company continuously monitors defaults of cuslomers and olher counterparties and ncorporates this information
inlo g cradit rsk contrels.

{b) Credit risk management

Based on business environment In which the Company operales, a defaull on a financial assel is considered whan the countar party fails la
make payments within tha agread tme pencd as per contract 'The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on intemal cradit rating
syslam, Internal credil rating 1s performed for each class of finandal instruments with differenl characteristics. The Company has established a
credit quality review process to provide early dentification of possible changes in the creditweorlhingss of counlerparties, ncluding regular
coliateral revisions. The Company assigns the following credit ratings 10 each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and
factors specific lo the class of inancial assets.

The Company provides far expected credit fass based on the following

Assets covered Nature Basis of expectad credit loss

Cash and cash eguivalenis {excluding cash on hand), ather bank balances,|Low credit nsk  [Life iime expecled credit loss
investments and other financial assets

Loans Low credit risk |12 month expected credit loss
Loans WModerale credit|Life ime gxpected credil loss
risk
Loans High credit risk  |Life time expected credit loss or fully

provided for

Financial asseis that expose the entity to credit risk

Farticulars Nature A A pos at R34t

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 201¢
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) Low credit nsk 1,157 68 1,183.87 487 .47
Bank balance ather than above Low cradit nisk 523 55 264.04 176.82
Loans " Lover credit risk 8 556 60 7,058 98 4426 25
Loans ~ Maoderate  credit 1.10875 483.1 186 48

Tisk

Loans © High credit nak 181 28 85.20 3578
Investments Low credit nsk 1,156 14 F80.10 250.50
Othet inancial assets Low credit risk 111.33 106 42 80.02

("} These represent gross carrying values of loans, without nelling off impairment loss allowance

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
Credil dsk related to cash and cash equivalents (excludng cash on hand) and bank deposits 15 managed by only investing n highly rated
depasits of banks across the counlry.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets measured al amomzed cost includas securily deposils, employee advances, deposils with financizl instiiutions, payment
recervable on securtisation, interest stnp assets and other receivables. Credil nsk relaled to these alhsr firancial assets is managed by
monitoring the recoverability of such amounls conlinuously

Loans

The Company closely monilors the cradit-worthiness of the borrower's ihrough intarnal systems and appraisal procass 1o assess the credil risk
and define credit limits of borrower thereby, | miting the Credit nsk by salting Imits on the amount of nsk it is willng to accept for the
counterparties. These processes include a detaled appraisal methodology, wentification of risks and suitable struciuring and credit risk
mitigaton measures, The Company assesses increasa n oredil risk on an onyeing bams for amounts oan recavables thet become past dus
and default 1s considered 1o have occurred when amounis recevatle become 60 days.
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Sumunary of significant accounting policies and other exlanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (¥}, unless otherwise slated})

33

Financial Risk Management Framework {continued)

The major guidelines for selection of the client includes:

1. The client's income and indebladness levels must be within the preserbad guidelines of Reserve Bank of India;

2. The client must possess the required KYC docurnents

3, The clienl must be engagad in some lorm of economic activity which ensures regular income;

4, Client must agree to follow the nules and regulations of the organisation and

5. Crednt bureau check — In order 1o deal wilh the problem of over exension of credit and indebtedness of the dient, the arganisation
undertakes credil bureaw checks compulsanly for every clienl. The credit bureau check helps the orgamisation in idenlifying clients with poor
repayment histares and multiple loans

{1 Credit risk exposure

{i) Expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans
The Company have riot made expected credit lasses for financial assets olher than loans.

(i} Movemeant of carrying amount and expected credilloss for loans

Definition of default:

The campany has rebutted the presumption prescribed under Ind AS 109 that the credit risk increases significantly since initial recognition when
eonlractual paymants are more than 30 days (Stage 2] and that default occurs when a financial assel is 90 days past due {Stags 3}, The sk
profiling is delermined for each segmentad loan portfalio indicatad below based on historcal and markel trends and directions fram RBI
including guidance for identification of NPA in agncultural advances

Segmentation for ECL risk profiling Stage Loans Days past due {DPD)
CBOFPO and others

Stage 1 Upto 60 days

Stage 2 51 days to 240 days

Stage 3 More than 240 days
Agri enterprises

Stage 1 Upto 60 days

Stage 2 &1 days to 360 days

Stage 3 More than 360 days
Credit Quality of Loan Assets
Particulars As at 31 March| As at 31 March As at 01 april

2021 2020 2019

Stage 1 &,556.60 7,058.98 4 42526
Stage 2 1,109.75 483.01 186.48
Stage 3 163.28 55.20 3579
Total 9,829.63 7,627.19 | 4,648.53

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances s, as follows:

As at 31 March 2021

| Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
5ross carrying value of opening balances 7.058.68 433.01 #83.20
New assels onginated/purchased* 7,463.43 428,65 103.31
Assels repaid (5,216 68) {288 .80) (013
Transker to stage 1 138.50 (135,29 {4.21)
Transfer to stage 2 (87T 455,56 (1.10)
Transfer to stage 3 {14 82 {126.82) 141.74
Amounts written off - {206.45) {161.53)
Gross carrying value of closing balances 8,556.60 1,108.75 163.28 |
As at 31 March 2020
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Gross carrying value of opening balances 4,425,268 18648 3579
New assets onginatedipurchased” 6,648,508 253.27 3510
Asgsels repaid {37327 (127.38) {17.50)
Transter to stage 1 46 46 {44.39) (2,07}
Transfer to staga 2 (268.58) 268.58 -
Transfer to stage 3 {€1.00) {63.55) 114.64
Amounts written off - - (80.78)

ross carrying value of closing balances 7,058.598 483.01 | £5.20
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33 Financial Risk Management Framework {continued)

As at 31 March 2021

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Slage 3
ECL allowance - opening halances 9318 24.57 75.18
New assets onginatedfpurchased 24 85 4.88 0.28
Assets rapaid (67.96) (14 69) (012)
Transfer 1o stage 1 (6.64) 1068 {(4.04)
Transfer t¢ stage 2 - 089 (0.99)
Transfer to stage 3 (0.29) {16 15) 16 .44
impact of ECL on exposures transferred between slages dunng 1ha year (21.49) 2308 45.08
Amoums wrillen off - (5.82) (32.38)
ECL allowance - closing balances 27.46 26.54 99.44
As at 31 March 2020

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
ECL allowance - opening balances 2059 948 10.19
MNew assats anginated/purchased 88.43 830 206
Assals rapad {14.83) {8 47) {4.99)
Transfer fo slage 1 381 (2.78) {3 83)
Transfer to stage 2 {1 34y 1.34 -
Transfer to stage 3 {0 37) (4.50) 0,27
Impact of ECL on exposures transferred between stages during the year 3.7 24 0% 69.23
Amounis written off (0.06) {446 {5.78)
ECL allowance - closing balances 92.19 24.57 | 75.16

i} I the probabllty of default and loss given defaull increases or decrease by 100 basis pont the expected credil loss will Increase ©r Jdecrease
by ¥ 90 45 milions {As at 31 March 2020: T 67.57 milliens).

*Assels originated during the year has been presented on net basis i e. lha coliections Wowards fresh loans has been netled ofl,

(b} Liquidily Risk Management :

Liquidity rigk refers to the risk that the Company canncl meeét s financial obligations as they become dug. The Company manages its liquidity
risk by ensuning as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to maeet its llabl'lizs when due, under both normal and sressied
cenditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company's reputation. The Company maintains adequate reserves ard banking
facilities, and continuously monitors the forecast and actual cash flows by matching matenng prefiles of financtal assets and financial liabilites
in accordance with the approved risk management policy of the Company perodically, The Campany believes inat e working capizal
{including banking limits not utlised} and s casn and cash equivalent are sufficient 1o meet its short and medium tarm requreme=ts

Refer Mole 31 which delails the Company's remaining contractual malusty for its financial fabilities with agreed repayment pencds. -2
contractual malurity is based on the eariest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

{c) Market Risk

hMarket Risk is the nsk that the fair valus or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucivale because of changes i+ ma-wel factor
Such changes in the values of financial instruments may resuit from changes in the interest rales, credit, iquidity, and other market chanpes
The Company g éxposed 1o two types of markel nisk as follows.

Inierest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the nsk that the future cash flows of & financial instrument will flucluate because of changes in market intercsl rates

The Company s subject to interest rate risk, principally becavse the Company lend to customers at fixed interest rates and for periods that may
differ from our funding sources, while the borrowlngs are al both fixed and variable interest rates for different periods. The Company assess
and manage the interest rate risk by managing the assets and liabilities. The Asset Liability Management Committee ensures thal all significant
mismatchas, if any, are being managed appropnalely The Company has Board approved Asset Liablity Management (ALN) policy for
managing inlerest rate nsk and policy for determining the interest rate to be charged on the lpans given

Sensitivity

The sansilivity of the statement of profit and Ioss is the effect of the changes n market interes! rates on bank and other borrowings. Below is
the sensitivity of profit and loss in interest rates.

Pariculars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Intarest senstivity”
Intgrest rates — intrease by 0.50% 2568 1478
Interes! ratas — decrease by 0,50% {25.66) {14.78)
" Holding alf other vanables constant
Price Risk

The Company's expasura to price nsk is not material and It is onmarily on account of iInvestment of lemparary reasury surpluses in the highly
liquid debt funds for very short durations. The Company has a board approved policy of investing its surplus funds in highly rated debt mutual
furrds and other instrurnants hawng insignificant price risk, not being equity fundsi risk bearing instruments.

Farelgn currency risk
The Compa ot hawve any foreign currency receivebles/ payables and hence does not have any foreign currency nsk,
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34

35

36

Capital management

The Company's capital management objeclives are

- to ensure the Company's abilily 1o continue as a gaing cancern

- to comply wlth axiernally imposed capial requirement and maintain strong credit ralings
- to provide an adequate retum lo sharsholders

The Company's capilal management strategy is 1 effectively determine, raise and deploy capital so as 1o ¢reate value for its shareholders, The
same 15 gona through a mix of ether equity andlor converible and/or combination of shor termfiong lerm debt as may be appropriate.

Tha Company detarmines the amount of capital required on the bais of operations, capital expendilure and strategic invesiment plans. The capital

structure is manitored an the basis of net debt to equity and matrty profile of ovarall debt portfalia,

Net debt 1o aquity ratio As at As at As al

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2018
Deb! 7.693.24 4,794.22 3,617.99
Less Cash and bank balances {1,681.28) {1,448.08) {664.25)
Net debt 6,011.95 3,346.16 2,953.74
Total equity 5,125 59 5099.35 2,013.69
et debt to equity rabo (%) 117.29% 85.62% 148 88%
Leases

The company has applied lnd AS 116 with Lhe dale of inilial application of 01 April 2018

Tha company has applied Ind AS 416 vsing the full retrospective aporaach, under whic the cumulalive eifect of initial application is recognized in

retained eamings al 01 April 2019,

A5 a lessce

a) Additions to right of use asset

Particulars .
Property plant and equipment

b} Carrying value of right of use asset
Particularg

Right of use assel as on the opening date
Additans during the year

Depreciation charge for the yaar

Balance as at the year end

c} Maturity analysis of lease liability
Conlractual Undtscounted Cash Flows
Lass than 1 year

QOne lo five years

Total undiscounted leasa Habilily

Leasa fabilitias included in the stalemeant of financlal positicn
d} Amounts recognized in Statement of profit or loss
Intarast ¢n lease liabilties

Deprecation charge for the year

Expanses relating to short-term |sases

¢) Amounts re¢ognized in cash flow statements
Particulars

Total cash flow for leases

Opersting segments

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
- 20.20
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
16.84 057
- 20.30
{5.62) (4.03)
11.22 46.84
573 §.24
10 40 16,13
16.13 22.37
14.36 18.95
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1.53 366
5.42 403
88 1079
15.65 14.06

The Cormpany has only one business segment and geographical segment, s'nce it s only into the business of loan financing and operates only
within India, Therefore, reparting under Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segments', is rot apphcables for its inanclal statemants
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37

38

38

Contingent liabilities

Claims against fhe company not acknowledged as debts :

The Company had received orders from Income Tax Assessing Officer (AQ) pertaining o AY 2046-17, AY 2017-18 and AY 18-18 wherein ceriain
agdilons were made under sechion 56, scction 68 and section 143(3) of Income Tax Act, 1261, The Company has oblained a stay on collection of
lhe demand provided below, The Company considers the clarms to be ergneous and as not payable under tha provisions of Income Tax Act, 1861,

As at M March 2021

AY 2016-17 AY 2017 -18 AY 2018-19
Amaunt of demand 10.18 357 0.29
Amount paid agamnst stay 210 0.80 -
As at 31 March 2020
AY 201617 AY 2017-18
Amount of demand 1018 3.57
Amaoun! paid agsinst stay 2.10 0.80
Asg at 01 April 2019
AY 2016417
Amount of demand 28.65
Amaunt paid against stay 2,10
Others As at As at As al
Amounts provided as MRR against securitization transactions 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2019
Prncipal sub-ordination 52.58 a0.34 73.48
Cash colateral 3266 7215 7214

Corporate Social Responsibility
Tha Company has incurred an expenditure of ¥ 1.88 milians lowards CSR activiies which includes contfibuton { donations mada to the foundanen
which ara angaged In aolvities prosonbed under Sachon 135 of he Companies Act, 2013 read with Schaduls W o the sai8 Act.

Details of amount spent towards CSR activities

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during lhe yearis ¥ 1.4 millons (previous yaar Nil)

b)|Particulars For the year anded
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Yetto be Yet lo be
h Total
In cas paid in Gash ota {n cash paid In cash Total
In eonstruction! acquisition - - - - - -
of any asset
On ather purposes 1.88 - 1.88 - - -
Reconciliation of movement In borrowings ta cash flows from financing activities
Particulars 31 March 2020  Cash flows {nef) Exchange Amortisation of 34 March 2024
difference Jaan arigination
Debt securites 1,822.497 2 56837 - 2258 4,213.92
Borrawings (olhar than debt securities) 3171.25 28548 - 2259 3,479,32
Total 4,794.22 2,853.85 - 4517 7.693.24
Particulars 0% April 2019 Cash flows (net) Exchango Amorisation of 31 March 2020
differonce laan origination
Debt securiies 1,619.61 - - 336 1,622.97
Borrowings (othar than debt securities) 1,994.38 1,156.73 B 16.14 3171.25
Total 3,617.89 1,156.73 - 19.50 4.784.22
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41

a)

bj

Related party disclosures

Hames of related parties and relationship

Relationship

Name of the related party

Whally ownied subsiciaries

Samunnati Agro Sclutions Private Limited
Samunnati Foundation (w.e.f 09 March 2020}

Key management persanne! (KMP)

Anil Kumar S G - Directer and CEO

Gurunath N - Directar

Nitin Chaudhary - Head, Strategy

Ashok Dhamankar - Group Chief Financlal Officer

Miranjan Chandrasekaran - Company Secretary upto 29 May 2020)
Ashwim Venkalaraman - Company Secretary (from 068 November 2020)
Independent directors:

Sunil Satyapal Gulati

Narasimhan Srinivasan

Venkalesh Tagat

Nominge directors:

Mahendran Balachandran

Jyotsna Knshnan

Akshay Oua

Rekha Natrajan Unnithan

Enlity in which KMP has significant influence

Samunnatl ES0P Welfare Trust

Entity in whicn direclors has significant influgnce

Riviera Investars Private Limited

Related party transactions

Nature of transactions

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited

Loans given

Loans rapad

Interest income on loans

Carporate guarantae provided

Invastimant in aquiy shares (Mon-current investments)
Incomea from subsidiary for shared seraices
Migcallaneous incoma

Salanes and wages (deputation charges)

Samunnati Foundaticn
Donations mada
Invastiment in share capital

Anil Kumar § G

Remunaration *

Amounts paid towards buyback of sacuntiss
Amounis received towards exercise of ESOP options

Gurunath N
Remuneration *
Amounts recernved towards exercise of ESOP options

Nitin Chaudhary

Remuneration *

Loans gluen

Leans repaid

Intgrest income on loans

Amounls paid lowards buyback of securities
Amounls recelved 1owards exercise of ESOP options

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2020

T00.00 898.00

B/70.00 750 00

46,70 44,91

350.00 100 00

- é00.00

47,73 17.58

- 0.55

1811 224
2,18 -
0.10 -

1892 18.50

- 3268

- 024

8.28 5.05

- 0.38

8.86 R.62

1.00 360

0,85 3.60

- .02

- 326

- 0.23
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41

h}

c)

Related party disclosures

Related party transactions {contd.)

Mature of transactions

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Ashok Dhamankar
Remuneration *

Niranjan Chandrasekaran
Remunaration *

Ashwini Venkataraman
Remuneration *

Sitting fees paid

Sunil Satyapal Gulat
Narasimhan Srinivasan
Wenkatesh Tagat

Samurnati ESOP Welfare Trust
Lozns given

Shares subscribed including pramium
Loan repaid

Riviera Investors Private Limited
Partlolin purchased lhrough assignment

12.74

0.28

0.83
0.70
0.53

10.95

1.18

a.73
0.69
0.51

43 54
43 .54
1.55

108.95

* The prowvision far gratuity and compensated absences is made or the basis of actuarial valuation for all the employees of the Company,
including the managarial persannel. Proparionate amaunl of gratuity and compensated absences is Ao included in the above disclosure,

since the exact amaunt is not ascertainable.

Balances at the end of the year

Particulars &s at As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 01 April 2099

Anil Kumar § G

Raimbursement of axpensas - - 0.05

Samunnati Agro Sclutions Private Limited

Loans and advances { includng inlerest accruad) 455.43 431.23 277,70

Corporate guarantae prowded by Company towards barrowings 25000 100.00 100.00

Deputation cost payabla 343 - 1.68

Acerued expenses - 4.42 | -

Qthar payables 335 - -

Samunnali ESOP Welfare Trust

Advances given .11 0.11 011

<this space has been intentionally left blank>
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42 First-time adoption of Ind AS

This note explains the principal adustments made by the Company In restanng its Previous GAAP financial statements, inclueding the balance sheat as at 01 Apnil

2018 and the hnanclal statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 to comgly with Ind AS

i. Comparative Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020 and 01 April 2019

Adjustment | As at 31 March 2020 [ As at 01 April 201§ |
referance# Previous GAAP  Adjustments Ind AS Previous GAAP Ad]ustments Ind AS
ASSETS
Financial Assets
a) Cash and cash equivalents 1,184.02 - 1,184,02 487,43 - 45743
b) Bank balances other than (a) above 26404 - 264.04 176 82 - 176,82
¢} Loans i,4,7 740327 2500 742827 4,818 68 (10.41) 480827
d)  Investrnents 78010 - TRO0 250.48 002 250.50
a)  Other financial assets 107.64 {1.22) 106.42 50.13 {0.11) 80.02
9,739.07 2378 9,762.85 5,613.54 {10.50) 5,503.04
Non-Finaneial Assats
a) Current tax assels (net) 14.58 - 14,89 26,56 - 26.56
b) Defetred tax assets (net) § 87.94 3767 105,51 13 68 27.58 41.24
¢} Property, plant and equipment 66,37 66,37 3570 - 33.70
d]  Right of use assets 5 - 16.84 16.84 - 0.57 057
e)  Otherintangible assels 1.44 1.44 1.74 - 1.74
f}  Intangible assets under development 24.35 - 24,358 4.18 - 419
g)  Other non-financial assets 32,88 32,88 20,58 - 20.55
207.87 54,41 262.28 102.40 2B.18 130.55
Total Assets 9,946.84 78.19 10,025.13 5,715.94 1765 573358
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilifies
a) Deid secuibes 1,62297 - 1,622.97 1,618.61 - 161861
b) Borrowings {other than debt securiies) 3 3,169 07 2.8 3,171.25 1,982.87 4.51  1,998.38
c) Other financial liabilities 2,9 57.09 (4.08) 2301 126 56 {49 14) 7742
4,879.13 {1.90) 4,877.23 3,740.04 (44.63) 3,695.41
Non- Financial liabilities
a)  Provisions 26,08 {082y 25 27 14.21 {0.47) 12,78
b} Other nan-financial liabilines 2328 - 23.28 10.71 - 1071
4937 (0.82) 48.55 24.92 (0.43) 24.49
Equity
2) Equity share capital 1976 - 19.76 14.48 - 14.48
by Other equity 4,988,668 8091 5,074.69 1,936.49 G271 1,888.20
5,018.44 80.91 5,089.35 1,8580.98 6271 201369
Total Equity and liahilities 9,946.94 7819 10,025.13 5,715.94 i7.65 5733.59
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 21 March 2021
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42 First-lime adoption of Ind AS {continued)

il. Comparative Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

Adjustment Previous  Adjustments Ind AS
reference# GAAP

Revenue from ogerations

(i) Interest Income 1,279 1,257.81 24.00 1,281 81
Total Revenue from operalions 1,257.81 24.00 1,281,814
Other Income g 108.21 (30 Bd) 78,67
Total Income 1,367.02 {6.64) 1,360.28
Expenses

{1} Fmance costs 3 42380 1352 437 12

(i) Impairment on financial instrumerts 4 27007 {30.22) 239,85

{tiiy Emplayee benefit expenses & 353.29 144 11 497,40

{iv) Depreciation and amorization 5 13,27 4,01 17.28

() Other expenses El 168 54 {1.08) 167,48
Total Expenses 1,228.77 130.36 1,359.13
Profitf {loss) before tax 128.25 {137.00} 1.25
Tax expense

{1} Current tax S215 - 9215

{1i} Deferred tax 8 {58.55) {10.35) {69.00}
Profitf (loss) for the year 104.75 {126.565) {21.90)
Gther Comprehensive Income

{1) llerns that will not be reclassified to profit and loss (net of taxes) - (1.48} {1.48)

{iiy ltems thal wil be reclassified to profit and [0z {net of taxes) - 037 0.37

- (1.11) (1.11)

Total Comprehensive Income 104.75 (127.76) (23.01)

iii. Reconciliations required as per Ind AS 101 on transiticn to Ind AS

a. Recongiliation of equity

Adjustmoent Ag at As at

reference# | 31 March 2020|014 Apeil 2019
Total equity / shareholders' funds as per indian GAAP 5,018.44 1,850.88
Ingd AS Adjustments
a) Deferred income on securitised loans recognised 2 2092 49.71
o) Measurement of loans at amoerttsed cost 1,4, 7 25,00 {1041}
cj Measurement of borrowings at amorlised cost 3 {2.18) (4 51)
o) Deferred tax assets recognised 8 37.57 27.58
&) Others {0.40) 0.34
Total adjustments 80.91 62.71
Total equity as per Ind AS 5,099.35 2,013.69

b. Reconciliatlon of Profits
Particulars ) For the year
Adjustment ended 3
referenced# mareh 2020

Profit after tax as per Indian GAAP 104,75
Transiticn adjustments:
a) Recognition of secuntised assels 2 {28.79)
b) Measurement of loans al amartised cost and expecled credit loss i,4,7 35 41
c} Measuremenl of borrowings at amortised cost 3 233
d) Accounting for ESOP grants at fair value g [145.98)
&) Lease accounting & (2 19)
f) Others 258
q) Timing difference in recognition of defemed tax assets =3 (27.58)
hj Deferred tax impact on above 8 37.57
Net loss after tax under Ind AS {21.90)
Olher comprehensive income (nel of laxes) {1.11)
Total comprehensive incomea under Ind AS {23.61)

v, Therewere no matertal adjustments made to the cash flow statement prepared under IGAMP for the year ended 31 March 2020,
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42 First-time adgoption of Ind AS [¢cantinued)

# Materlal adjustments on adoplion of Ind AS are explained below

1

Interest inceme and origination fee measured using effective interest method

Under Previous GAAP, griginabion fees and fransachon costs charged to custemers was recognised upfront. Under Ind AS, such fees and costs s amortised
ower the expecied lile of the loan assets and recognised as nterest income using effective Interest method. Under previous GAAP, interest income on non
perlorming assels (i e loans that are 90 days past dug) was not accrued Under Ind AS interest income on such loans are recognised on thelr net camying
amaounl

Impact of on-balance sheat racognition of securitised loan portfolio

Under Previous GAAP, fnancial assets were dergcognized if the control cnlerla 15 mel in accordance with relevant RBI guidelines. Under Ind AS, financial
assets are derecognised only when the Campany lransfers substanbally all the risks and rewards related to the cash flows. In case of securlisation
transactions antered into by the Company, they are exposed Lo first loss defaull guaraniee and cash collateral and therefore, continues to be exposed to
significant risks and rewards relating to the undarlying loan assets. Hence, it does not meet the derecognition cnigria as slated above.

Transaction costs on financial Instruments accounted on amortisad cost model

Under Previous GAAP, the lransaction ¢osls related 10 borrowangs Including fixed deposlis accepted were recogmised upfront in the Statement of profit and
loss/ securiies premium. Under Ind AS, such costs are amoitised over the conractual térm of the borrowing and recognised as inlerest expense using
effective interest method in the Statement of profit and loss.

Impairment allowance for expected credit loss

Uingder Previous GAAP, the provisioning on ovardue asssts was as per management astimates. sub@ct ta the minimum prowision required as per Master
Direction- Non Banking Financial Company - Syslematically Important Non Deposit taking Company and Deposit Taking Company {Reserve Bank) Girections,
2016. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance is calculated as per expected credit loss method

Leases

Under previous GAAP, rental charges were recognised in the statement of profit and loss when Lhey were incwrred. Unzzr Ind AS, a Right of Use asset and
Lease hability 2re recognised at inception as the present value of fulure lease payments as on thal date. Depreciation s charged on this righ of use asset
syslemaltically over the lease term. Inlerest is charged on Lhe Lease habiity Paymerts of Lease Rentals are reduced Tomn :he Lease liabilty when paid.

Accountling for Employee stock aption scheme

Under Previous GAAF, the cost of Employee Stock Ophiens was recognised at Intrinsic value Under Ind AS, the same 15 recogrised on the basis of farr value
of the opbons outstanding. However, the Cormpany can lect nol to maasurs the valua of Iha oplions vestad bafore the date of transltion at fair value. Since the
Company has opted lor the exemption given under Ind AS 101, this has not resulted in any further adjusiment under Ind A5 for the aptions vesled before the
date of ranstion.

Impact of interest accrval on NPA at net ¢arrying amount
Under 1he previous GAAP, interest income an NPA was recognised on receipt basis, As per Ind AS such income is acgruad on "Met amount’ of outstanding
loan balanes classified as NPA (| e Gross balance less impafnment an such asset). '

Deferrer! tax adjustments
Rescognition entena for deferred tax agsets is different in Ind AS when compared with previous GAAP. Further, refained earnings and slatemant of profil and
loss has been adjusted consequent 1o the Ind AS transifion adjusimenis with corresponding impact to deferred tax, wherever applicable

Reclassification adjustments
Per requiremants of IndAS and Diwsion e Scheduls 1] of Companies Act 2013, cenlaln reclassilication adustrmenis have baen carred oul

SAMUNNATI ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 |

171



<]

SAMUNNATI ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 | 172

Samunnati Financial Inlermediation & Services Private Limiled

Sumrmary of slgnificant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021

(41l amotints ara in mitlions of fndien Rupees (), unless otherwise staled)

43

1

3

4

—

o

—

Additional disclosure pursuant to the Mastar Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Imporntant Non-Deposit taking

Company and Deposit 1aking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, (as amended) issued by the R8I

Liabilities sida:
Loans and advances availed by the nen-panking financial compaay inclusive of interest
accrupd thereon bul not paid:
(&) Debenturgs

-Sooured

-Unsecursed
(b} Deferred credits
(€} Term loans
(d) Inter-corporata loans and borrowing
(o} Cemmercial paper
(fy Public deposits
(o) Cash cradit

Assats side:

Break up of loans and advances including bills receivable {recaivable from financing activity)
(2} Secured
{b) Unsecured - includes loans to subsidiary

Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets countlng towards AFC activities
(i} Leass assets ncluding lsase renlals under sundry debtors
(a) Financial lease

{b) Operating lease

iy Stack on hire including hire ¢charges under sundry deblors
{a) Assets an hire

(b) Repossessed Assets

(iiiy Other loans counting tewards AFC aclivilies

{a) Leans where assets have been repossessed

{b) Loans otier than (a) above

Break-up of Investments

Current Investments

Quoted

{i} Shares

{a) Eaquity

fb) Preference

f1'} Debentures and Bonds

{iiy Unies of motwal funds

{iv) Gavernment Secorilies

Unquoted

{1} Sharas

(i Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual funds
(v} Government Securibes
{v) Pass through certificates
Long term investments
Quoted

{i) Sheres

{a) Equity

(b} Preference

(M Debentures and Bonds
{liiy Units of mutual funds
(v Government Securities

Ungquoted
{i} Shares
{a) Equrty
[5) Prefarence
(i) Debemures and Bonds
fiiiy Units of mutual funds
(v} Government Securilies
{v} Investment in secuntized assets

As at 31 March 2029 As at 31 March 2021
Amount outstanding

Amount overdue

4,213.92

As at 31 March 2021
Amount outstanding

6,228.13
344808



Samunnali Financial Intermedfation & Services Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatery Information for the year enged 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are in milhons of lndian Rupees (2), unless otherwise slated)

43 Additicnal disclosure pursuant 1o the Master Direction - Mon-Banking Financlal Company - Systemically Important Non-Oeposi taking
Company and Depostt taking Company (Reserve Bank) Qirections, 2016, (as amended) Issued by the RBI (Continued)

5 ) Borrower group-wise ¢lassification of assets financed as in 2 (a) and (b} above :
As al 31 March 2021

LCategory - Secured Unsacurad Total
1) Related partes

{a) Subsdiaries - 45543 435 43
{by Companigs in itha same group - -

(c) Other relatad parties - - -
2} Other than ralalad parties 6,228 13 2,992,63 9,220786
Total 6,228.13 3,448.06 9,676.99

§ ) Invesior group-wise classificatlon of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securiiies (both quoted and unquoted} :

As at 31 March 2024
Category Book Value (Met of  Market value/ Break
Provisions) up or fair valug or

1) Related Parties

{a) Subsidianas 780 20 Not applicable
(b) Comparias in the game group - .
(c.) Other related parties - -
2) Cther than related paries 375 94 375.94

Total 1,156.14 375.94
As at

31 March 2021

7 ) Other Information
(I} Gross Mon-Parforming Asseats
(e} Releted parties -
{b} Clher than related parties 424 50
{li} Nel Non-Parforming Assets
{2} Related parlies .
(o) Olher than related parties 207 860
(i) Assots acquirad in satisfactan of dabt -

8 ) Capital to Risk Asset Ratlo (‘CRAR’);

Particulars Asat As al
34 March 2021 21 March 2020
CRAR (percant) 39.32% 50.98%
CRAR — Tier | Capital {parcent) 39.08% 50.80%
CRAR — Tier I Capial (percant) 0.24% 0.18%
Amount of subordinated debt raised s Ter-ll capital - -
Amount raised by issue of perpaiual deot mstruments - -
9) Investments
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Value of Investments
(1) Gross value of inveslments
() In India 1,156 14 780.10
{b} Outside India - -
{il} Provisions for impaimient
@) inIndia - -
{b) Oulside India - -
{ili} Nal value of investments
fay In India 1,156.14 780.10
(b} Qutsde India - -

Movemen! of pravislons held towards depreciation on investments
(i) Opening Balance - -
{ily Add: Provisions made dunng the year - -
G} Less: Write-offfwrite-back of excess provisions during the year - -
{iv) Closing Balance - -
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limitod
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for he year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in millons of Indian Rupees (T), unless otherwise slalad)

43 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Mastor Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Depasit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Divgctions, 2016, (as amended) issued by the RBI (continued)

10

—

The Company does not have denvative contracls as al 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

41 ) Disclosuras relating to Securitization

Year ended Year ended

&
PRripATe 31 March 2021 34 March 2020

5PVs relating to outstanding securitisation transactions
1 MNumber of SPVs sponsored by the NBFG for secanlsalion transactons as on the date of the 2 4
balance sheet
2. Tatal amount of securltised assels as per books of the SPVs sponsored as on (he dale of the 155.73 271.50
balanca sheet
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with minimum retention reguiremant
{'MRR"Y
Off-balance sheet exposures
First loss - .
Others - .
On-balanca sheet exposures
First loss {cash collateral) 32.66 7215
Others [credit enhancement) 52 59 98,34
Amount of expasures ta securitisaton transactions other than MRR
Off-balance sheel exposures
Exposure fo own securitizations
First loss - R
Olhers - .
Exposure to third party securitisations
First loss - -
Others . -
Expasure o third party securilisatians
Firsl oss - -
Others - -

412 ) Details of flnancial asseis sold to secuntisationfreconstructicn companies for asset reconstruction
The Company has nol sofd finangiail assels 10 secunlisalion/reconsinicion companies for asset reconstruction in the current and previous year,

13 ) Details of agsignment transactions undertzken
Thera wera no assets sold through assigrment Iransacuons dunng the current and previous year

14

Delzile of non-performing financial assets purchased or sold
The Company has nol purchasad or sold any non performing financial assels during the current and previous year.

<this space has been inentionaly laft blank>




Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of slgnificant accounling policies and other explanatory infoermation for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are in miflions of indian Rugees (¥), unlass otherwise stalad)

43 Addilional disclosure pursuam o the Master Diraction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Impontant Non-Deposit taking Company and

Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, (as amended) issued by the RBl {continued);

i5)

i6)

17)

18)

Asset Uability management maturity pattern of carlain items of assets and liabilitles
As at 31 March 2021
Maturity pattern Assels Liabilitizs
Advances Investmants Deposits Total Borrowings
1107 days 888 39 153 B9 - 1,042 138 79
810 14 days 123.7G - - 124 287 95
14 days to i menth 452.89 2215 - 478 235 33
1 -2 monlhs 1,020 76 24 05 59.53 1,104 257,38
2 -3 months 1,748 18 25,66 110.24 1.884 811.43
3 - 8 months 1,514.84 F7.87 5418 1,648 4,830.74
B - 12 months 2,195 20 67.73 32540 2,588 754.18
1 -3 years 1,248,30 4.26 5537 1,306 316717
3.5 years 835 28 - - 638 369,25
> 5 yaars - 780.20 - 780 -
Total 9,829.63 1,156.14 605.22 11,589 7,6583.24
As at 31 March 2020
. Assets Liabilities
Maturity pattern -
Advances Investments Depaosits Total Borrowings
1107 days 601.33 . - 801 164,58
8 lo 14 days 156.71 - - 1a87 7360
14 days to 1 month 603.37 - - 603 246 45
1- 2 menths 574.74 - Rt a2 593 81
2 - 3 months B54.66 . 58 55 713 218 35
3 - 8 months 1,058.02 - 047 1,058 554,36
& - 12 months 1,808 82 . 28 16 1,637 874 22
1-3vyears 2,08%79 - 158 60 2225 226305
3 - 5 yaars 283.20 - 63 40 353 -
> 5 years 1473 780.10 - TEBE -
Total 7,627.18 780.10 316.48 8.724 4,794.22
Mote:
¥ The Company do not have any foreign currancy assets or habilities as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,
Iy Amounts averdue against standard assels are considersd under 1 o 7 days buckel (previous year uplo 1 month).
i) Amounts overdue against nan-performing assets ara considered under 3 10 5 years bucket,
Exposure to real estate sector
Category As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2020

a) Direct exposure

1y Residentizl Morigage

Lending fully secured by morlgages on residental property that is or will be occupied by the barrowear or that s
rented

I} Commercial Real Estate

2) Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, mull-purogse
commercial premises, mulu-family residentlsl bwildings, multidenanted commercial premises, mdustnal or
warehouse space, hotels, land acgusihon, devalopment and consluction, etc ) Exposure shall also include non-
fund based limits

1y Agricuitural Land
V) Investments In Morigage Backed Securities (MBS} and other securitised exposures

a} Residential
b} Commercial Real Estate

18213

185.48

5246

367

A4.15%

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

374.53

100.28

Exposure to capital marke?
The Gompany does not have any axposure to Capilal marke! as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

Detzils of financing of parent company products
This disclosure is not applicable as the Company does not have any holding f parent company
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Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amalmts are in milions of Indian Rupeeas (T), unless otherwise slated)

43 Additional disclosure pursuant te the Master Direction - Mon-Banking Financial Company - Syslemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit 1aking Company (Reserve Bank} Direclions, 2016, {as amended) issued by the RBI {continued):

19 ) Details of Single Borrower Limil {SGLY Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded
The Company has nol exceeded Single Borrower Limil {SGL) nar has exceeded the Group Bormower Licnit (GBL)

20 ) Advances agzainsi inlangible securitiss
The Gompany has nol given any advances against the rights, licenses, aulhonsations, ete.
21 ) Registration obtained lrom other financial regulators
During the vear Company has nat obtained any approvals from other financial regulators
22} Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and olher regulators
There ware no penallies imposeod on the Company by RBI or any other regulator
23 ) Related party transactions
Refer note 41 for Related parly transaclions
24} Ratings assigned by cradit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Instrument Namg of the Amount Rating Amount rated( Rating assigned
rating agency rated{ fn assigned in millions)
millions)
Mon Convertible Debentures and Marke! Linked ICRA 1477 BBE (stable} 1470 BBE (stabla)
Debentures
Non Convertible Debentures CARE 450 BB8 (stable) 450 BEB (stable)
Tern loans GCARE 400 BBB (stable) 400 BBE (stabe)
Temm loans CRISIL 2,000 BBB+ (stable) 2,000 BEB+ {stzble)
Mon Corvertible Debentures { Short Term ) CRISIL 350 A2+ {Assigned) NA NA
Non Convertitle Debentures ( Long Term ) CRISIL 3,250 BBE~+ (stabie) MHA NA
(Reaffirmead)
Term loans CRISIL 1,000 A2+ NA NA
{Reaflirmegd)
Termm lpans Infomerics 2.000 A- (s1able) MNA, NA
NA NA
25 ) Provisions and contlngencies (shown under the head expenditure in Statemant of profit and Joss)
Particulars Year ended 31 Year ended 314
March 2021 March 2020
Provision for depreciation an invesimants - -
Proviston towards NPA 5919 39 94
Prowision made towards income lax - 9218
Provision for slandard assets [(104.67}) 11872
Provisian for depreciation and ameortization en property, gtant and equipment, fight of usc #=sets and other 28 08 17.28
intangible a2ssels
Provision for employes benafits 7.62 10.57
26 ) Oraw down from reserves
Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for detalls relaung 1o draw dovn lrom reserves
27 } Concentration ¢f deposils, advances, exposures and NPAs

Particulars

As at 31 March

As at 31 Miacch

2021 2020
Concentratipn of advances
Total agvancas o twenly largast borrowers 2,935,05 1,944 07
Parcentage of advances lo twenty largest borrawers to total advances of the NBFC 30.33% 26 17%
Concentration of axpasures (undrawn limits not considered)
Tolal exposures lo lwenly largesl borrowersfousiomers 2,935.05 1.844 07
Parcanlags of exposures to twenly largest borrowersicustamers ko total exposura of the NBFC on barrowars/ 30.33% 26.17%
cuslomers
Concantration of exposures
Total exposuras 10 top four NPA accounts 16252 51.24

Sector-wise NPAs
All of the Company' NPAs are related to agricultural and allied activilies.




Samunnati Financlal Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Summary of significant accouniing policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All smounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (%), unless olherwise sfated)

43 Additional disclosure pursuani to the Master Direclion - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Oeposit taking Company and

Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016, {as amended) issued by the RBI {continued):

27 ) Caoncentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs {continved)

v, Movement of NPAs

Parficulars Year ended 31 Year gnded 31
March 2021 Warch 2020
A Net NPas 1o Net Advances (%) 3 18% 2 24%
B Movemeant of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balanca 22377 74.08
b} Additons during the yaar 529.29 203.99
¢} Reductions dunng the year 2964 200
o) Wrike-off during the year 288,92 719
2) Closing balance 424,50 223.77
C  Movement of Nel NPAs
a} Opening balance 166.06 5528
B} Additions during tha yesr 402 80 150 67
¢) Reductions durng the year 281 08 4091
d) Closing balkance 207 B0 186.06
0O Movernanl of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on standard assats)
a] Opening balance §7.71 17.77
b} Pravisions made during the year 126.69 53.23
¢} Utilisation during the year 28.95 103
d) Wirite-back of excess provisions 3855 208
&) Closing balance 116 80 5771

vi. Overseas assetls

The Gornpany coas not ave any avarseas assets as at 21 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

28 ) There are no ofi-balance sheet SPVs sponscied by the Company as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 that are required 1o be consolidaled

29 ) Customer complaints®

1} Mo, of complaints pending at the beginning of (he year

i} No of complaints received dunng the year

1i) Mo. of complaints redressed during the year

) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year
“Based on the information available with the management and reiigd upon by Lthe auditors

30 ) Public Disclosure on Liquidity risk as at 31 March 2021

{i} Funding Concentration based on significant Counierparty{ both deposits and boerrowings)

Number of Significant % of Total % of Total
3Ney Counterparties Amount borrowings ilabilities
1 23 7359 8 95.87% 94.57%

(1} Top 20 iarge deposits { amount n millons and % of Total Deposits)

{111} Tep 10 borrowings { amount in millioan and % of Total Borrowings)

Amount

% of Total
Borrowings

5,363,800

0%

Nil

SAMUNNATI
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March 2021 March 2020
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Summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al amaunts ars in millions of Indian Rupees {3), unless othenwise staled)

43 Additional disclosura pursvant 1o the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Mon-Deposit taking Company and

Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, (as amended) issued by the BBl [continued):

30 ) Public Disclosure on Liquidity risk as at 31 March 2021 (Contd.}

{rv} Funding Concgniration-Based on significant instrument! produet

S.hol Mame of the instrument Amount % Of. T?tai

liabilities
1{Cash credit - 0.00%
2|Commercial paper - 0 00%
3|Non converlible debentlures 4,213.92 54.77%
4|Qverdraft facllitics 127.04 1.65%
5|5hor-term Loans 24203 3.15%
6)Long-lerm loans 3,110 25 40.43%

Total 7,693.24

A 'significant instrumeant/product’ 15 defined as a single Instrument/product of group of similar instrumenisfproducts which in aggregate amount to moaore
than 1% of the the Campany, Total hatulities has been compuled as Total Assels fess Equiy share capilal less Reserve & Surplus and compuled basis

axtan! regulatery ALM guidalinas,

(v} Stock ralios:

and total assels

o H I, o,
‘S.No Particulars % of Public fB oil'!’otal % of Tolal
funds liabilities asgels

a |Commercial Paper as a % of tatal public funds, total labilities and [otal 0.06% 0.00% 0.00%
assats

b |Mon-converiitio debentures (Onginal Maturty less Inan 1 year) as a % af |Not applicable|  Not applicatle Not applicable
1oial public fupds, 1otal lizbuibes and tolal assets

¢ |Olher Short Term Liabillies as a % of total publlc funds, 1ol labilias 5292% 50.94% 30.79%

{vi) Institutional set-up for Liquidity risk management

Nature of risk:

a) Liquidity risk arises from mismatches in the timing of cash llows and Joan collection defaults.
o) Funding risk arises from:
i) Inability 1o raise incremental bomowings to fund buginess requirement or rapayment obligatians
i) When assels cannol be funded at the expected term resulting in cashflow mismatehes
i) Volatile market conditions impacting sourang of funds from banks and money markets

Measurement, monitoring and management of risk
Liguidity and funding risk 15 measureq by
i} ldentification of gaps in the structural and dynamic liguidity statements

i} Assassment of Incremental horrowings requued for meeting the repayment obligation as well as the Comgpsny's business plan in ine with prevading

market conddions.

Monitored by:

iy essessmant of Ihe gap belween visility of funds and the near larm habiities green curent iquidity condilions and evolving regulatory directions for

NBFGs.

i) a constant calibraucn of saurces of funds in line wilh emerging market conditons in banking and money marke!s

W) periodic reviews by Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) relating 1o the hquidity position and stress lests assumng varied 'what i scenancs and

comparing probable gaps with the liquidity buffers maintained by the Company.

Managed by:

Tha Company's Ireasury team under the guidance of ALCO through varous means like quidity buffers, saurcing of long tenm funds, posilive assel liability
mismatch, keemng strong pipeline of sanclions and apperovals from banks and assignment of loans

Executive governance struclure- Management level Asset Liability Committee (ALCO): The Company's ALGO mantors Asset Liability migmalches to
ensure thal there are no imbalances or excessive concentrations on eitner side of the Balance Sheel. The Company continuously monitors Tauidity in the
markel. As a parl of its Assel-Liabikly Management {ALM) strategy, the Company mantains a liquidity butfer managed by an actve investment lo reduce
this nisk. As on 31 March 2021, the Company has ligudity of # 1430 milliens. The Cempany maintains a judicious mix of borrowings from banks, Agn
Devslopmeant Institutes, NBFCs and other impact investors and continues lo dwersify its sources of borrowings This strategy of balancing vaned scurces
of funds has helped the Company 10 maintamn a healthy assét liability position and comain interest rale movements. Curing the financial year 2020-21 tha
weighted average cost of borrowings maved down by 48 basis points despite volatie market conditions. The Company continues 1o evaluale new sources
of borrowing by way of new routes of funding ke Commercial Papers, NCDs, Market Linked Debentures, Special Liguidity Schemes of RBI et¢.
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Summary of signillaant greounting palicias and gther explanaiory Infarrmotion for the year srdad 31 March 1021
AR amounis amg in milang of indian RAupeas () ynfoss oifenwise slelad)

&4 Covid-15 impact
Tno cuthrask of COVID-1# pandenic pooss e (ioos and in indls hes onribotsd o & signitzent dedine and wol=ity I T QloUal and [adles
fimancisl markets and sicwdown In the coonpmic aclivifes. Resefve Bank of (ndia (RBI) had aued guidelines sslatng o COVID-1B Ragusiony
Packags duted 3T Maroh 2020 and 17 Agrl 2020 snd in sccordanes hesawlh, he Compeny s progoies @ mosslorium on e payment of @i
phincipal Indtaimants and/ of inletes|, ae applcabls, laling due bebwaen 01 March 2020 snd 31 August 2020 to certiln eligitie boncwars af (hal
gl whi hive na Gweitue es an 24 Fobrunry 2020

For afl such accounie whene the rmoraionlm wih granisd, Te ssel classifcation wiil rersain 8 8 sandelll durlng (e mosswilem paroe (e 1hg
rumber of days paal dus shall escluce he momioeum pered lor the purpotes of sase! caafzalon i par the Campiny's palloy). Tha caliesiian
received during MOl pericd has been ROJUSied towanrds maratonum nterEst et and e owaide princicel. Revited mpayment schedule has
bean crewn ms E 01 September 2000 and Liture (timciian Wil be adusied Kearda the morstanum inlevast untl 1 i fulfy secoweted and thereaius
Iowarts cursand, inleshel Bnd prrcpal End Bcordingly the oolacSors recaived ior the month of Beplember 2030 otwirds Nl been adiusled as
thee revised repaymety schedule

Furiher a4 jper Bl Rosaluon frameseork déted 06 August 2020, he Company mestruclured ane provided 1o 91 cuslamens upon halr requisl os
i cperalions was BevErely mpaosed die ta COVID. The tbana wodth ol INR 495 milon wers rerlivciuved which hna guistanding balanca af iINR
485 milian s g1 belarce yreel dala 31 March 2021

Uil 30 Segembar 2050, ihe Company hes made & addSvons prodentin provision of IKR. 100 milon. over angd stove provision mada wndar ECL,
tawards polerbal imped on account of SOVID-18 pandemic as wt 30 Seplember 2070, This proviwan was mads based 00 ovolabip Informatian hen
g given B unceriinly over Bhe golerfisl macro-stoaamic impect snd bages on e pality doproved by the boaid, to delerming the proshiion b
Inipairreat of Anarolyl g3eets. This prosision ernount s bean mvitwsd snd agusled againgt the ECL provision es al 39 Macch 2021,

The Compony winossed & subsluntal Impravament in sl the business peramelsrs ram Culubar 2020, The Cormpany haa schipvad gvessl collectiun
alfcrency of BOY In tha last s manthe and also thers was good damand lfof its loan product ghvien the faot that econamic resavany wes galning the
Famanium,

The natien is now going Mrough Me tecong DOVID wave, and Mis e fhe impect [ mom severe and has K mest of Fe rurat Gaincs of Bhe
counlry., Tha ellects of ine pardersic on B dilsren] Age sub-sscion hivd been veried given tne cilfersnl nsune of esch sub-secior. Baied on
managarnant's Bitesment sroond F% of Bamunnal's net ponfolin under Low to Medium rek basis fecicrs e produdt netuis, mankat dynamics
and resibence (o COVID-16 slustan, The Company has leken adequaie salety measures to protect its ampicyues 80 gisg will ensule vaccinaben
for e fiskd sial 60 priorty besls which will halp company to coniinge lis busingss cperalkang wilh mnmum Gemupdon,

Conaldering e uhlqus snd wids spresd impact of COVID-14, the Campany nes estmaled creol) oes [ECL) allgwanca Wwaids ita foan nasals and
managed portfolo, based on tha femabon svaleble ot this paind i Hme indeding sconamic foracails. Tha mW balleves (hal & has
conaicared Bl the potsibie impact of the known svints erising out of COVID-19 pandemie n the pregesation of these slalernanis

The uncestying fomCists and Blwumglons applied by tha Cormpany In delerminebion of ECL allowancs sre subject 15 uncnsntes whish gre ofien
outide the eonirad ol the Company and sccoetrgh, actusl resdts may Sber Fom hess sstimaies. Ay polsnia) sicesy/ahortfal bassd on scugl
FIpanence wil be sdusied in the rolevant peiod In Liwe Thi Company will conlimu Yo clossly maniior the Impecl and sty maledal changss in solh
it internal Bad estemal arvdronments. The Company has been duly servicag s dett oblfignfiora. The Company's Managamant balewos ihal Capiie!
Adequasy and Ligualty posifion remaing srmng mnd shail confinue 1o be Bn area of focus

4§ Evenis aftor reporting date
Cn 18 Agel 2021, the Board of oveclom BDpMOved e proposal o 2couire ‘Hamalsn Fam Tech Privase Limied®, @ private Bmiled compony
ircorporpied i india, engaged in The buginess of tading of whotstale s9d produce.

A pur our report of gven dste aftached

For Walkar Changlok 8 Ca LLP For ang on bahed! of the Bosrs of Dheciors of

Charterad Aecoulants Semunnatl Flnanciel Infarmediation & Sarvices Frivea Lim g
(Flem FegA Mo D0107ENMNI00013)
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Pleca Kannue Ashnk Dhamenkar Anhwinl Venkerraman
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